





ДОНСКОЙ ГОСУДАРСТВЕННЫЙ ТЕХНИЧЕСКИЙ УНИВЕРСИТЕТ УПРАВЛЕНИЕ ДИСТАНЦИОННОГО ОБУЧЕНИЯ И ПОВЫШЕНИЯ КВАЛИФИКАЦИИ

Кафедра «Иностранные языки»

Учебное пособие

по дисциплине «Иностранный язык (английский)»

«Практический курс грамматики»

Авторы Царевская И.В., Журавлева Н.С., Щербакова И.В.



Аннотация

Учебное пособие представляет собой учебнометодический материал, содержащий основные систематизированные сведения И практические задания по курсу грамматики английского языка, предусмотренного технических вузах. В Оно предназначено для работы со студентами-бакалаврами целью повторения и систематизации основных грамматических явлений, и может быть использовано аудиторных занятиях, так И ДЛЯ самостоятельной работы студентов.

Авторы

к. филол. наук, доцент, заведующий кафедрой «Иностранные языки» Царевская И.В. преподаватель кафедры «Иностранные языки» Журавлева Н.С. преподаватель кафедры «Иностранные языки» Щербакова И.В.





Оглавление

І.Порядок слов	5
II.Существительное	12
III.Артикль	16
Consolidation I	26
IV. Местоимения some, any, no, every и их произ	водные .29
V. Прилагательное	
Степени сравнения прилагательных	
VI. Предлоги	
VII.Числительные	
VIII.Местоименные прилагательные much, m	
•	• • • •
few, a little, a few	
IX. Глагол to be	55
X. Глагол to have	60
Consolidation II	64
XI. Активный залог (The Active voice)	67
1. The Present Simple Tense	67
2. The Past Simple Tense	
3. The Future Simple Tense	73
4.The Present Continuous Tense	75
5.The Past Continuous Tense	80
6.The Future Continuous Tense	84
7.The Present Perfect Tense	87
8.The Past Perfect Tense	91
9.The Future Perfect Tense	94
10. The Present Perfect Continuous Tense	97
11. The Past Perfect Continuous Tense	100
12. The Future Perfect Continuous Tense	103
Consolidation III	105
XII. Страдательный залог (The Passive voice)	107





XIII. Conditionals (Условные предложения)	112
Consolidation IV	116
XIV. Модальные глаголы (Modals)	119
1. Выражение обязанности, долженствования	120
2. Выражение разрешения, позволения	126
3. Выражение способности, возможности	128
4. Выражение уверенности, вероятности	134
Consolidation V	140
XV. Косвенная речь	142
1. Утвердительные предложения	142
2. Вопросительные предложения	147
Consolidation VI	153
Таблица неправильных глаголов	156
Литература	161



І.ПОРЯДОК СЛОВ

Грамматический строй английского языка характеризуется строгим порядком слов:

подлежащее + сказуемое + дополнение + обстоятельство места + обстоятельство времени

Порядок слов в предложении зависит от типа предложения (утвердительное, вопросительное, отрицательное).

Связи и отношения между словами выражаются при помощи служебных слов, артиклей, предлогов, вспомогательных глаголов:

Ex. He takes **the** manual **from the** shelf and gives it **to** me.

Он берет инструкцию с полки и передает ее мне.

Порядок слов в утвердительном предложении

Ex. The students take exams in winter and in spring. Студенты сдают экзамены зимой и весной.

По-русски этот смысл выражается по-разному:

- Студенты сдают экзамены зимой и весной.
- Зимой и весной студенты сдают экзамены.
- Экзамены сдают студенты зимой и весной.

В английском же предложении перестановка местами подлежащего и дополнения может привести к иному смыслу.

Порядок слов в вопросительном предложении

Вопросительное предложение образуется при помощи вспомогательного глагола, который ставится перед подлежащим:

Ex. Do the students take exams in winter and in spring?

Если вопрос начинается с вопросительного слова, то оно ставится перед вспомогательным глаголом:

Ex. When do the students take exams?

Типы вопросительных предложений.

В английском языке есть 4 типа вопросительных предложений:

Общий вопрос (утвердительный или отрицательный ответ)

Структура общего вопроса:

Вспомогательный глагол Do, Does или to be, to have, модальный глагол + подлежащие + основной глагол (если есть вспомогательный) + доп. члены предложения.



Ex. Are you a student? Yes, I'am. / No, I'm not.

Do you go to school? No, I don't.

Have you ever been to London? Yes, I have.

Альтернативный вопрос (вопрос выбора).

На этот вопрос нельзя ответить утвердительно или отрицательно.

Структура альтернативного вопроса:

Вспомогательный глагол Do, Does или to be, to have, модальный глагол + подлежащие + основной глагол + доп. члены предложения или (ог) дополнительная информация?

Ex. Are you a student or a school boy? I'm a student.

Разделительный вопрос.

В английском языке эти вопросы называют вопрос с хвостиком (tag question).

Структура данного вопроса напоминает утвердительное предложение, но в конце предложения добавляется фраза «не так ли?»

Ex. You are a student, aren't you? Yes, I'am.

They bought a car, didn't they? Yes, they did.

Специальный вопрос (вопрос с вопросительным словом). Структура специального вопроса:

Вопросительное слово + вспомогательный глагол (или to be, to have, модальный глагол) + подлежащие + основной глагол + дополнительные члены предложения.

Вопросительные слова:

What – что, какой Ноw – как

 Where – где, куда
 How old – сколько лет

 When – когда
 How much/many – сколько

 Why – почему
 How long – как долго

 Who – кто
 Which – который

Ex. What city are you from?

Who are you?

How much does it cost?

Вопрос к подлежащему (субъекту) и дополнительному члену предложения (объекту).

Структура вопроса к подлежащему:

Вопросительное слово + глагол + подлежащие + дополнительные члены предложения.

Ex. Who saw you? (нет вспомогательного глагола) Кто видел тебя?

Структура вопроса к дополнительному члену предложения:



Вопросительное слово + дополнительный глагол + подлежащее + основной глагол + дополнительные члены предложения **Ex.** Who did you see?

Кого ты видел?

Порядок слов в отрицательном предложении

Отрицательное предложение может быть построено так же, как и вопросительное - при помощи вспомогательного глагола:

Ex. The students **don't** (= **do not**) take exams in autumn.

Отклонением от строгого порядка слов в предложении является конструкция **there is / there are**, которая соответствует русскому "имеется, есть, находится, бывает". Она употребляется, когда говорят или спрашивают о наличии или отсутствии предмета (предметов) в определенном месте:

Ex. There is an identity card in my bag. (There are identity cards in my bag)

В моей сумке находится (лежит, есть) удостоверение личности.

Exercises

1. Восстановите правильный порядок слов в предложении.

Example: A newspaper /reads /Pete /every morning. — Pete reads a newspaper every morning.

,	1)	I / speak /don't /very well /English. –
	2)	Will you be /this evening /at home? –
	3)	I/in bed/this morning/my breakfast/had. –
	4)	At the theatre / we early / arrived. –
	5)	To France/ she/ go / does/ every year? –
	6)	To the cinema / last night / did you go? –
	7)	Passed/ Ann /easily / the examination. –
	8)	Didn't go/ yesterday / I/ to work. –
	9)	On Monday/ here/ will they be? –

Управление дистанционного обучения и повышения квалификации



10) My plan/ carefully/ I/ explained	
2. Прочитайте текст и напиши Example: Two. → How many childr In a small village in North Yor farmhouse where three families live toge their three children, Joe and Pam and the her baby daughter. The adults divide up George does the cooking, Joe and Sue of Pam looks after shopping and does the repthe garden. Alice, George and Sue go out designing computer systems, and Pam, where the baby during the day. Two of the children but the three oldest ones go by bus to the nearest town, ten miles away.	en have Joe and Pam got? rkshire, there's a big old other: Alice and George and ir two children, and Sue and p the work between them. do most of the housework, pairs, and Alice takes care of to work; Joe works at home who is a painter, looks after ren go to school in a village, the secondary school in the
The three families get on well, a There a few difficulties, of course. Their b is money – one of the cars needs replacin expensive repairs. But this isn't too serious loan, which they expect to be able to pathey all say they would much rather farmhouse than move to a luxury flat in a	iggest worry at the moment ig, and the roof needs some is – the bank has agreed to a may back in three years. And go on living in their old big city.
1 In North Yorkshire.	8 A home.
2 In a big old farmhouse. 3 Three.	9 Computer systems. 10 She's a painter.
4 Sue has.	11 Two of them.
5 The cooking.	12 By bus.
6 The housework.	13 In the nearest town.
7 The garden.	14 Ten miles.
3. Поставьте слова в правильн 1. (a newspaper / reads / every paper every day. 2. (football / don't like / very muc	day / Jill) Jill reads a news-
3. (lost / I / my watch / last week	()
4. (Tom / the letter / slowly / read	d)



5.	(London / do you know / very well?)?
6.	(ate / we / very quickly / our dinner)
7.	(did you buy / in England / that jacket?)?
8.	(I / very well / French / don't speak)
9.	(crossed / the street / they / carefully)
10.	(from my brother / borrowed / f50 / I)
11.	(we / enjoyed / very much / the party)
12.	(passed / Ann / easily / the examination)
13.	(every day / do / the same thing / we)
14.	(I / this picture / don't like / very much)
15.	(in her bag / the money / put / the woman)
16.	(did you watch / on television / the news?)?
17.	(my plan / carefully / I / explained)
18.	(she / smokes / every day / ten cigarettes)
19.	(a lot of housework / did / I / yesterday)
20.	(we / at the concert / some friends / met)
21.	(you / the same clothes / wear / every day)
22.	(I / want to speak / fluently / English)



Review

1. В данных предложениях найдите подлежащее и сказуемое и переведите их на русский язык.

- 1. Medicine has made great progress in the last twenty years.
- 2. Oil is an important commodity in modern economies.
- 3. Economic activity was organized on the assumption of cheap and abundant oil.
- 4. From the beginning of this century the use of oil increased steadily.
- 5. Understanding a printed text will be the main point of our study.

2. Поставьте слова в правильном порядке.

- 1. Comes, often, home, Nelly, at night.
- 2. Starred, in, popular, he, a, film.
- 3. His, to, my, walks, father, office.
- 4. Is, of, he, coins, fond, collecting.
- 5. We, every, or, day, football, play, badminton.
- 6. Home, a, my, is, where, place, relax, and, I, rest.
- 7. To, my, watches, father, rest, TV.
- 8. Never, we, seen, have, whales.

3. Переведите предложения на английский язык.

- 1. Нам очень понравилась вечеринка.
- 2. Каждый день он выкуривает 10 сигарет.
- 3. Я хочу говорить на английском свободно.
- 4. Где они будут в понедельник утром?
- 5. Сегодня утром в парке я встретил своего друга.
- 6. Они всегда ужинают в 18.00.
- 7. Почему вы так часто опаздываете на работу?
- 8. Вы когда-нибудь были в Италии?
- 9. Они редко ходят в зоопарк.
- 10. Твой отец работает все еще в банке?
- 11. Его еще нет в университете.

4. Прочитайте предложения и исправьте те, в которых нарушен порядок слов.

Образец: Tom walks every morning to work. – Tom walks to work every morning.

- 1. Jim doesn't like very much baseball.
- 2. Ann drives every day her car to work.
- 3. When I heard the news, I immediately called Tom. (immediately cpasy)
 - 4. Maria speaks very well English.

Управление дистанционного обучения и повышения квалификации



- 5. After eating quickly my dinner, I went out.
- 6. You watch all the time television.
- 7. Liz smokes about 20 cigarettes every day.
- 8. I think I'll go early to bed tonight.
- 9. You should go to the dentist every six months. (should следует)
 - 10. We went last night to the movies.
 - 11. We go every summer to the sea in August.



ІІ.СУЩЕСТВИТЕЛЬНОЕ

Существительное может изменяться по числам. Во множественном числе к существительным прибавляется окончание -s, (es):

```
Ex.
                    map -maps; torch - torches.
      Spelling of plural endings
       -es after -s/ -sh/ -ch/ -x:
                                dish \rightarrow dishes
                                                     church → churches
       Bus \rightarrow buses
        box →boxes
      also: potato \rightarrow potatoes
                                                    tomato → tomatoes
       -y → -ies:
      baby \rightarrow babies
                               party → parties
                                                       dictionary → dic-
tionaries
      but -ay \rightarrow -ays / -ey \rightarrow eys / -oy \rightarrow -oys / -uy \rightarrow -uys
      day \rightarrow days monkey \rightarrow monkeys
                                                    bov
                                                                       boys
        guy \rightarrow guys
       -f / -fe → -ves:
       shelf → shelves
                               knife →knives
                                                   wife \rightarrow wives
      Некоторые существительные имеют свои собственные фор-
мы множественного числа (существительные-исключения).
       a man \rightarrow two men
                                         a woman → some women
       a child → many children
```

one foot \rightarrow two feet a tooth → all my teeth

a mouse → some mice

a fish → many fish a sheep → two sheep

Перед существительным употребляется неопределенный (a/an) или определенный (the) артикли. Неопределенный артикль ставится перед существительным в единственном, а определенный в единственном и множественном числе.

- Take a key. Возьми ключ (какой нибудь).
- Take the key. Возьми ключ (ты знаешь, о каком ключе идет речь).
 - Take the keys. Возьми ключи (определенные).

Неопределенный артикль указывает на то, что существительное выражает какое-то новое, неопределенное понятие. Определенный артикль показывает, что речь идет уже о знакомом, ранее упоминавшемся предмете.

Существительное может иметь при себе определение, выраженное прилагательным, указательными, притяжательными местоимениями.

Управление дистанционного обучения и повышения квалификации Английский язык



	Ex.	а <i>пеw</i> key – новый н – мой ключ, <i>what key</i>		
		ельное может употре		
	Ex.			<i>Monday —</i> в понедель-
ник,	- X.	at work ha pager	C, 011 1	топацу в попедель
Tivilly	in the w	orkshop – в мастерско	ηй	
				ся только во множе-
ствен	ном числе.	esterible flory: yhorp	00/1/11/20	on rombine be rinome
0.20	Ex:	scissors, glasses, tro	users. ie	eans, shorts, pajamas.
				я со словами some (а
pair o		ocionicione in incipe	0,1,110.0	or co chopaini come (a
pa o	Ex:	some scissors, a pair	of sciss	sors.
				емыми и неисчисляе-
мыми				гут употребляться со
слова				. , . ,
0.020		a bowl of, a cup of, a l	ottle of	f. a bar of и др.
		e of cheese.		A piece of
music	•			p
	Кусочек	сыра.		Музыкальное произ-
веден		P		.,,
		ельные имеют притя	іжатель	ьный падеж, который
вырах		инадлежности предм		
•	Ex	Mother's bag.		Boys' things.
	Сумка м			Вещи мальчиков.
	,			•
		Exercises	5	
	1. Образу	уйте множественн	ое чи	сло существитель-
ных.				
		flower – flowers, boat	boats	
1)		e –	6)	foot
2)			7)	person
3)	country		8)	holiday
4)	knife		9)	city
5)	woman		10)	family
	2 Retark	ге нужное слово: <i>а</i>	<i>/an</i> or	some
				letters and listened to
some	music.	a newspaper, whole	Some	recters and instance to
551116		money. I want to	o buv	. food.
		etinteresting peopl		
		ing to openwindo		



- 5. She didn't eat much for lunch onlyapple andbread.
- 6. We live inbig house. There'snice garden withbeautiful trees.
 - 7. I'm going to maketable. First, I needwood.
 - 8. We talked to her and she gave usvery good advice.
 - 9. I want to writeletter. I needpen andpaper.
 - 10. We hadnice weather when we were on holiday.

3. Переведите словосочетания на английский язык.

- 1. Кусок мыла
- 2. Лист бумаги
- 3. Музыкальное произведение
- 4. Порезанный сыр
- 5. Кусочек масла
- 6. Ломтик хлеба

- 7. Буханка хлеба
- 8. Миска супа
- 9. Банка подсолнечного масла
- 10. Бутылка молока
- 11. Тюбик зубной пасты
- 12. Предмет мебели

4. Поставьте существительные в предложениях во множественное число, обратите внимание на форму глагола.

1. This is a star. 2. This is a boy. 3. This is a baby. 4. That is a plate. 5. That is a flower. 6. That is a bookshelf. 7. Is this a sofa? 8. Is this a bookcase? 9. Is this a man? 10. Is that a ball? 11. Is that a train? 12. Is that a plane? 13. Is the window open? 14. Is the door closed? 15. Is the boy near the window? 16. That is not a king, 17. That is not a queen. 18. That is not a bus. 19. This isn't a mountain. 20. That isn't a goose. 21. This isn't a mouse. 22. It is a sheep. 23. It is a cigarette. 24. It is a cat. 25. It is not a girl. 26. It isn't a bag. 27. It isn't a tree. 28. It is not a bad egg. 29. It is a good egg. 30. Is that a flower?

Review

1. Подберите существительные женского рода к следующим словам.

A lion, a tiger, an actor, a poet, a man, an uncle, a husband, a brother, a grandfather, a son, a master, a baron, a count, a shepherd, a host.

2. Подберите существительные мужского рода к следующим словам.



lady, a girl, a niece, Mrs. Smith, a widow, a stewardess, a French woman, a cow, a queen, a princess, a duchess, a hen, a mother.

3. Поставьте существительные во множественное число, обращая внимание на артикли.

A star, a mountain, a tree, a shilling, a king, the waiter, the queen, a man, the man, a woman, the woman, an eye, a shelf, a box, the city, a boy, a goose, the watch, a mouse, a dress, a toy, the sheep, a tooth, a child, the ox, a deer, the life, a tomato.

4. Переведите следующие предложения на английский язык.

- 1. Мне нужны новые носки.
- 2. В поле много овец.
- 3. Они очень приятые люди.
- 4. Полиция уже идет.
- 5. Отсутствие новостей-уже хорошие новости.
- 6. Эта пижама слишком большая для нее.
- 7. Вы хотите послушать какие-нибудь музыкальное произведение?
 - 8. Он подарил мне плитку Швейцарского шоколада.
 - 9. В копилке лежали какие-то деньги.
 - 10. Мне нужен лист бумаги.
 - 11. Банка джема находится на верхней полке.



III.АРТИКЛЬ

В английском языке существует неопределенный артикль (a/an) и определенный артикль (the).

Неопределенный артикль употребляется только с исчисляемыми существительными в единственном числе для:

- 1. Выражения значения единичности.
- 2. Классификации лица или предмета (имеет значение «любой», «всякий»)

Употребляется с существительными	Примеры
	A doctor should be compered.
	A student must be diligent.
1. В роли:	A computer is an electronic
а) подлежащего; имеет значение	machine.
«любой, каждый, всякий»	A cat has a very independent
б) подлежащего в предложениях с	nature.
оборотом there is / was / will be,	There is an e-mail for you
	There was a star in the sky.
	There will be a party tomorrow.
	I have a dag . She has a cat.
2. В роли прямого дополнения	He bought a printer . We got a
2. В роли приного дополнении	fax.
	You made a mistake .
	I'm a student.
3. В роли именной части	He is a programmer.
составного именного	She is a accountant.
сказуемого (предикатива)	It's a new show.
	It's a good idea.
	To be a success, to be a hit, to
	have a rest, to have a good time, a
	toothache, to give a look, to make
	a mistake, to take a seat, to give
4. В ряде устойчивых	smb. a lift, to go for a walk, to
словосочетаний, выражающих	catch a cold.
однократные действия	The show was a success.
	He gave us a lift to the office.
	We had a good time at the party.
	Ho:
	We had fun.



5 При наличии у существительного описательного действия	Сравните: It was night. – It was a dark night. It's morning . – It's a sunny morning. We had dinner . – We had a big dinner.
6 В восклицательных предложениях после what, such	What a fine day! What a good film! It's such a big city! She is such a good girl! Запомните фразы: What a surprise! (Какой сюрприз / неожиданность!) What a shame! (Какая досада / обида / жалость!) What a shock! (Какой удар / шок!) What a waste! (Какая пустая трата денег, времени и т.д.) Ho: What good news! What fine westher!

Определенный артикль употребляется со всеми типами существительных (исчисляемыми и неисчисляемыми), как в единственном, так и во множественном числе.

Употребляется, если	Примеры
1. Ситуация или контекст показывает, что речь идет об определенном лице или предмете	The day is fine. The film was exciting. (ситуация) We have a new secretary. The girl is smart. (контекст) Запомните: Определенный артикль во множественном числе сохраняется The days are fine. The films were exciting.



2. Слово упоминалось ранее

He has a new car, the car is red. They bought a dog, the dog is white.

3. У существительного есть ограничивающее (лимитирующее) определение, выраженное:

It's the only way out. Who can give me the right answer?

словами: only, main, central, 1) same, right / wrong, left/right, next, last, final;

Keep to **the right side** of the road. The next stop is ours.

But: next week (year,...)

The best things in life are never free.

He was the first man who helped us.

порядковыми числитель-2)

Read the second text.

ными:

He lives on the third floor.

first, second, third, etc;

This is **the best book** I've ever read.

прилагательными в превосходной степени: best, worst, longest, most important...

It's **the most important thing** for

4 существительное употребляется в

It was **the worst moment** in my life.

роли обстоятельства места: in (on) the street, at the theatre, at the office, at the library, on the balcony, in the garden, on the train, in the sky, in the picture...

We like to walk in the garden. There are some people at the door.

Неопределенный артикль возможен также в своем классифицирующем значении «один из», «какой-то»

Let's meet at the library. I read a book on the train. There are dark clouds in the sky.

Matilda lived in a small English town.

He was born in a small village. «We all live in a yellow submarine»

Определенный артикль употребляется, когда понятно, что мы имеем в виду.

We say **the** ...when it is clear which thing we mean.

The door / the ceiling / the floor / the carpet / the Ex: *light* ect. (of a room)

The roof / the garden / the kitchen / the bathroom ect. (of a house)

The centre / the station / the airport / the town hall ect. (of a town)



- -Where's Tom? In the garden. (=the garden of his house)
- $\,$ -I turned off the light, opened the door and went out. (=the light and the door of the room)
- -I'd like to speak to the manager, please. (=the manager of this shop)

the... = it is clear which thing or person we mean

- -Rome is **the capital of Italy**. (there is only one capital)
- -What is the name of this village?
- -Excuse me, where is **the nearest bank**?
- -Can you tell me **the time**, please? (=the time now)
- -My office is on **the first floor.** (=the first floor of the build-

Don't forget **the:**

ing)

- -Do you live near **the city centre**? (not "near city centre")
- -Which is **the best restaurant** in this town? (not "Which is best")

the top of.../ the end of ...ect.

- -Write your name at the top of the page.
- -The beginning of the film was not very good.
- -My house is at the end of the street.
- -The table is in **the middle of the room.**
- -Do you drive on **the left** or **the right** in your country? **the same ...**
 - -We live in **the same street.** (not "in same street")
- -These books are not different. They are **the same.** (not "they are same")

Note that we say:

the the sun / the moon / the world / the sky / the sea / the ground / the country:

- **-The sky** is blue and **the sun** is shining.
- -I like swimming in **the sea.**
- -They live in a town but they want to live in **the country.**

the police / the fire brigade / the army (of a city, country etc.)

-My brother is a soldier. He's in the army.

the the piano / guitar / trumpet etc.

-Tom is learning to play the piano.



the ti	the the radio but television (without the):		
	-I often listen to the radio.	What's on the radio tonight?	
	-I like watching television.	What's on television tonight?	
the	but Can you turn off the tele	evision (the TV set)?	
the	breakfast / lunch / dinner	r (without the):	
	-I never have breakfast. (n	ot "the breakfast)	
	-What are you going to have	for lunch?	
	- Dinner is ready!		

Exercises

1.	Вставьте	определенный	или	неопределенный	ар-
икль.					

• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •
тикль.
1. William wrote <u>a</u> letter to his bank yesterday but he forgot
to post it. This morning, he saw <u>the</u> letter on the kitchen table.
2 first bus in the morning leaves at 5.30 a.m.
3. When Eva Write was younger she wanted to be
musician. Now many people think she is best trumpet-
player in the world.
4. I've gotidea. Let's go to new Greek restau-
rant in Main Street tonight.
5. Julia arrived at station at 7 o'clock and took
taxi to city centre.
6. We usually eat our meals in kitchen. But if we have
guest, we eat indining room.
7. Bern is capital of Switzerland. It's small city
with about 133,000 inhabitants.
8. My office is on third floor of old building.
9. Martin lives in large town in middle of Ger-
many but he wants to live in country. He has got dog
and he would like to take dog for long walks.
10. Pat watchedscience fiction movies on TV last night.
beginning of film was fantastic but end was
terrible.
11. I've known my husband, Sam, since I was six. We lived in
same street when we were children. Sam had older
brother, Frank. I thought he was most handsome boy in the
world.
12. A: Excuse me, where's nearest bookshop?
B: It's at end of this street, on left. There's
hus-stop in front of it



2. Вставьте определенный или неопределенный артикль, где это необходимо. Last night, moon was shining brightly. Clare's train (1) <u>the</u> moon arrived at the station and she got off. She went up (2) right to station manager and asked "Do you know if there is Italian restaurant near here?" "Yes, it's very near, just about 200 metres on left, opposite Information Centre." "Thank you," said Clare and she started walking. She found restaurant and went inside. There was woman playing the piano, and there, in the corner of the room next to kitchen, was Ron Allen – just man she wanted to see. He was (10)eating dinner, but when he saw Clare he stopped. He thought she looked exactly same – beautiful and (12)calm. "Have you got papers?" he asked. "No, I haven't. (13) I've given them to police," she replied. "I hope they will arrest you and send you to prison." When he heard her words, Ron jumped up, took knife from the table (16)and run out. But outside...

3. Выберите правильный вариант.

DAD Where's John and what's he doing?

MUM He's in $a/(the)^0$ living room. He's watching a/the^1 programme on TV.

DAD Oh, OK. What's he doing later?



MUM He's going to see a/the^2 film. He's going to a/the^3 cinema in Brook Street, I think. He's going to see a/the^4 new James Bond film that came out last week.

DAD Who's he going with?

MUM Ah, well, he's going with a/the^6 girl. But he doesn't want to say who a/the^7 girl is.

DAD It's probably a/the^8 girl he told us about last week. You know, a/the^8 girl he met at a/the^9 college party last Saturday.

MUM Ah, you're probably right. Anyway, he wants to take $a/the^{10}\ car.$

DAD I suppose that's OK. He can park it in a/the^{11} car park at the cinema.

MUM I think he's excited about a/the^{12} evening. He's even wearing a/the^{13} clean shirt!

DAD Wow! It must be an/the¹⁴ important occasion for him!

4. Поставьте артикли там, где это необходимо.

- 1. I come to ... work by ... bus. Today ... bus was a bit late. (Я езжу на работу на автобусе. Сегодня автобус немного опоздал.)
- 2. ... Jack is ... youngest but ... cleverest boy at ... school. (Джэк самый младший, но самый умный мальчик в школе.)
- 3. It rained, so I stayed at ... home in ... evening. But today ... sun is shining brightly in ... sky. (Шел дождь, поэтому я остался дома вечером. Но сегодня ярко светит солнце в небе.)
- 4. On ... Monday ... kids were tired and they went to ... bed very early. (В понедельник дети устали и пошли спать очень рано.)
- 5. My wife is ... best woman in ... world and I'm ... happiest husband! (Моя жена лучшая женщина на свете, а я самый счастливый муж!)
- 6. They are having ... test on ... third of December. (У них будет тест третьего декабря.)
- 7. What ... beautiful painting! ... artist is such ... talented person. (Какая красивая картина! Художник такой талантливый человек.)
- 8. Robin Hood robbed ... rich and helped ... poor. (Робин Гуд грабил богатых и помогал бедным.)
- 9. David is ... old friend of mine. He plays ... guitar perfectly. His sister has been playing ... tennis since ... age of ten. (Давид мой



старый друг. Он отлично играет на гитаре. Его сестра играет в теннис с 10 лет.)

- 10. ... Jacksons live in that lovely cottage with ... fantastic garden. (Семья Джэксонов живет в том милом коттедже с фантастическим садом.)
- 11. Sam used ... drugs and was sent to ... prison in ... August. What ... shame! (Сэм применял наркотики и был отправлен в тюрьму в августе. Какой позор!)
- 12. ... Harrisons are not religious and they never go to ... church. (Семья Гаррисонов не религиозна, и они никогда не ходят в церковь.)
- 13. He has been in ... hospital for ... month. (Он лежит в больнице в течение месяца.)
- 14. ... English are very fond of ... gardening. (Англичане очень увлекаются садоводством.)
- 15. I've tried to learn ... Japanese many times. (Я пробовал изучать японский язык много раз.)
- 16. She is ... famous actress and she often appears on ... TV. (Она известная актриса и часто появляется на телевидении.)
- 17. It's such ... original idea! Besides you've got ... good sense of humour. (Это такая оригинальная идея! Кроме того, у тебя хорошее чувство юмора.)
- 18. On ... rainy day ... castle looks like ... prison. (В дождливый день замок выглядит как тюрьма.)

Review

1. Прочитайте предложения и поставьте нужный артикль там, где это необходимо. Обратите внимание на перевод предложений.

- 1. I'd like ... chicken sandwich and ... glass of ... mineral water. (Я бы хотел сэндвич с курицей и стакан минеральной воды.)
- 2. Would you like ... banana or ... strawberries? (Ты хочешь банан или клубнику?)
- 3. She always has ... apple, ... toast and ... cup of ... coffee for ... breakfast. (Она всегда съедает яблоко, тост и пьет чашку кофе на завтрак.)
- 4. The fly is on ... ceiling in ... kitchen. (Муха на потолке на кухне.)
- 5. My mother is ... accountant and my father is ... lawyer. They work in ... same company in ... centre of ... our town. (Моя мама



- бухгалтер, а папа юрист. Они работают в одной компании в центре нашего города.)
- 6. How much are ... her Italian lessons? Ten dollars ... hour. (Сколько стоят ее занятия по итальянскому языку? Десять долларов в час.)
- 7. Where are ... dogs? They are in ... garden. (Где собаки? Они в саду.)
- 8. ... cats like eating ... fish. ... cows like eating ... grass. ... birds like eating ... insects. (Кошки любят есть рыбу. Коровы любят есть траву. Птицы любят есть насекомых.)
- 9. My favourite subjects are ... Chemistry and ... Biology. (Мои любимые предметы химия и биология.)
- 10. There is ... parrot in ... cage. And there are ... pieces of ... fruit in it. (В клетке попугай. И в ней есть кусочки фруктов.)
- 11. My granny lives in ... small village in ... country. (Моя бабушка живет в маленькой деревушке в сельской местности.)
- 12. Your baby shouldn't sit in ... sun on ... hot day. (Вашему малышу не следует сидеть на солнце в жаркий день.)
- 13. Please open ... book. ... exercise is on ... page 68. (Пожалуйста, откройте книгу. Упражнение находится на странице 68.)
- 14. Ann has been looking for ... job for ... long time. (Аня ищет работу долгое время.)
- 15. What's ... matter? I missed ... 6 o'clock train. (Что случилось? Я не успел на 6-часовой поезд.)
 - 16. Do you like ... vegetables? (Ты любишь овощи?)
- 17. ... mother has got ... terrible headache today. (У мамы сегодня ужасная головная боль.)
- 18. There were ... tears in ... her eyes. (В ее глазах были слезы.)
- 19. She is ... very nice woman but her sons are ... bad boys. (Она очень хорошая женщина, но ее сыновья плохие парни.)
- 20. Look at ... woman. She is ... neighbour I told you about. (Посмотри на женщину. Это соседка, о которой я тебе говорил.)
- 2. Вставьте определенный или неопределенный артикль там, где это необходимо.

WAITER	CUSTOMER	
0 Have you booked <u> a</u> table?	0 Could you have the <u>a</u> clean knife, please?	
1 Would you like to leave your	6 Could we have the	
coats in the cloakroom?	table for 6 people?	

Управление дистанционного обучения и повышения квалификации



Английский язык

2 Would you like adrink in	7 Can I see a menu,
thebar?	please?
3 Can I recommend a chef's	8 Can we have a jug of wa-
special?	ter?
4 Would you like a wine	9 Could I speak to the
list?	manager?
5 Would you like a dessert?	10 Could I have a bill, please?

3. Вставьте определенный или неопределенный артикль там, где это необходимо.

I live in \underline{a} $\underline{0}$ big city in \dots centre of Britain. \dots city is called Coventry and I live in \dots area that is quiet close to \dots city centre. I live in \dots 5 old house in \dots 6 quiet street. I'm \dots 7 student at \dots 8 local university, which is called Warwick University. \dots 9 university is \dots 10 modern one and it's \dots 11 good university. It has \dots 12 arts centre, which has \dots 13 good programme of films and concerts. I'm doing \dots 14 three-year course there.

My father works in 15 office. He's 16 Sales Director at 17 company that makes sports equipment. My mother is 18 nurse and she works at the new hospital that has just been built outside 19 city. I also have 20 brother – he's 21 doctor and he works at 22 same hospital.

4. Переведите следующий текст с русского на английский. Обращайте внимание на употребление артиклей.

Это был прекрасный летний день. Погода была замечательная. Солнце сияло на синем небе. Воздух был наполнен запахом травы и цветов. Собака бежала по улице маленького городка и увидела мясную лавку. Она подошла к ней и, когда мясник отвернулся, схватила кусок мяса и убежала прочь. По пути домой собаке нужно было пересечь ручей через мостик. Переходя этот мост, она посмотрела вниз на ручей и увидела свое отражение в воде. Собака подумала, что это был другой пес с куском мяса. Она зарычала на отражение и уронила мясо. Вот как собака была наказана за свою жадность.



CONSOLIDATION I

1. Вставьте артикль, где это необходимо.

1.This is ... clock. 2. This is ... Kiev. 3. ... Kiev is ... big city. 4. Mary is ... girl. 5. She is ... my sister. 6. This is ... room. 7. Is ... newspaper in ... bag? 8. She is in ... room. 9. Is ... teacher in ... classroom? 10. Is ... your room large? 11. Is ... pen in ... bag? 12. Are you ... students? 13. My friend has ... children. 14. ... sportsmen are always in good form. 15. ... children we saw in ... street are schoolboys. 16. She lives in ... 1st street.

2. Прочтите следующие выражения и переведите на русский язык.

A man's bag, a girl's doll, the women's right, the actress's voice, James' room, fox's tricks, boy's games, students' songs, Engels' works, Marx' letters

3. Прочитайте текст и вставьте артикль, где это необходимо.

At... beginning of ... 19th century ... little boy was born in ... family of John Dickens, ... clerk at ... office in ... Portsmouth, and was named Charles. He had ... sister who was older than himself, arid there were several other children in ... family. When Charles was seven, he was sent to ... school. He was not... strong child. He did not like to play ... cricket or ... football and spent all his free time reading. In 1821 ... family went to ... London and little Charles left behind him ... happiest years of his childhood. His father was in ... money difficulties, and ... family became poorer and poorer. ... boy had to give up his studies. Mr. Dickens was put into ... debtors' prison. Little Charles learned to know all ... horrors and cruelty of ... large capitalist city. He had to go to work at... blacking factory. He worked there from ... morning till ... night. When his father came out of prison, Charles was sent to ... school for some time. Soon he got work as ... clerk. Then he learned ... stenography and became ... reporter; in Parliament. In 1836 at... age of 24 Charles Dickens published his first book. It was ... collection of ... stories. ... title of ... book was "Sketches by Boz." There were followed by "Pickwick Papers" and "Oliver Twist" and many other famous novels. Charles Dickens is one of ... greatest writers of ... 19th. century. His novels are now translated into most lanquages of ... world.



4.Переведите предложения на русский язык.

- 1. The head of the company stated that a special license was issued for the export of steam turbines.
- 2. His colleagues received very important information about Robert`s new online service.
- 3. Jane's sister is the wife of his neighbour's uncle.
 - 4. Her mother is a woman of unbalanced mind.
 - 5. Chemistry forms the basis of different sciences.
- 6. Assessors have been checking witness statements on these difficult legal proceedings against the hotel administration.
 - 7. Do you write with your pen or with your teacher's one?
 - 8. Could you change this \$50 note in the bank, please?
 - 9. Mark became the Executive Director of the Baltic Bank.
 - 10. The acoustics in that night club are unreliable.

5. Перестройте предложения, используя притяжательный падеж существительных.

- 1. There is a swimming-pool of their workers. Здесь находится бассейн их рабочих.
- 2. Your colleagues will discuss the proposals of Mrs. Smith next week. Твои коллеги будут обсуждать предложения миссис Смит на следующей неделе.
- 3. The mobile phones of Jack and Mary are not very modern. Мобильные телефоны Джека и Мэри не очень современные.
- 4. Our company has not yet discussed the viewpoint report of the customer. Наша компания пока еще не обсудила доклад о позиции покупателя.
- 5. George taught the son of Mr. Brown to read. Джордж учил сына мистера Брауна читать.
- 6. The country house of her parents is very modest. Загородный дом ее родителей очень скромный.
- 7. The old computer of their chief is now upgraded. Старый компьютер их начальника теперь модернизирован.
- 8. Elisabeth is hanging the wet clothes of her daughters on the drying rack. Элизабет развешивает мокрую одежду своих дочерей на сушилке для белья.
- 9. His son read very many fantastic stories of Robert Sheckley. Его сын прочитал очень много фантастических рассказов Роберта Шекли.
- 10. The leaky boat of the old man was near the lake. Дырявая лодка старика находилась около озера.



6. Переведите предложения на английский язык.

- 1. Поездка моего друга заняла много времени, на улице были пробки (a lot of traffic heavy). Меня это очень утомило.
 - 2. Уличное движение в вашем городе очень интенсивное?
 - 3. На вечеринке Джесики будет много людей?
 - 4. Нам не хватило времени вчера выполнить эту работу.
 - 5. Когда заканчиваются твои занятия?
 - 6. Мои друзья вернуться из отпуска только завтра.
 - 7. Я люблю полежать утром, в воскресенье.
- 8. Мой дядя бизнесмен. Он занимается строительным бизнесом.
 - 9. Мне надоело делать одно и то же.
 - 10. Как вы долетели до Парижа?
- 11. Извини. Я занят. У меня занятия по английскому языку.
 - 12. Кофе нет. Автомат не работает.
 - 13. Сегодня дети моего друга вели себя несносно.
- 14. Ты всегда отмечаешь свой день рождения со всеми друзьями?
 - 15. Я не представляю где это.
- 16. Погода прекрасная. Солнечно, тепло. На небе ни туч-ки!
 - 17. У них всегда были хорошие отношения друг с другом.
- 18. У моего брата есть способности к математике и физике.
- 19. Дети моего брата любят находиться на свежем воздухе.
- 20. Простите, вы не могли бы помочь? Я ищу магазин зимней одежды.



IV. MECTOUMEHUЯ SOME, ANY, NO, EVERY И ИХ ПРОИЗВОДНЫЕ

some –	any –	no –	every –
несколько, некоторые	любой, какой-нибудь	нет, никакого	каждый
somebody – кто-то	anybody – кто-нибудь	nobody – никто	everybody – каждый
someone	anyone	no one	everyone
something – что-то	anything – что-нибудь	nothing – ничто	everything – все
somewhere – где-то	anywhere – где-либо	nowhere – нигде	everywhere – везде

Наряду с неопределенным артиклем в качестве определителя существительного могут употребляться местоимения some и any.

Местоимения *some* и *any* употребляются для обозначения неопределенного количества предметов или вещества. Местоимение some имеет значение «несколько», «некоторые». *Some* употребляется в утвердительном предложении.

Ex. We have got some dictionaries. У нас есть несколько словарей.

Местоимение some может быть употреблено в вопросительных предложениях, как просьба или предложение.

Ex. Can I have some water, please? Можно мне воды?

Would you like some chocolate? Не хотите ли шоколад?

Местоимение *any* имеет значение «какие-то», «какиенибудь», либо «сколько-нибудь». Обычно употребляется в вопросительных и отрицательных предложениях, однако any может выступать и в утвердительных предложениях, где оно имеет значение «любой».

Ex. Are there any pens on the table? На столе есть какие-нибудь ручки?

Is there any meat on the frying-pan? В сковороде есть мясо?

I can read any English book in the original.

Я могу читать любую английскую книгу в подлиннике.

При наличии отрицания *not* местоимение *any* имеет значение «никакие» или «нисколько» и может быть заменено отрицательным местоимением *no*:

Ex. There aren't any flowers in the vase. В вазе нет цветов.

There are no flowers in the vase. В вазе нет цветов.



Производные местоимения и наречия употребляются по те	M
же правилам, что и неопределенные местоимения some, any, no	0,
every.	

Когда эти местоимения употребляются в качестве подлежащего, глагол-сказуемое всегда стоит в единственном числе.

Ex. There is nobody in that room. В той комнате никого нет.

Exercises

1. Вставьте some или any в зависимости от контекст	a.
DAN: Let's go for a picnic by the river tomorrow.	
RUTH: Ok. We'll make (1) some sandwiches. What do we need	<u>†?</u>
DAN: We haven't got (2) bread. Can you buy (3)?	
RUTH: Yes, sure. What about butter?	
DAN: We're got (4) I'll buy (5) cheese.	
RUTH: Ok, and is there (6) orange juice in the fridge?	
DAN: No, I'll get (7)	
RUTH: Good. Do we need (8) apples or cherries?	
DAN: Just (9) apples.	
RUTH: Oh dear! I haven't got (10) money to buy the	ne
bread!	
DAN: Don't worry. I'll lend you (11)	
, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	
2. Вставьте производные от some, any, no в завис	и-
мости от контекста.	
1. There was a thunderstorm during the night but I heard not	<u>h-</u>
ing.	
2. There isn't I like on the menu.	
3. Fred isn't a nice person likes him.	
4. I can't hear Can you turn the radio up?	
5. Sheila's lonely in London because she doesn't know	
6. What's that in your hand?	
7. I haven't bought for Sarah's birthday.	
8 can help you. You must do it yourself.	
9. A: What are you doing tonight? B:	
10. Ken was in hospital for two days but went to see	ee
him.	
11. There wasn't in the cinema. Is was complete	ly
empty.	-

some, any, no, every и их производные

3. Заполните предложения, используя местоимения



 I feel a bit sick. I think I've eaten <u>something</u> bad.
2. Did telephone me last night?
3. A: What's the matter? B: I think there's in the
garden.
4. A: What's wrong? B: I've put in my coffee, and it
wasn't sugar!
5. Please don't tell about the letter. It's a secret.
6. You look bored. Would you like to do?
7. Has seen my bicycle? It's not in the garage.
8. There isn't to watch on TV tonight. Let's go out.
9 dropped a 10 note in the street outside my
house yesterday.
10. I don't think I've learnt from his lecture.
4. Прочитайте письмо и вставьте нужное местоиме-
ние.
Hi Sarah,
I've got <u>something interesting</u> (interesting) to tell you but
you mustn't tell (else) because it's a secret.
Clare has split up with Michael and she's seeing ²
(new). His name's Toby and she says he's a builder, but she
hasn't told me ³ (else) about him. That's a surprise isn't
it? She didn't say ⁴ to me about problems with Mi-
chael before this happened and ⁵ (else) was expecting it
to happen – we were all very surprised. Well, apart from that,
⁶ (else) is normal and ⁷ (unusual) has happened
since I last wrote to you. I haven't been8 (exciting) and I
haven't done ⁹ (different) from the usual routine.
¹⁰ is quite boring in my life. I hope
happens soon.
Love to ¹² in your family.
Monica
5. Выберите правильный вариант.
1. Is there some/any butter in the fridge?

- 2. There isn't any/no bread in the bag.
- 3. There are some/any cucumbers on the table.
- 4. There are any/no potatoes in the box.
- 5. There is/are some cheese on the shelf.

6. Вставьте some/any/no.





FRED: All with	my friends are on holiday so I haven't got (3)
KEN: MEG: KEN:	Let's have lunch in this restaurant. It looks very busy. Is there (4)? Yes, there are two seats over there.
LIZ: TIM: Liz:	We're going to Rome in September. Wonderful. Yes, but we've got a problem. We haven't got (5) yet.
TIM: free rooms.	Have you tried The Plaza Hotel? They usually have
PAM: end and I need (6 CAROL: Yo	I'm going to a really important party at the week- b) u can borrow my new black dress if you want.
JERRY: I ha TANYA: Of	ry, go and talk to Annie. She's in the kitchen. aven't got (7) course you have! You always have lots to say. Go
and talk about for	
з. дополі дите его на рус	ните диалог нужной информацией. Переве- эский язык.
ANNE You I TIM I've los ANNE What	look worried. What's the problem? st <u>something</u> ⁰ . t?
TIM My not ANNE Perhalocker, for examp	rebook. I've looked ¹ for it but I can't find it aps you left it ³ atcollege. Is it in your
TIM No, the	ere's ⁴ in my locker, it's completely emp-
	maybe ⁵ took it byaccident. e asked ⁶ in my class but ⁷ has
got it.	
checked in all you	, there must be ⁸ you can do. Have you
TIM Of cou	urse I have. Oh, just a minute, there's ⁹ in 't usually keep ¹⁰ in there. Ah, guess what it



4. Переведите следующее письмо на английский язык.

Дорогой Фил!

Я здесь уже два месяца и мне не нравится это место. Я не встретил здесь ничего интересного. А также здесь слишком тихо вечером. Все магазины, рестораны закрываются рано и улицы пустынны. Некуда пойти и нет ничего интересного по телевизору.

Вчера мне кто-то сказал о спортивном клубе, где-то недалеко от моего дома. Поэтому я решил попробовать. Он находится всего лишь в 10 минутах от моего дома. Там есть силовые тренажеры (weight-training), теннис, плавательный бассейн и люди очень дружелюбные. Никто не говорит тебе что делать. Ты выбираешь сам. Как-то вечером со мной поздоровалась девушка и спросила: «Чем вы занимаетесь сегодня вечером?», а затем она добавила: «Вы бы не хотели выйти куда-нибудь в кафе?» И я согласился. Мы здорово провели время, и я подумал, что город становится лучше.

Всего наилучшего.

Джофрей



V. ПРИЛАГАТЕЛЬНОЕ

Степени сравнения прилагательных

Прилагательное имеет **три** степени сравнения.

Односложное	Положительная fast – быстрый	<i>Сравнительная</i> faster – быстрее	Превосходная the fastest- самый быстрый
Многосложное	<i>expensive</i> – дорогой <i>good</i> – хороший	<i>more expensive –</i> дороже better – лучше	the most expensive — самый дорогой the best — самый
	<i>bad</i> — плохой <i>little</i> — маленький	<i>worse</i> – хуже less – меньше	лучший the worst – наихудший the least – самый
Исключения	<i>old</i> – старый	older – старше elder – старше	маленький the oldest — самый старый the eldest — самый старший

Прилагательные могут употребляться с глаголами to be, to look, to feel, to smell, to taste, to sound.

Ex. He is (feels/looks) tired.

They are (look/sound) American.

It is (smells/tastes) good.

Прилагательные употребляются в сравнительных конструкциях:

as ... as — такой же, как ; **not so ... as** — не такой, как.

Ex. Rostov is as beautiful as Krasnodar.

Rome is *not as old as* Athens.

Не забывайте употреблять союз **than** при сравнительной степени прилагательного!

Ex. Tom is taller *than* Pete. – Том выше, чем Пит.

Exercises

- 1. Поставьте прилагательные в скобках в правильную степень сравнения.
- 1. My bike's quite slow and I want to get a faster (fast) one.



-1	2. I want to get a(expensive)camera than the one
I've g	
	3. I've got an old computer and I want one that's (modern).
	4. My games console is OK but I want a (good) one.5. I'd really like to have a(nice) guitar.
	6. My phone isn't very good and I want a (advanced)
ono	o. My priorie isi it very good and I want a (advanced)
one.	7. I need new exercise equipment because I want to get
	(fit).
	8. My music system is getting (bad) and I need a new
one.	
	9. I want a car that's (powerful) than the one I've
got.	
	2. Найдите ошибки в предложениях и запишите пра-
виль	ный вариант.
aha d	1. He got up more early than she did. He got up earlier than
she d	
	2. My computer is moderner than yours3. Jack is a more good player than me
	4. It's a bit hotter today.
	5. Is it more interesting as his last book?
	6. He paid less than you for the ticket
	7. My mother is the same age like my father
	8. Ann's headache is badder today.
	9. She lives much more far away now
	,,
	3. Составьте предложения из слов в скобках, упо-
треб.	ляя правильную сравнительную конструкцию для
прил	агательных. Используйте необходимые дополни-
телы	ные глаголы.
	1. (Mexico City / London / expensive / crowded)
	Mexico City isn't as expensive as London but it is more crowded.
	2. (city life / village life / friendly / exciting)
	3. (motorways / country roads / interesting / fast)
	4. (travelling by plane / travelling by bus / cheap / comfortable)
	5. (Egypt / Iceland / green / warm)



6. (bicycles / cars / comfortable / easy to park)

4. Выберите прилагательное или наречие, чтобы сделать предложения грамматически правильными.

Examples: It is clear. I see it clearly.

- 1. It is (correct, correctly).
- 2. Spell the word (correct, correctly).
- 3. You know it (good, well).
- 4. Of course it is (good, well).
- 5. It is (cold, coldly) in the room.
- 6. Don't look so (cold, coldly) at me.
- 7. It is (easy, easily).
- 8. I can do it (easy, easily).
- 9. It is (warm, warmly) today.
- 10. He always greets us (warm, warmly).

5. Поставьте прилагательные в правильной форме.

- 1. John is (young) of the 3 brothers.
- 2. The Sun is (bright) the Moon.
- 3. Is the diameter of Jupiter (big) than that of the Earth?
- 4. That room is (light) than yours.
- 5. This room is (large) than the one upstairs.
- 6. It doesn't take (much) than four days to cross the Atlantic, does it?

6. Выберите правильную форму прилагательного.

- 1. Jane is the (taller tallest) of the 2 girls.
- 2. Father was the (eldest elder) of seven sons.
- 3. Albert is (*elder older*) than John.
- 4. I think your plan is the (best better) of the two.
- 5. This is the (most large-largest) power station, I've ever seen.
 - 6. Henry is the (oldest eldest) of the 3 brothers.

Review

- 1. Составьте предложения из предложенных слов, используя дополнительные необходимые глаголы и правильную степень прилагательного.
 - 1. (cars / fast)

Cars are faster than they were.



•	milaren / more things)	<u>Children have got more things</u>					
than they h							
	eople / not work / hard)	People don't work as hard as					
they did.							
	fe / expensive)						
5. (p	people / not / friendly)						
6. (f	ilms / violent)						
7. (p	eople / live / long)						
8. (h	nouse / good)						
9. (f	amilies / not big)						
10. ((children / freedom)						
11. ((people / eat / good food)						
2. Г	Ірочитайте диалог и у	потребите прилагательные					
	с в правильной степен						
		ht, I think it'll be <i>more exciting</i>					
	ting) Dark Woods.						
		¹ (scary). And you get					
	htened) me in horror films,						
	E That's true. You're	³ (brave) me, and					
	ays ⁴ (calm).						
		e Dark Woods. The reviews say					
	⁵ (funny) Moonlight.						
		⁶ (popular), every one's talk-					
ing about i	t.						
BRE	NDA I know, but it'll be	⁷ (easy) to get tickets					
	oods 8 (Few) peop						
		nt will be ⁹ (entertaining).					
	NDA OK, we'll see Moonligh						
	ыберите верный вариа						
	The fish was so tasty as/a						
b)	This book is the most into	eresting/the more interesting I've					
ever read.							
c)	This temple is the eldest/						
d)	That dress is a lot longer						
e)	Nothing is worse/worst than being stuck in a traffic jam.						
f)	That skyscraper is one of	the <u>taller/tallest</u> buildings in the					
world.							
g)	The test wasn't as hard a						
h)	Actually, today I feel mo	ore bad/worse than I did yester-					
dav							

Our journey took longer than/the longest we expected.

i)



j) Could you work <u>more quietly/more quieter</u> please?

4. Выберите в скобках подходящее по смыслу прилагательное.

Пример: The ghost was ... (frightening/frightened). (Привидение было страшным.) – The ghost was frightening.

- 1. Our trip will be ... (tiring/tired). (Наша поездка будет утомительной.)
- 2. He always feels ... (boring/bored) during his vacation. (Ему всегда скучно на каникулах.)
- 3. I really enjoyed a ... (relaxing/relaxed) walk near the sea. (Мне очень понравилась расслабляющая прогулка у моря.)
- 4. John was ... (disappointing/disappointed) by the results of his exams. (Джон был расстроен результатами своих экзаменов.)
- 5. I'm leaving for Milan tomorrow and I am ... (exciting/excited). (Я уезжаю завтра в Милан, и я взволнована.)
- 6. My Dad is ... (interesting/interested) in politics. (Мой отец интересуется политикой.)
- 7. I got lost in the city because the map was ... (confusing/confused). (Я потерялся в городе, потому что карта была запутанной.)
- 8. Ann is ... (surprising/surprised) by the news. (Аня удивлена новостям.)
- 9. Your reasons are not ... (convincing/convinced) for me. (Твои доводы неубедительны для меня.)
- 10. They looked ... (amusing/amused) by the presents. (Они были приятно удивлены подарками.)

5. Переведите следующие предложения с русского языка на английский.

1.Новый Год — самый замечательный праздник в году. 2. Книга — самый хороший подарок. 3. Чем скорее ты покинешь страну, тем лучше. 4. Это самый восхитительный пирог, который я когда-либо ел. 5. Чем больше я думаю об этом, тем меньше понимаю это. 6. Нет ничего лучше, чем чашечка горячего шоколада. 7. Постарайтесь сделать свой доклад как можно короче. 8. Для него нет ничего важнее, чем его карьера. 9. Из двух братьев Генри более умный. 10. Мед — самый сладкий продукт. 11. Какое из этих двух лекарств более эффективно? 12. Чем больше людей придет на вечер, тем лучше. 13. Чем меньше ты будешь знать, тем лучше. 14. Он не такой умный, как ты думаешь. 15. Русский язык гораздо труднее, чем английский.



VI. ПРЕДЛОГИ

Предлоги времени:

8 o'clock Sunday April at 10.30 on 25 April in 1985 midnight New Year's day Summer

Устойчивые словосочетания:

At the weekend – на выходных In the morning, in the afternoon,

At night – ночью in the evening – утром, днем,

At Christmas – на рождество вечером

At the end of... – в конце... On Monday morning – в

At the moment – в данный понедельник утром

момент In five minutes – через 5 минут

Co словами this, last, next, every эти предлоги не употребляются.

Ex. This morning – сегодня утром Last year – в прошлом году

Предлоги места и направления:

On the table – на столе, на At the theatre – в театре стол To the theatre – в театр

In the room – в комнате In bed – в постели Into the room – в комнату To bed – в постель

At the wall – у стены In the north (south, east, To the wall – к стене west) – на севере (юге,

At the table - за столом, за востоке, западе)

стол

Устойчивые словосочетания:

In a street – на улице
In the sky – на небе
In a picture – на картине
In the world – в мире
At the top (bottom) of the page – вверху (внизу)

страницы
At home – дома

At the traffic lights — на At work — на работе светофоре At school — в школе

At the bus-stop – на At my sister's – в гостях у остановке сестры

Предлоги пространства:

On a wall — на стене Under the table — под столом Next to me (beside) — рядом со мной Between — между In front of me — передо мной Behind me — за мной Opposite me — напротив меня Above (below) me — надо

мной (ниже меня)



Предлоги направления:

To the station — на вокзал Into the room — в комнату Out of the car — из машины Up the hill — вверх в гору Over the mountains — над горами Through a window — через окно Along the street — по улице Across a river — через реку Past the cinema — мимо кинотеатра

Exercises

1. Поставьте подходящий предлог: in, at или on. Используйте картинку вверху.

- 1. My husband was born ... Germany. (Мой муж родился в Германии.)
- 2. The dog is sleeping ... the grass ... our garden. (Собака спит на траве в нашем саду.)
- 3. There are two funny posters ... the wall ... my bedroom. (На стене в моей спальне висят два забавных постера.)
- 4. Let's meet ... the bus station. (Давай встретимся на автовокзале.)
- 5. My room was ... the third floor. (Моя комната была на третьем этаже.)
- 6. He left his bicycle ... the pavement. (Он оставил велосипед на тротуаре.)
- 7. There is a big hole ... my pocket. (В моем кармане большая дыра.)
- 8. Have you heard some noise ... the street? (Ты слышал какой-то шум на улице?)
- 9. My favourite restaurant is ... King street. (Мой любимый ресторан находится на Кинг стрит.)
- 10. I think I know this girl ... the picture. (Кажется, я знаю эту девушку на фотографии.)
- 11. A huge fly was creeping ... the picture. (Огромная муха ползала по фотографии.)
- 12. I prefer to spend my weekends ... home. (Я предпочитаю проводить выходные дома.)
- 13. Look at those black clouds ... the sky. (Посмотри на те черные тучи в небе.)
- 14. You should turn left ... the traffic lights. (Тебе нужно повернуть налево у светофора.)
- 15. Sophie is ... the dentist's now. (Софи у стоматолога сейчас.)



16. Tom usually has breakfast ... school. (Том обычно завтракает в школе.)

2. Выберите подходящий предлог и переведите предложения.

- 1. The clock hangs on the wall, ... the table. (above/under/on)
- 2. He has played Hamlet ... the stage many times. (on/in/next to)
- 3. The bank is ... the post-office and the beauty salon. (behind/at/between)
 - 4. The ball has rolled ... the bed. (on/under/above)
- 5. Bob and Jane were sitting in the café ... each other. (between/behind/in front of)
 - 6. The gym is ... my college. (next to/on/between)
 - 7. The monument is ... the right. (in/at/on)
 - 8. The office address is ... the top of the page. (in/at/above)
 - 9. He spends all his life ... work. (in/at/on)
 - 10. The kettle is boiling ... the kitchen. (in/at/on)

3. Вставьте предлоги on, in или into.

1. Where is the book? - - It is ... the table. 2. Where is the tea? — It is ... the cup. 3. Put the plates ... the table. 4. Put the book ... the bag. 5. There is a beautiful picture ... the wall. 6. He went ... the room. 7. I like to sit ... the sofa ... my room. 8. Mother is cooking dinner ... the kitchen. 9. She went ... the room and sat down ... the sofa. 10. There are many people ... the park today. 11. There is a girl standing ... the bridge. Why is she crying? – She has dropped her doll ... the water. 12. There is no tea ... my cup. 13. Pour some tea ... my cup. 14. Put these flowers ... the window-sill. 15. I saw many people ... the platform waiting for the train. 16. We went ... the garden and sat down ... a bench. 17. The teacher hung a picture ... the blackboard. 18. I opened the door and went ... the classroom. The teacher was writing some words ... the blackboard. The pupils were writing these words ... their exercise-books. There were some books and pens ... the teacher's table. There were two maps ... the wall and some flowers ... the window-sills. I saw a pen ... the floor. I picked it up and put it ... the table. 19. He put his hand ... his pocket, took out a letter and dropped it ... the mail-box which hung ... the wall of the house. Then he got ... his car and drove off.



4. Вставьте предлоги *in* или *to*.

1. We did not want to stay ... town on such a hot day, so we went ... the country. 2. It is very late: Go ... bed at once. 3. Where is your little sister? – - She is ... bed. Mother always puts her ... bed at eight o'clock. 4. In summer my mother does not go ... work and I don't go ... school. We live ... the country. My father goes ... work every day, so he stays ... town. But sometimes he comes ... the country after work and goes back ... town early in the morning, when I am still ... bed. 5. In winter I usually go ... bed at ten o'clock because I learn ... school and have to get up early.

5. Переведите на английский язык следующие словосочетания.

В четыре часа, в половине шестого, без четверти три, на закате, в четверть пятого, в полночь, в пять минут шестого, без десяти два, полдень, на восходе солнца, в двадцать пять третьего.

6. Вставьте предлоги *to* или *of*.

1. He bought a book ... English poems and gave it... his sister.

2. I wrote ... him asking to send me a box ... chocolates. 3. The roof ... the house is very old. 4. There is a monument ... Pushkin in the Square ... Arts. 5. One wheel ... my car must be changed. 6. He was standing outside the door ... his house and explaining ... the mechanic what was wrong with his car. 7. He gave her a big bunch ... flowers.

8. I sent a letter ... my friend. 9. The streets ... St. Petersburg are straight. 10. Many pages ... this book are torn. 11. The young scientist was trying to prove ... the professor the necessity ... the experiment.

7. Вставьте предлоги with или by.

1. The boy cut his finger ... a knife. 2. The boat was carried ... the waves into the open sea. 3. The teacher was pleased ... our work. 4. America was discovered ... Columbus. 5. "Hamlet" was written Shakespeare. 6. We eat soup ... a spoon. 7. He was killed ... a knife. 8. He was killed ... the robbers. 9. He was knocked down ... a big stick. 10. He was knocked down ... a car. 11. He was taken to hospital... an ambulance. 12. He was treated... very effective drugs. 13. He was cured ... a very skilful doctor. 14. He wrote his letter ... a pencil. 15. He was scolded ... his mother.



Review

1. Вставьте подходящие по смыслу предлоги вместо пропусков.

- 1. There are very many German books ... their library. В их библиотеке очень много немецких книг.
- 2. Our friends have seen nobody ... the beach. Наши друзья никого не видели на пляже.
- 3. Your son dropped his ball ... the river. Твой сын уронил в реку свой мяч.
- 4. There are no tomatoes and no cucumbers ... Jane`s plate. На тарелке Джейн нет помидоров и огурцов.
- 5. John must put his pens ... his pencil-box. Джон должен сложить свои ручки в пенал.
- 6. What did your teacher write ... the blackboard? Что ваш учитель написал на доске?
- 7. Our children will see many interesting animals ... the Zoo. Наши дети увидят в зоопарке много интересных животных.
- 8. Do you have anything ... your pockets? У вас есть чтонибудь в карманах?
- 9. Mary doesn`t want to sit ... this chair. Мэри не хочет сидеть на этом стуле.
- 10. Our granny is not ... the house. She is ... the garden. Наша бабушка не в доме. Она в саду.
- 11. Jane puts newspapers and magazines ... the box. Джейн кладет газеты и журналы в ящик.
- 12. My husband likes to sleep ... this sofa. Мой муж любит спать на этом диване.

2. Вставьте соответствующие предлоги времени вместо пропусков.

- 1. Jennifer is going to come here ... the eighth of December.
- 2. Our pupils had the last test ... Wednesday.
- 3. Jane's elder brother was born ... January, 1999.
- 4. My relatives will fly to Tunisia ... five days.
- 5. Our children stay in the swimming-pool ... two hours.
- 6. George got up ... 04.40 a.m. a day before yesterday.
- 7. Renate was going to the library ... classes.
- 8. Their boss will be busy ... 16.00 ... 19.00.
- 9. Your parents will stay there ... the performance.
- 10. Jack wants to go to Africa ... the long cold winter.
- 11. You will get your invitation ... noon.



- 12. My cousin has been working in this famous company \dots 2005.
- 13. Sarah will not be able to read that report ... such a short break.
 - 14. They came back to their hotel ... seven o'clock p.m.
 - 15. Gloria helped them ... 06.00 a.m. that morning.
 - 16. He has driven ... five hours.
 - 17. That person went to Germany ... seven weeks.
- 3. Переведите предложенные словосочетания на английский язык, обращая особое внимание на то, на какой вопрос отвечают зависимые от глаголов слова «где?» или «куда?».

Прыгнуть в холодное озеро, купаться в реке, играть на траве, играть в шахматы, положить в ящик для игрушек, хранить под креслом, висеть на фасаде дома, ходить в музыкальную школу, учиться в техническом университете, поступить в университет, прийти к друзьям его брата, продавать в магазине, поехать в южные страны, поставить у кухонного окна, спать на полу, находиться в пенале, жарить на большой сковороде, варить (= кипятить) в кастрюле, смешивать в стакане, положить на полку, загорать на пляжах, нырять в море, уронить в суп, работать в городском парке, сидеть на новой скамейке, ложиться в постель, ехать на трамвае, сесть в машину, сидеть за круглым столом, прыгнуть на стол, путешествовать на автобусе, залезть на большой дуб, отдыхать на побережье.

4. Переведите на английский язык следующие словосочетания.

В четыре часа, в половине шестого, без четверти три, на закате, в четверть пятого, в полночь, в пять минут шестого, без десяти два, полдень, на восходе солнца, в двадцать пять третьего.



VII.ЧИСЛИТЕЛЬНЫЕ

1-10	11-19	20)-100
1- one 2 – two 3 – three 4 – four 5 – five 6 – six	11 – Eleven 12 – Twelve 13 – Thirteen 14 – Fourteen 15 – Fifteen	20 – twenty 30 – thirty 40 – forty 50 – fifty	60 – sixty 70 – seventy 80 – eighty 90 – ninety
7 – seven 8 – eight 9 – nine 10 – ten	16 – Sixteen17 – Seventeen18 – Eighteen19 – Nineteen	1000 – a thous 1.000.000 – a	lred /one hundred sand /one thousand million / one million – a billion /one billion

Год читается: **19 64 – nineteen sixty four**.

Цифра читается: **1964 – one thousand nine hundred six-ty four**.

Порядковые числительные:

- 1-й *the first*
- 2-й *the second*
- 3-й *the third*

Остальные порядковые числительные образуются прибавлением – $\it the$ к количественным числительным:

- 4-й *the fourth*
- 5-й *the fifth*
- 6-й *the sixth* и т.д.

Exercises

1. Соотнесите числительные прописью с числительными, обозначенными цифрами. Пример: 1 – d

1.	seventy-two	a) 31
2.	thirteen	b) 11
3.	fifty-six	c) 660
4.	eighty	d) 72
5.	eighteen	e) 315
6.	twenty-three	f) 100
7.	eleven	g) 13
8.	ninety	h) 49
9.	twelve	i) 925



10.	twenty	j) 18
11.	nineteen	k) 80
12.	forty-nine	l) 504
13.	one hundred	m) 217
14.	thirty-one	n) 410
15.	four hundred and ten	o) 90
16.	six hundred and sixty	p) 56
17.	five hundred and four	q) 23
18.	nine hundred and twenty-five	r) 20
19.	two hundred and seventeen	s) 19
20.	three hundred and fifteen	t) 12

2. Преобразуйте количественные числительные в порядковые.

Пример: one (один) – the first (первый), thirty (тридцать) – the thirtieth (тридцатый), sixty-four (шестьдесят-четыре) – the sixty-fourth (шестьдесят четвертый)

two twenty-five eighty-three ninety-six seven hundred and sixteen thirty-eight

twelve ten

eleven two thousand and nine

3. Напишите указанные в скобках даты словами.

Пример: I was born on (13.05.1976). (Я родился) — I was born on the thirteenth of May, nineteen seventy-six.

- 1. My son was born on (02.12.2000).
- 2. Our dog was born on (21.08.2008).
- 3. My granddad was born on (23.06.1900).
- 4. My granny was born on (18.02.1910).

4. Напишите дроби словами.

Пример: 5/6 – five sixths, 2/3 – two thirds 1. 1/2 5. 9/10 2. 5/8 6. 11/12 3. 1/3 7. 2/5 4. 4/7 8. 3/4

5. Напишите следующие количественные числительные буквами и образуйте соответствующие порядковые числительные.



1; 2; 3; 4; 5; 11; 12; 14; 15; 21; 25; 28; 30; 52; 67; 74; 83; 99; 100.

6. Напишите по-английски.

- 1. 245; 533; 816.
- 2. 3,562; 7,324.
- 3. Сто книг; сотня страниц; сотни людей.
- 4. Тысяча машин; тысячи людей; миллион книг.
- 5. 2+3=5; 7-4=3; 3x5=15; 10:2=5.
- 6. 1 Января; 8 Марта.
- 7. Глава 5; автобус 6.
- 8. 3.45; 8.09.
- 9. 2/3; 4/5.

Review

1. Переведите на английский язык

25 км; 163 тысячи долларов; 90 картин; 200 миллионов людей; 3500 втомобилей; 4 тысячи машин; сотни автомобилей; десятки журналов; тысячи студентов; миллионы людей.

2. Прочитайте даты:

in 1965; in 1907; in 1945; in 1998; in 2000; in 2008; at the beginning of 2000; at the end of 1729; by the beginning of 2005; by the end of 2004. 1/2 kilometer; 1/8 ton; 0.5; 4.26; 1.234.

3. Переведите на английский язык.

30 марта; 1 ноября; 15 сентября; 2 июля; к 3 августа; к 14 апреля; к 29 ноября; к 24 февраля.



4. Найдите 14 числительных в представленном кроссворде.

t	h	0	u	S	а	n	d		t	
m	w	n	h			е	i	g	h	t
i		е	u		е			S	i	x
I	n	ï	n	е					r	
ı		t	d	d	h	r	е	е	t	
i	w		r		у	V		v	У	
0		t	е	n	i				е	
n			d	f	i	f	t	е	е	n



VIII.MECTOИMEHHЫЕ ПРИЛАГАТЕЛЬНЫЕ MUCH, MANY, LITTLE, FEW, A LITTLE, A FEW

с исчисляемыми существительными

many – много a few – несколько few – мало

с неисчисляемыми существительными

much – много a little – немного little – мало

Much «много», little «мало» определяют неисчисляемые существительные. *Many* «много», few «мало» определяют исчисляемые существительные:

Is there much light in your room? No, there isn't. There isn't much light in my room. There is little light in my room.

Are there many forks in the drawer? No, there aren't. There aren't many forks in the drawer. There are few forks in the drawer.



Little и few в сочетании с неопределенным артиклем образуют устойчивые сочетания со значением: a few «несколько», a little «немного», «несколько». Эти словосочетания имеют положительное значение, а словосочетания без артикля имеют отрицательное значение.

I have a few friends here. – У меня есть несколько друзей здесь. (Ср. I have few friends here. У меня мало (почти нет) друзей здесь.)

There is a little milk in the saucer. – В блюдце есть немного молока. (Ср. There is little milk in the saucer. В блюдце мало (почти нет) молока).



	с исчисляемыми существительными	с неисчисляемыми существительными
количественные местоимения	many — много few — мало (недостаточно) a few — несколько, немного (есть) several — несколько	much — <i>много</i> little — <i>мало</i> <i>(недостаточно)</i> a little — <i>немного (есть)</i>
другие определители количества		ольшое количество ожество; plenty of — много а great deal of -много, большое количество

В утвердительных предложениях чаще употребляются *a lot of, lots of,* как с исчисляемыми существительными, так и с неисчисляемыми.

What I liked about her, she didn't give you a lot of horse manure about what a great guy her father was. — Мне в ней нравилось, что она не несла бред про то, какой крутой у неё папаша.

He owned a lot of books, though, and kept buying new ones, and giving me those he thought were particularly well done. — У него было много книг, но он продолжал покупать новые и давал мне, те, которые по его мнению были особенно хорошо написаны.

Here is lots of wood, let us stop and cook some dinner. — Здесь много дров, давайте остановимся и приготовим какой-нибудь обед.

Наречия *few* и *little* (не путать с прилагательным «маленький») означают «мало», причём little используется с неисчисляемыми существительными, few — с исчисляемыми.

Hurry up! There's little time! — Торопись! У нас мало времени! The funeral was packed, since few dared to be absent. — Похороны были многолюдными, поскольку мало кто осмелился не прийти.

Наречия *a little* и *a few* используются с артиклями, их значения становятся иными – «немного», «небольшое количество», «несколько».

They were around my age, or maybe just a little older. — Они были примерно моего возраста, может быть, чуть старше.



В некоторых случаях может употребляться определённый артикль the. Тогда *the few* может иметь значение «те несколько», «те немногие», а *the little* – «то небольшое количество».

Bonasera went out of the house and walked the few blocks to his funeral parlor. — Бонасера вышел из дома и прошёл несколько кварталов до своего похоронного бюро.

Exercises

- 1. Прочитайте предложения и поставьте «Т» (true) при правильном использовании «much» или «many», «F» (false) при неверном.
 - 1. We don't have many food in the house.
 - 2. I can't give you many information about the company.
 - 3. I need much apples for the pie.
 - 4. How many people are there in your office?
 - 5. There is much wine in the
 - 6. She doesn't have many luggage.
 - 7. My son earns much money now.
 - 8. They saw many snow in the mountains.
 - 9. I have tried diving many times in my life.
 - 10. John will have much exams next year.
- 2. Прочитайте предложения и вставьте «much» или «many» для выражения «Сколько...?».
 - How ... days?
 How ... petrol?
 How ... children?
 How ... cigarettes?
 How ... theatres?
 - 4. How ... work? 8. How ... juice?
- 3. Прочитайте предложения и вставьте «a lot of», где это необходимо. Переведите предложения на русский язык.
 - 1. We met interesting people at the party.
 - 2. I ate fish for lunch.

6.

- 3. She bought nice shoes for the next summer.
- 4. They have problems in their business.
- 5. There is water in the bath.
- 4. Перепишите вопросительные предложения, заменив «some» на «a little» или «a few».
 - 1. Would you like some cheese?



- 2. Would you like some mineral water?
- 3. Would you like some strawberries?
- 4. Can I offer you some black coffee?
- 5. Can I offer you some bread?
- 6. Shall I bring you some biscuits?
- 7. Shall I bring you some plums?
- 8. Would you like some meat?

5. Прочитайте предложения и закончите их, используя нужное слово в скобках.

- 1. There is too ... (much/many/a few) salt in the soup.
- 2. There are ... (much/a little/a few) sky-scrapers in our city.
- 3. I've got ... (much/a few/a little) albums of this singer.
- 4. My job allows me to travel ... (much/many/a few).
- 5. We've got ... (little/many/few) free time.
- 6. I have never seen so ... (much/little/many) stars in the sky.
 - 7. Anna spent ... (much/a few/a little) days in Rome.
 - 8. I'd like just ... (much/a few/a little) tea.
 - 9. There was very ... (little/few/many) rain last autumn.
- 10. Very ... (few/little/much) Russian tourists are staying at our hotel.

Review

1. Закончите	предложен	ия, используя	"mucn",
"many", "a lot of".	•	•	·
1. There are		birds in the sky.	
2. I haven't got		homework today.	
3. John hasn't got _		money.	
4. There aren't		cars in the street.	
5. There is		coffee in the cup.	
6. Are there		apples on the tree?	
7. Jane spends		money at the shops	S.
8. Have you got		bread in the cupboa	ard?
9. Are there		children on the bea	ch?
10. We are early. \			
2. Прочитайте п	редложения	и выберите праі	вильный
вариант ответа.			
1. Have you got		friends?	
A) many	B) much	C) a lot of	
2. There are		people in the room.	



A) much	B) a little	C) a lot of
3. Can I have	sugai	r, please?
A) a few	B) a little	C) a lot of
4. How	oranges are	on the table?
A) many	B) a few	C) much
5. There are	mor	nkeys at the zoo
A) much	B) a few	C) a little
6. There are	chairs i	n the room.
A) a little	B) much	C) a few
7. There is	tuna in th	ne tin.
A) much	B) a few	C) a little
8. Please, buy	cucumbe	ers!
A) a little	B) many	C) a few
9. We don't need	eggs.	
A) much	B) a little	C) a lot of

3. Переведите предложения на английский язык.

- 1. В подвале много воды.
- 2. Я был сильно напуган.
- 3. У вас много комнат в доме?
- 4. Многие из политиков являются честными людьми.
- 5. Много раз я наблюдал это зрелище.
- 6. Сколько лошадей на той ферме?
- 7. Многие считают, что неспособны чего-то добиться.
- 8. Сколько денег было потрачено?
- 9. Я потратил уйму денег.
- 10. Я потратил столько, сколько смог.
- 11. Мы унесли столько кирпичей, сколько смогли.
- 12. Там масса всякого зверья и птицы.
- 13. У нас мало горючего!
- 14. Немногие знают всю правду.
- 15. Надо проехать ещё несколько километров.
- 16. В мешке было килограммов десять муки или немного больше.
 - 17. Мы проделали это ещё много раз.



ІХ. ГЛАГОЛ ТО ВЕ

Глагол **to be** — *быть, существовать, являться, находиться.* Это единственный глагол, который имеет совершенно непохожие на инфинитив (**be**) формы: в Present Indefinite — **am / is / are**, а в Past Indefinite — **was / were.** Он <u>всегда</u> образует вопросительную и отрицательную формы без вспомогательного **do**.

В вопросительных предложениях соответствующие формы глагола **to be** ставятся перед подлежащим.

В отрицательной форме после глагола ставится частица **not**.

I **am** a student. Я-студент:; **Am** I a student? Я студент?, I **am not** a student. Я **не** студент.

She was busy yesterday. Она была занята вчера.;

Was she busy yesterday? Была (ли) она занята вчера?,

She **was <u>not</u>** busy yesterday. *Она не была занята вчера.*

В устной речи употребляются сокращенные формы **isn't** и **aren't**, а также **wasn't** и **weren't**. **Am not** сокращенной формы не имеет.

Сводная таблица спряжения глагола "to be". Прошедшее, настоящее, будущее время. Вопросительное, повествовательное, отрицательное предложения.

to be (быть)	?		+ -		+		
Am	I		I	am	I	am+not	
Is	He She		He She	is	He She	is+not	Настоящее
Are	You We They	?	You We They	are	You We They	are+not	время
Will, Will not (Won't)	I He She You We They	be?	I He She You We They	will be	I He She You We They	won't be	Будущее время
Was	I He She	?	I He She	was	I He She	wasn't	Прошедшее время

Управление дистанционного обучения и повышения квалификации



Английский язык

Were	You We	You We	were	You We	weren't
	They	They		They	

В конструкциях **there is / are/ was/ were/ will be** отрицательные предложения образуются при помощи отрицательного местоимения **no**:

There is a picture on the wall. На стене висит (есть, находится)

картина.

<u>There was</u> **no** picture on the wall. *Ha стене не было картины.*

Или отрицательной частицы **not**, если перед подлежащим стоит числительное или слова, обозначающие количество: many, much, enough и др.

<u>There are not two books on the На полке нет двух книг.</u> shelf.

В данной конструкции вопросы и краткие ответы строятся так:

Is there a picture on the wall? **Yes**, there **is**.

На стене висит картина?

Да. Нет.

Yes, there is.

No, there is not (isn't).

Exercises

1. Выберите правильную форму глагола to be.

- 1. Mary and Adam ... (am/is/are) married. (Мэри и Адам женаты.)
- 2. The show ... (was/were/be) terrific. (Представление было захватывающим.)
 - 3. He ... (am/is/are) a dentist. (Он дантист.)
- 4. She ... (will be/will is/will are) in Paris on Tuesday. (Она будет в Париже во вторник.)
- 5. The roads ... (was/were/be) slippery yesterday. (Дороги были скользкими вчера.)
- 6. I ... (is/am/are) never late for my work. (Я никогда не опаздываю на работу.)
 - 7. Her hair ... (is/am/are) blonde. (Ее волосы светлые.)



- 8. My shoes ... (am/is/are) too tight. (Мои туфли слишком узкие.)
- 9. The entrance door ... (was/were/be) closed. (Входная дверь была закрыта.)
- 10. The partners ... (was/were/be) satisfied. (Партнеры были довольны.)
- 2. Измените предложения с глаголом *to be* на будущее время, используя слова tomorrow — завтра, next day/week/month/year — на следующий день, на следующей неделе/в следующем месяце/году, iIn several days/week — через несколько дней/недель.
 - 1. Bob is not ashamed. (Бобу не стыдно.)
- 2. My parents are tired after work. (Мои родители устали после работы.)
- 3. The fridge was switched off. (Холодильник был выключен.)
- 4. The trucks were too dirty. (Грузовики были слишком грязными.)
- 5. Anna's cherry-pie is delicious. (Анин вишневый пирог вкусный.)
 - 6. We are not busy. (Мы не заняты.)
 - 7. The weather wasn't chilly. (Погода не была прохладной.)
 - 8. The books were not boring. (Книги не были скучными.)
- 3. Измените предложения с глаголом to be на прошедшее время, используя слова yesterday — вчера, last year/ month, week — в прошлом году/месяце/на прошлой неделе.
 - 1. My daughter is an economist. (Моя дочь экономист.)
 - 2. The mail will be delivered. (Почта будет доставлена.)
 - 3. The eggs are fresh. (Яйца свежие.)
 - 4. It isn't rainy. (Дождя нет.)
 - 5. I am at home. (Я дома.)
 - 6. We are not ready. (Мы не готовы.)
- 4. Прочитайте словосочетания с глаголом to be и переведите их на русский язык.
 - 1. To be in (out, away).
 - 2. To be off.
 - 3. To be through (with).
 - 4. To be over.
 - 5. To be back.
 - 6. To be (not) long.

- 7. To be hungry.
- 8. To be thirsty.
- 9. To be sleepy.
- 10.To be asleep. 11.To be tired.
- 12.To be tired.



13.To be sick and tired (of doing smth), fed up with.

14.To be exhausted.

15.To be all in (out of breath).

16.To be cold (warm, hot).

17.To be (un) well.

18.To be (un) happy (sad, glad, upset, anxious).

19.To be worried (about), nervous.

20.To be aware (of).

21.To be a success.

22.To be bored.

23.To be embarrassed (confused, shy), at a loss for words.

24.To be angry (with).

25.To be proud (of).

26.To be sorry (for doing smth, about smth).

27.To be on holiday (on business).

28.To be in love (with).

29.To be married (to).

30.To be single (a bachelor).

31.To be nice (kind) to.

32.To be on (in) time.

33.To be on fire.

34.To be to be attracted to someone.

35.To be afraid (of); frightened, scared (by).

36.To be acquainted (with).

37.To be sure.

38.To be fond (of), keen (on), interested (in).

39.To be present (at), absent (from).

40.To be late (for), in a hur-

41.To be worth (doing ...).

42.To be on duty.

43. To be out of work.

44. To be responsible (for).

45.To be on good terms with smb.

46. To be in one's shoes.

47.To be in good mood.

48.To be retired.

49.To be fired.

50.To be broke.

51.To be after.

52. To be disappointed.

53.To be wrong (mistaken, right).

54.To be surprised (at), astonished.

55.To be content (with).

56.To be delighted

57.To be ashamed.

58.To be busy (free).

59.To be engaged (in).

60.To be used to (doing smth).

61.To be good (bad) at doing smth.

62.To be different (from) ,alike smth.

63.To be eager.

64.To be excited.

65. To be in a hurry.

5. Переведите на английский язык, употребляя глагол to be в Present Simple.

- 1. Чья это ручка? Это моя ручка.
- 2. Чья это книга? Это ваша книга.



- 3. Чей это стол? Это стол моего брата.
- 4. Чья это сумка? Это сумка моей мамы.
- 5. Чей это карандаш? Это карандаш моей сестры.
- 6. Это твоя тетрадь? Да.
- 7. Это тетрадь твоего брата? Нет, это моя тетрадь.
- 8. Где ваш стол? Он посередине комнаты.
- 9. Где твоя ручка? Она в моем кармане.
- 10. Где твоя тетрадь? Она на столе.
- 11. Где твоя мама? Она на работе.
- 12. Где твой брат? Он в школе.
- 13. Где твоя сестра? Она дома.
- 14. Чей это карандаш? Это мой карандаш. А где мой карандаш? Он на столе.
- 15. Чьи это часы? Это мои часы. А где мои часы? Они на столе.

Review

1. Переспросите собеседника.

Пример: Kevin will be 20 years old tomorrow. (Кевину исполнится 20 лет завтра.) – Will Kevin be 20 years old tomorrow? (Кевину исполнится 20 лет завтра?)

- 1. She is thirsty. (Она хочет пить.)
- 2. They are afraid of monkeys. (Они боятся обезьян.)
- 3. The castles were very old. (Замки были очень древними.)
- 4. Sara was on holiday. (Сара была в отпуске.)
- 5. It will be cloudy tomorrow. (Завтра будет облачно.)

2. Переведите предложения на английский язык.

- 1. Я родом из Бразилии.
- 2. Супермаркет находится недалеко от нашего дома.
- 3. Когда ты вернешься из своей поездки?
- 4. Вчера мы вернулись домой очень поздно.
- 5. Кто вы по специальности?
- 6. Когда он был маленький, он боялся воды.
- 7. Боюсь, что магазины завтра не будут работать.
- 8. Я уверен, они придут во время.
- 9. У него способности к иностранным языкам.
- 10. Мои друзья были в отъезде в воскресенье, они были за городом.
 - 11. Как дела у тебя с английским?
- 12. Мои родители будут рады познакомиться с моими друзьями.



Х. ГЛАГОЛ ТО HAVE

Глагол **to have** – *иметь, обладать.* Глагол **to have** спрягается по общим правилам, сохраняя в Present Indefinite форму **have** во всех лицах и числах, кроме 3-го лица единственного числа, где он принимает форму **has**. В Past Indefinite он принимает форму **had**.

Утв	Утверждение		рицание	Вопрос		
I	have	I	don't have		I	
we	have got	we	have not	Do	we	have?
you	('ve got)	you	got	Have	you	got?
they	(ve got)	they	(haven't)		they	
he she it	has has got ('s got)	he she it	doesn't have has not got (hasn't)	Does Has	he she it	have? got?

Глагол have в настоящем времени имеет 2 формы отрицания и 2 вопросительные формы. Пример:

I haven't got a sister. = I don't have a sister. — У меня нет сестры.

Have you got a sister? — Do you have a sister? — У тебя есть сестра?

Формы глагола have с вспомогательным глаголом do чаще употребляются в письменном языке.

В устойчивых словосочетаниях **to have breakfast** (*завтра-кать*), **to have a rest** (*отдыхать*),**to have a chat** (*поболтать с кем-либо*) и т.д. глагол **have** теряет значение *владения*, *обладания* и обозначает действие. Сравните:

Exercises

1. Выберите правильный вопрос к предложению:

- 1. The boy has got a cat.
- a) Have the boy got a cat?
- b) Has the boy got a cat?
- c) Have a boy a cat?
- 2. Pat has got a computer.
- a) Has Pet got a computer?
- b) Have Pet got a computer?
- c) Have Pet a computer?
- 3. I have got a rabbit and a tortoise.
- a) Has I got a rabbit and a tortoise?



- b) Have I got a rabbit and a tortoise?
- 4. We have cassettes.
- a) Have we cassettes?
- b) Has we cassettes?
- c) Has we got cassettes?
- 5. My aunt has got a camera.
- a) Have my aunt a camera?
- b) Has my aunt got a camera?
- c) Have my aunt got a camera?
- 6. They have books.
- a) Has they books?
- b) Have they books?
- c) Has they got books?
- 7. Peter has got two parrots.
- a) Has Peter got two parrots?
- b) Have Peter got two parrots?
- c) Have Peter two parrots?
- You have got bags.
- a) Have you got bags?
- b) Has you bags?
- c) Has you got bags?

2. Прочитайте словосочетания с глаголом to be и переведите их на русский язык.

- 1. To have breakfast (lunch, dinner, supper, snack, a meal, tea-time, soup, tea, coffee).
- 2. To have a big breakfast (a nice meal).
- 3. To have a break (for lunch).
- 4. To have a rest (a good time, holiday time).
- 5. To have fun.
- 6. To have a party.
- 7. To have a bath (a shower).
- 8. To have a nap.
- 9. To have (to take, to do) an exam (a competition, a class).
- 10.To have a (no) doubt.
- 11.To have a guest (a visitor).

- 12.To have a row (an argument).
- 13.To have an (no) idea.
- 14.To have an appointment (a date).
- 15.To have a talk (a chat).
- 16.To have talks.
- 17.To have a love affair.
- 18.To have a cold (flue).
- 19.To have a headache (a backache, a sore throat).
- 20.To have a nice trip (a good flight).
- 21.To have a look at.
- 22.To have a baby.
- 23. Have a happy landing (holiday, week-end).



24.To have a black eye. 25.Have a comfortable journey! 26.Have a happy crossing! (Bon voyage!)

3. Прочитайте предложения и переведите их на английский язык, используя словосочетания из упражнения 2.

- 1. У него нет брата. У него две сестры.
- 2. У них есть дети? Да, у них дочь и сын.
- 3. Когда у тебя урок английского языка? У меня урок завтра.
- 4. У меня дома есть шахматы. Приходи в воскресенье и давай поиграем.
- 5. В июле у меня каникулы. Я буду на каникулах 2 месяца.
 - 6. У тебя есть увлечение? Да, это марки.
 - 7. У нее есть сын? Да, есть. Ему пять лет.
 - 8. У тебя есть каникулы в сентябре? Нет, в августе.
- 9. Сколько раз в день вы питаетесь? Мы питаемся три раза в день.
- 10. Сколько у него уроков в неделю? У него 30 уроков в неделю.
- 11. Выпей чашку кофе. Спасибо, я не пью кофе вечером.
 - 12. У моей сестры родится ребенок в следующем месяце.
 - 13. Как вы долетели?
 - 14. Приятного аппетита.
 - 15. Мы очень вкусно поели за обедом вчера.

Review

1. Составьте вопросительные предложения, используя нужную форму глагола to have и предложенные слова.

- 1. (you/ a bicycle?)
- 2. (you /a VCR?)
- 3. (your step-father/a car?)
- 4. (Molly/many friends?)
- 5. (Mr Lether/any children?)
- 6. (what car/Johny?)

2. Прочитайте предложения и вставьте нужную форму глагола to have.



	1.	You beautiful eyes.
	2.	you any sisters or brothers? Yes, I
	I	two sisters, but I a brother.
	3.	your mother a good job? Yes, she
	/	No, she
	4.	We a new car.
	5.	I any problems.
	6.	What time you breakfast?
	7.	She always a cup of tea in the morning.
	8.	a good time!
	9.	We a wonderful holiday last summer.
	10.	When he was young he a car.
	11.	What time you breakfast this morn-
ing?		
		He already a birthday party.
	13.	you a holiday this year?, No, not
yet.		
		We a party tomorrow
		Theya day off tomorrow
	3. Г	Тереведите предложения на английский язык.

1. У меня нет ее адреса. 2. Вчера у меня был очень интересный разговор с профессором. 3. Завтра у нас будет собрание по поводу нашей поездки в Санкт-Петербург. 4. Вы вчера обедали в ресторане? 5. Есть ли у вас красный карандаш? 6. У меня не было времени навестить его вчера. 7. Я отмечаю свой день рождения каждый год. 8. Я не представляю, где это находится. 9. Давай поговорим. 10. Мы здорово провели время в Италии летом. 11. Желаю повеселиться. 12. В понедельник у них переговоры с зарубежной фирмой.



CONSOLIDATION II

1. Используйте верный предлог времени (in, on, at, for, since, during).

- 1. She has been in Africa ... February. (Она находится в Африке с февраля.)
- 2. Dan has had his design studio ... several years. (Дэн имеет свою дизайн-студию в течение нескольких лет.)
- 3. The fishing season is to start ... a couple of weeks. (Рыболовный сезон начнется через пару недель.)
- 4. The kids worked on a farm ... their summer holidays. (Дети работали на ферме во время летних каникул.)
- 5. My car will be ready ... 3 days. (Моя машина будет готова через 3 дня.)
- 6. My sister's birthday is ... September. (День рождения моей сестры в сентябре.)
- 7. I am often very tired ... Friday evenings. (Часто я очень уставший по вечерам в пятницу.)
- 8. It's too cold here ... winter. (Здесь слишком холодно зимой.)
- 9. I got my driving license ... 2004 ... the age of 23. (Я получил водительские права в 2004 году в возрасте 23 лет.)
- 10. We always visit our parents ... Christmas. (Мы всегда навещаем родителей на Рождество.)

2. Вставьте *some, any* или *no*.

1. There are ... pictures in the book. 2. Are there ... new students in your group? 3. There are ... old houses in our street. 4. Are there ... English text-books on the desks? — Yes, there are 5. Are there ... maps on the walls? — No, there aren't 6. Are there ... pens on the desk? — Yes, there are 7. Are there ... sweets in your bag? — Yes, there are 8. Have you got... English books at home? —Yes, I have 9. There are ... beautiful pictures in the magazine. Look at them. 10. There is ... ink in my pen: I cannot write. 11. Is there ... paper on your table? 12. I haven't got ... exercise books. Give me ... , please. 13. It is winter. There are ... leaves on the trees. 14. I didn't buy ... bananas yesterday. 15.Did you buy ... oranges? Did you buy ... orange juice? 16. Is there ... tea left? — No, there isn't I'll make ... coffee if you don't mind. The apple pie is wonderful. Would you like ...? — Oh, yes, please. Can I have ... milk in my coffee, please? 17. There is ... butter in the fridge, but there isn't... milk. 18.

Управление дистанционного обучения и повышения квалификации



Английский язык

Are there ... eggs?— There aren't ... eggs left. 19. We haven't got ... flour. 20. To make cabbage soup I need ... cabbage, ... onions, ... carrots, ... beetroots, ... dill and ... parsley, ... potatoes, ... good oil and ... salt. 21. I need to buy a lot of things. There isn't ... time to waste.22. Oh, dear! There is ... money in my purse. But I can use my credit card.

3. Вставьте <i>a lot/a lot of/much/many</i> .	
1. Do you drink tea?	
2. I like reading. I've got books.	
3. There isn'tmilk in the fridge.	
4. It costsmoney to travel round the world.	
5. Please be quick! I haven't got time.	
6. How foreign languages can you speak?	
7. They didn't ask me questions.	
8. There was food at the party but I didn't eat	
9. George knows about economics.	
10. We saw interesting things in the museum.	
11. We went on a cheap holiday. It didn't cost	
12. Did you enjoy the party? — No, not	
13. Most of the town is modern. There aren't old buildin	gs.
14. Most of the people in the town have jobs. There	
unemployment.	

4. Переведите следующие предложения на русский язык.

- 1. It was Jane's second impression.
- 2. Jack saw thousands of blubbers.
- 3. Sixty citizens voted for him.
- 4. Jack earned six hundred dollars a month.
- 5. That happened three hundred years ago.
- 6. This company employed fifty-nine workers.

5. Переведите следующие предложения на английский язык.

- 1. Сейчас Энн выглядит еще печальнее, чем утром.
- 2. Пятое мая был самым плохим днем в его жизни.
- 3. Я не могу быть счастливее.
- 4. Комната моего брата больше моей (комнаты).
- 5. Ваш сын самый вежливый мальчик из всех, кого нам довелось увидеть.



- 6. Ты должен взять самую тяжелую сумку.
- 7. Питер это мой старший брат.
- 8. Бабушка Джеймса старше его дедушки.
- 9. Твое кресло удобнее моего стула.
- 10. Он самый известный архитектор в нашем городе.
- 11. Где находится ближайшая автобусная остановка?
- 12. Этот журнал менее известный, чем «Ньюсуик».
- 13. Диаметр Земли больше диаметра Луны.
- 14. Этот рабочий более занятой, чем тот.
- 15. Твой кот жирнее моей собаки.
- 16. Джейн выполнила восьмое упражнение.
- 17. Любимое число Роберта семнадцать.
- 18. Мама Джейн купила двадцать восемь апельсинов.
- 19. Климат здесь мягче.
- 20. Это самый короткий путь до нашего бассейна.
- 21. Первое и третье тестовое задание были легкими.
- 22. Их первый выбор был лучшим.
- 23. Барбаре необходимо шесть ингредиентов для ее торта.
- 24. Что ты обычно ешь на обед? Я не ем много за обедом, немного супа.
 - 25. Давайте поплаваем. С удовольствием.
 - 26. Взгляните на эту картину. О, она очень красивая.
 - 27. Пора сделать перерыв.
- 28. Вы отдыхаете после обеда? Да, мы немного отдыхаем.
- 29. Ваш сын спит после обеда, не правда ли? Да, конечно.
- 30. Ты завтракаешь дома? Не всегда. Иногда я завтракаю в школе.
- 31. Ты хочешь с ним поговорить, не правда ли? Позвони ему.
- 32. Почему вы не отдыхаете после работы? У меня много дел дома.
 - 33. Смотрите! Пожар в доме?
 - 34. У нее совсем нет способности к пению.
 - 35. Что ты умеешь хорошо делать?
 - 36. Я не работаю сегодня. У меня выходной.
 - 37. Когда вы вернулись домой вчера?
 - 38. Моя подруга в курсе всех моих дел?
 - 39. Я видеть его не могу.
 - 40. Этот писатель пользуется большим успехом.



XI. АКТИВНЫЙ ЗАЛОГ (THE ACTIVE VOICE)

1. The Present Simple Tense

Present Indefinite используют для обозначения постоянно повторяющегося действия: We live in Moscow. I walk every day.

Present Indefinite образуется от инфинитива, без частицы to, во всех лицах и числах, а 3 лицо единственного числа получает окончание - (es).

· .	дительная оорма	Вопрос	Вопросительная форма			Отрицательная форма		
+ I		Do/Does + I ?			do/does not + I			
I read. <i>Я читаю.</i> (обычно, часто,)		Do I read? Я читаю?			I do not (=don't) read. Я не читаю.			
He She It	reads	Does	he she it	read?	He She It	does not read =(doesn't read)		
We You They	read	Do	we you they	read?	We You They	do not read =(don't read)		

Present Indefinite часто употребляется с наречиями: al-ways — всегда, usually — обычно, generally — обычно, как правило, occasionally — изредка, порой, от случая к случаю, frequently — часто, sometimes — иногда, often — часто, twice a year — дважды в год, once a week — один раз в неделю, from time to time — время от времени, rarely — редко, every other day — через день, daily — ежедневно, monthly — ежемесячно: They seldom go out on Sundays.

Present Indefinite обозначает постоянные характеристики, как хобби, привычки, обычаи и традиции, явления природы, неоспоримые истины, расписания, маршрутов, рабочих часов: As a hobby Jim and Ken design paper ships. Summer follows spring. The shop closes at 7 p.m.

Спортивные комментаторы всегда используют Present Indefinite. Такое же время используется и в инструкциях, заявлениях, анекдотах, и пересказывая фильмы, анекдоты, истории: Now I peel the potatoes, slice them, put into the bowl.



Exercises

1. Соотнесите слова с предложениями.

eat (есть) , drink (пить) , live (жить) , forget (забывать) , sell (продавать) , rise (подниматься) , belong (принадлежать), invite (приглашать)

- 1. The sun in the east.
- 2. I coffee several times a day.
- 3. John always to turn off the light.
- 4. This cottageto our manager.
- 5. We..... flowers in the market.
- 6. My parents..... in Australia.
- 7. Frank never me to his birthdays.

2. Составьте предложения, используя отрицательную форму настоящего простого времени.

- 1. My computer/not/work.
- 4. My kids/not/wear/hats.
- 2. Tony/not/eat/meat or sausage
- 5. We/not/finish/our work/so early.
- 3. I/not/understand/Russian.
- 6. Steve/not/sing/karaoke.

3. Вставьте is / am / are / do / don't / does / doesn't.

- 1. Our grandma doesn't live with us. She has her own little house.
 - 2. What time you usually wake up?
 - 3. Why ... they looking at us?
 - 4. I can't talk to you now. I working.
 - 5. your brother shave every morning?
 - 6. We want to move at all.
 - 7. Sam a good football player, but he play very often.
 - 8.the sun shining? No, it ... not.

Review

1. Раскройте скобки, поставив глагол в правильной форме.

1. My working day (to begin) at seven o'clock. I (to get) up, (to switch) on the radio and (to do) my morning exercises. It (to take) me 15 minutes. At half past 7 we (to have) breakfast. My mother and I (to leave) home at eight o'clock. He (to take) a bus to his factory. My father (to be) a doctor, he (to leave) home at nine o'clock. In the evening we (to gather) in the living room. We (to watch) TV and (to



2. Переведите предложения на английский язык.

Моя тетя инженер. Она очень занята. Ее рабочий день начинается рано утром. Она встает в 6 часов. Она умывается, одевается и завтракает. После завтрака она идет на работу. Она работает в институте. Она любит свою работу. Она замужем. Ее муж врач. Он работает в больнице. По вечерам он изучает немецкий язык. Он посещает курсы немецкого языка. Моя тетя не говорит по-немецки. Она говорит по-французски. Она изучает английский язык. Вечером она посещает курсы английского языка. Дочь моей тети ученица. Она ходит в школу. В школе она изучает немецкий язык.



2. The Past Simple Tense

Past Simple обозначает действие, которое произошло в прошлом времени или последовательно повторялось в прошлом. Past Simple правильных глаголов образуется при помощи прибавления суффикса - еd к основе глагола. Форму Past Simple неправильных глаголов смотреть в таблице неправильных глаголов (II форма глагола): We went to the cinema yesterday.

-	одительная форма	Вопросительная форма		Отрицательная форма			
	. + II	Did + I ?			did not + I		
I played. Я играл.		Did I play? Я играл?			I did not (=didn't) play. Я не играл.		
He She It We You They	played	Did	he she it we you they	play?	He She It We You They	did not play =(didn't play)	

Вопросительная форма данной конструкции образуется при помощи вспомогательного глагола did: Did he use to take English lessons? Отрицательная форма образуется при помощи вспомогательного глагола did и отрицательной частицы not (didn't use to); либо в форме used not to: He didn't use to take English lessons?

Форма Past Simple переводится на русский язык прошедшим временем: *She slept very badly.* В предложениях обычно указывают следующие обозначения времени:

Yesterday — вчера the other day — на днях on Sunday — в воскресенье in 1980 — в 1980 году They married in April, 1995. last week — на прошлой неделе an hour ago — час тому назад a month ago — месяц назад long ago — давно и т.п.

Exercises

1. Переведите предложения на русский язык.

1. I didn't ride a bicycle.

- 3. I didn't open a book.
- 2. I didn't pick mushrooms.
- 4. I didn't play any game.



- 5. I didn't sit by the river.
- 6. I didn't write letters.
- 7. I didn't meet my friends.
- 8. I didn't visit my relatives.
- 9. I didn't sleep long.
- 10. I didn't walk in the forest.
- 11. I didn't listen to the birds.
- 12. I didn't sunbathe.

2. Прочитайте легенду озера Нарочь. Вставьте глаголы в Past Simple.

	legena or i				
Many years ago the	re	(liv	e) a girl	called I	Nara. She
(can) sing very wel	I and play	the psal	tery. She		(love) a
young man and	(want) to	marry h	im. One	day she	e was sit-
ting near a large beautiful	lake whe	n a rich i	man	((see) her.
He (like) Nara s	o much th	at he		(want)	to marry
her. As Nara (h	nave) a gr	oom (ж	ених) sh	e	(not
want) to marry	the rich ma	an. But t	he rich m	an	(be)
very stubborn (упрямый),	and his s	ervants ₋		(k	ill) Nara's
groom and (t					
(be) so unhappy	that who	en every	body wa	s slee	ping, she
(set) fire to the	e palace ,	and	(ru	ın) awa	ay. When
the rich man (le	earn) abou	t it, h	e	(send)	his serv-
ants (слуги) after Nara.	As she		(can	not)	run away
from them, Nara	(dive	e) into th	e lake an	ıd	
(die). From that time	the lak	e was	named	Lake	Naroch.

3. Раскройте скобки, употребляя глаголы в Past Simple.

- 1. He (to look) at her for a moment with surprise.
- 2. She (not to smile) when she (to see) him.
- 3. On the way home she usually (to buy) a slice of honey cake at the baker's.
- 4. The stranger (to climb) into his car and (to drive away), and when he (to notice) later that his speedometer (to indicate) seventy-five, he (to laugh) at himself but (not to slow down).
- 5. When he (to arrive) he (to find) the patient to be a small boy of nine years of age.
 - 6. A quarter of an hour later he (to hear) voices.
 - 7. A little before nine o'clock I (to descend) to the ground floor.
- 8. On the fifteenth of October Andrew (to set out) alone for London.
- 9. Clapper (to stare) at the photograph without a change of expression for at least half a minute.



- 10. When Eddy (to leave) in the morning he (to take) her photograph with him.
- 11. Their children (to clean) the yard and then they (to play) basketball.
 - 12. They (to wait) for the bus. The bus (to arrive) at 8 o'clock.
 - 13. Last Monday they (to visit) their friends.
 - 14. What your neighbours (to do) yesterday?
 - 15. The little girl (to cry) a little and then (to smile).

Review

1. Раскройте скобки, употребляя глаголы в Past Simple.

- 1. Alice (to have) a sister.
- 2. Her sister's name (to be) Ann.
- 3. Ann (to be) a student.
- 4. She (to get) up at seven o'clock.
- 5. She (to go) to the institute in the morning.
- 6. Jane (to be) fond of sports.
- 7. She (to do) her morning exercises every day.
- 8. For breakfast she (to have) two eggs, a sandwich and a cup of tea.
 - 9. After breakfast she (to go) to the institute.
 - 10. Sometimes she (to take) a bus.
 - 11. It (to take) her an hour and a half to do her homework.
 - 12. She (to speak) English well.
 - 13. Her friends usually (to call) her at about 8 o'clock.
 - 14. Ann (to take) a shower before going to bed.
 - 15. She (to go) to bed at 11 p. m.

2. Переведите на английский язык, употребляя Past Simple .

1. Ему не понравилось кино. 2. Было очень тепло на прошлой неделе. 3. Я не встретила их у моего брата дома. 4. Ктонибудь звонил мне пока меня не было? 5. Они получили от нее ответ вчера. 6. Я отправила на прошлой недели письма моим друзьям. 7. У меня было много времени, чтобы сделать эту работу. 8. Я читала эту статью вчера. 9. Ему не понравился фильм. 10. Она не звонила тебе вчера? 11. Мы провели каникулы в Париже. 12. Она не сдала экзамен по немецкому языку в понедельник. 13. Я навестила бабушку и дедушку в прошлом месяце. 14. Я не разговаривала с ним вчера. 15. Я не починил свою машину в воскресе-



нье. 16. Андрей не пошел в школу, так как он простудился. 17. Почему он сказал об этом только вчера? 18. Он часто перебивал меня. 19. Он не выиграл соревнование. 20. Вчера они вернулись домой поздно. 21. Она не получила отличную оценку за контрольную. 22. Ира и Таня учились в одном университете. 23. Они работали вместе несколько месяцев. 24. Когда она уехала в Лондон?

3. The Future Simple Tense

Будущее простое время образуется с помощью вспомогательных глаголов shall (I, we - shall) и will (you, he, she, it, they – will). В современном британском языке will употребляется во всех лицах и числах.

Утвердительная форма Вопросительная			я форма	Отриц	ательная форма	
+ 9	shall/will + I	Shall/V	Vill	+ I?	sha	ll/will not + I
I We	shall/will play. =(I'll play.) Я буду (Мы будем) играть.	Shall/ Will	I we	play? Я буду (Мы будем) играть?	I We	shall/will not play =(shan't play) Я не буду (Мы не будем)играть.
He She It You They	will play =('ll play)	Will	he she it you they	play?	He She It You They	will not play =(won't play)

Предложения переводятся на русский язык будущим временем: *I will read. – Я буду читать.*

Future Simple употребляют для обозначения действия, которое произойдет в будущем. При построении предложений используют следующие выражения: tomorrow — завтра, next week - на следующей неделе, next year - в будущем году, in a week - через неделю, in a few days - через несколько дней.

Future Simple употребляется для обозначения действия, которое регулярно повторяется в будущем: *I will read books every day.*

Future Simple не употребляется в придаточных предложениях условия или времени. В этих случаях употребляется Present Simple, но переводится будущем временем. When I come to the country I shall go skiing.



Exercises

1.	Раскройте	скобки,	употребляя	глаголы	в Future
Simple .					

- 1. My working day (to begin) at six o'clock.
- 2. I (to get) up, (to switch) on the TV and (to brush) my teeth.
- 3. It (to take) me about twenty minutes.
- 4. I (to have) breakfast at seven o'clock.
- 5. I (to leave) home at half past seven.
- 6. I (to take) a bus to the institute.
- 7. It usually (to take) me about fifteen minutes to get there.
- 8. Classes (to begin) at eight.
- 9. We usually (to have) four classes a day.
- 10. I (to have) lunch at about 2 o'clock.

2. Раскройте скобки, испол	ьзуя Future Simple.
I (to be) at home	e. I (to invite) my
friend Nina to come home. We	(play). She (
be) Big Grey Angry Wolf and I	(be) Litlle Red Riding Hood.
And who (be) Granny, who	o lives in the forest. I think we
(invite) Kate to come and	play with, us too.
	. , .
3. Переведите на английск	ий язык.
1. Она не будет занята. (to	4. Она будет учить немецкие
be busy). Я буду занят.	слова. Вы не будете читать
2. Они не будут в кино? (to	немецкие книги. Они будут
be at home). Ты будешь в	посещать занятия немецкого
кино. Он будет в кино.	языка?
3. Вы не будете работать?	5. Она купит новую книгу.
Ты будешь работать. Кто не	Ты не будешь читать эту
будет работать? Вс е будут	книгу? Мы будем читать но-
работать.	вые книги.

Review

1.Прочитай	іте текст.	Раскройте	скобки,	используя	Fu
ture Simple.					

I like to go to school	ol. I have many good friends there. But	I like
Sundays more. Soon it _	(1 be) Sunday, and all our family	
(2 be) at home. I	(3 get up) at 9 o'clock, and then I	(4
do) my morning exercise	s and have breakfast together with my	par-
ents. After breakfast I	(5 help) my mother in the kitchen an	d mv



father $\underline{\hspace{1cm}}$ (6 go) shopping. Then we $$ (7 go) for a I walk in the pa	ırk
or to the cinema. After dinner my friends (8 come) to me, a	nd
we $\underline{\hspace{1cm}}$ (9 play) together at home or in the yard. In the evening n	ny
mother (10 knit), my father (11 watch) a concert on T	ΓV
and I $_{}$ (12 listen) to music or read a book. I know that I $_{}$ ($^{\circ}$	13
have) a lot of fun next Sunday.	

2. Переведите предложения на английский язык.

- 1. Вы будете делать домашнюю работу.
- 2. Мы не поедем в Париж. Они поедут в Лондон.
- 3. Мы будем проводить каникулы в Германии каждое лето.
- 4. Марк и Андрей не будут играть в компьютерные игры по субботам.
 - 5. Я поеду домой в конце ноября.
 - 6. Вечером моя сестра не напишет письмо своему другу.
 - 7. В среду наш офис будет закрыт.
- 8. Они не будут сдавать экзамен по английскому языку в следующем месяце.
 - 9. Строители будут строить новые здания в этом районе.
 - 10. Я буду путешествовать по Европе поездом три месяца.
- 11. Он будет ответственный за музыку и пригласительные билеты.
 - 12. Врач разрешит мне выходить на улицу по вечерам.
- 13. Вечером будет тепло. Дождя не будет. Ты не будешь брать зонтик.
 - 14. Они остановятся в дешевом отеле Вильнюса.

4.The Present Continuous Tense

Настоящее продолжительное время обозначает действие, которое происходит в настоящий момент времени: *She is reading new book now. We are watching TV at this moment.*

Глаголы, которые обозначают чувственное восприятие (to see, to hear), желания и чувства (to want, to wish, to love, to like, to hate, to dislike), умственную деятельность (to know, to believe, to remember, to understand).

Present Continuous образуется при помощи вспомогательного глагола to be в настоящем времени (am, is, are) и причастия настоящего времени смыслового глагола - Present Participle (IV-я форма или ing-форма).



Утвердительная фор- ма		Вопросительная форма		Отрицательная форма		
+ am/is/are + IV		Am/Is/Are + IV ?		am/is/are not + I\		
	(=I'm) playing. <i>граю.</i> (сейчас)				am not (=I'm not) playing. Я не играю.	
He She It	is playing =('s playing)	Is	he she it	playing?	He sis not playing =(isn't playing	
We You They	are playing =('re playing)	Are	we you they	playing?	We You They	are not playing =(aren't playing)

Основным назначением Present Continuous является выражение действий, совершающихся в момент речи. Причем наличие слов, обозначающих момент речи: now *сейчас, теперь*, at this moment *в настоящий момент* и пр. возможно, но совсем не обязательно. *Hurry up! The bus is coming.*

Если в настоящий момент для говорящего более важен сам факт действия, чем процесс, то употребляется Present Indefinite, а не Present Continuous: Why don't you answer?

Если в момент речи происходят два одновременных процесса, то возможны все три варианта передачи этих действий: оба в Indefinite, одно в Indefinite – другое в Continuous, оба в Continuous:

Do you hear what he says?

- = Do you hear what he's saying?
- = Are you listening what he's saying?

Ты слышишь (слушаешь), что он говорит?

Для выражения длительного действия, совершающегося в настоящий период времени, хотя и не обязательно в момент речи, например: I am learning to drive.

Exercises

1. Дополните предложения глаголами, приведенными ниже, используя Present Continuous.

building, coming, having, playing, cooking, standing, swimming
1. Listen! Pan ... the piano.



- 2. They ... a new hotel in the city centre at the moment.
- 3. Look! Somebody ... in the river.
- 4. You ... on my foot. I am sorry!
- 5. Hurry up! The bus
- 6. Where are you, George? In the kitchen, I ... a meal.
- 7. Hello. Can I speak to Ann, please? She ... a shower at the moment. Can you phone again later?

2. Что происходит в этот момент? Составьте предложения в Present Continuous.

- 1. I, wash, my hair.
- 2. It, snow, not.
- 3. He, sit, on a chair.
- 4. I, eat, not.
- 5. It, rain.
- 6. I, learn, English, not.
- 7. You, listen, to the radio.

- 8. The sun, shine.
- 9. You, wear, shoes.
- 10.He, smoke, not, a cigarette.
- 11. She, read, not, a newspaper.
- 12.I, walk, not.

3. Раскройте скобки, употребляя глаголы в Present Continuous.

- 1. He (to read) a book now.
- 2. She (to do) her home work.
- 3. My mother (to sit)at the table now.
- 4. I still (to write) a letter.
- 5. They (to play) football.
- 6. It (to snow) now.
- 7. We (to have) dinner now.
- 8. It still (to rain).............
- 9. Why you (to talk)?
- 10. The girl (to draw)..... a picture at the moment.

4. Составьте из слов предложения.

- 1. Anna juice is orange drinking.
- 2. not sun shining the is.
- 3. are parents the in my sitting garden.
- 4. dress she long is a today wearing.
- 5. we playing not violin are the.

5. Раскройте скобки, употребляя глаголы в Present Continuous.

1. I _____ (watch) a reality show on TV.



 My favourite teal Someone 	m	(win)!					
3. Someone	(swir	n) in the sea.					
4. Two people	(co	ook) dinner or	the beach.				
5. We	_ (not watch) a soap opera	а.				
6. I ((not watch) a soap opera. (not do) my homework.						
7. Mum	(read) a magazine.						
8. My brother 9. Dad	(no	t listen) to the	e radio.				
9. Dad	(not cook)	dinner.					
10. Tara 11. Joe	(talk) by	phone.					
11. Joe	$\underline{\hspace{0.1cm}}$ (play) on	the computer					
12. Who	(watch)	√?					
13. Tina			es.				
14. I	(eat) a pizza).					
15. We	(sit) in the	e classroom.					
16. I	(not write) a	ın email.					
17. Amy	(not go)	to school tod	ay.				
18. We	(not have) fun today.	_				
19. My team	(not	win) the mat	ch.				
20. My parents	(d	rive) to work	now.				
21	they	(read)) magazines?	Yes,			
they are.							
22 y							
23 H	Helen	(write) a letter? No	o, she			
isn't.	6 1						
24	Saran	(piay) the guitar:	yes,			
she is. 25. We	(not play)	hackethall					
23. WE	(not play)	Dasketball.					
6. Переведите н	іа английс	кий язык. \	лотребляя	гла-			
голы в Present Contin		, ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,					
1. Я читаю.		11. Твои	родители	пьют			
2. Он не пишет.		чай?	•				
3. Мы не работаем.		12. Я не спл	ю.				
4. Вы читаете?			ит за столом				
5. Он спит?			ем упражнен				
6. Ник и Майк играют в	фут-	15. Мы не к					
бол.	.,		ают во дворе	?			
7. Кэйт играет на рояле.			Энн моют пол				
8. Она не поет.		18. Ник пом	огает маме.				
9. Моя сестра спит.			гаешь папе?				
10. Папа пьет чай?							



- 20. Моя сестра читает интересную книгу.25. Он покупает конфеты.26. Что делает твоя сестра?21. Они идут в школу.27. Где играют дети?22. Вы идете в школу?28. Почему ты смеешься?23. Он работает?29. Куда они идут?
- 24. Твоя бабушка идет в ма- 30. Что несут эти мальчики? газин?

Review

1. Раскройте скобки, упот	ребляя глаголы в Present
Continuous.	
1. Trina (walk) pa	st the supermarket.
2. Where are you? We	
3. I'm on a bus and it	
4. Whenyou	
5. I (sit) on a bus	,
6. Pete's mother	
	(play) football at the Sports
Centre.	- (, , ,
8. My best friend	(sit) next to me.
9. I (not wear) so	
10. My teacher (ne	ot stand) behind me.
11. I (not write) w	vith a pencil.
12. Irama (have)	a shower.
13. Montse (leave) the room.
14. Marcelo (make	e) a phone call.
15. Rosa (open) tl	
16. Olga (brush) h	ner teeth.
17. Eva (sing).	
18. Mati (listen) to	the radio. 1
9. Jose (walk) to s	school.
20. Javi (write) a	letter.
2. Переведите на английс	кий язык, употребляя гла-
голы в Present Continuous.	
1. Хелен покупает помидоры	5. Мама готовит куриный
	суп.
2. Маленький Том плачет в	6. Обезьянки едят бананы
спальне.	на дереве.
3. Идет дождь.	7. Мой брат учит стишок.
4. Мы играем в теннис с	8. Куда идет твой отец?
друзьями.	9. Что ты читаешь?



10.Почему он спит сейчас? 11.Где играют твои дети?

12.Поезд не движется.

13. Мальчики не танцуют.

14.Джек и Джейн не помогают мне.

15.Учитель не смотрит на нас.

5.The Past Continuous Tense

Прошедшее продолженное время обозначает действие, происходившее в определённый момент в прошлом, который обозначен либо обстоятельством времени, либо другим действием в прошлом. При этом ни начало, ни конец длительного действия неизвестны. Подчёркивается сам процесс действия, его продолжительность. *I was writing a letter to my friend at 5 o'clock yesterday.*

Past Continuous образуется при помощи вспомогательного глагола to be в прошедшем времени (was, were) и причастия настоящего времени смыслового глагола - Present Participle (IV-я форма или ing-форма).

Утв	ердительная форма	Вопросительная форма			Отр	рицательная форма
+ wa	 as/were + IV	Was/	Were	+ IV ?	w	as/were not + IV
Я игр	I was playing. <i>Я играл.</i> (в то время, когда)		Was I playing? Я играл?			I was (=wasn't) playing. Я не играл.
He She It	was playing	Was	he she it	playing?	He She It	was not playing =(wasn't playing)
We You They	were playing	Were	we you they	playing?	We You They	were not playing =(weren't playing)

Past Continuous употребляется для выражения действия, протекавшего в указанный момент в прошлом. При этом ни начало, ни конец действия неизвестны. Указание времени совершения действия может быть выражено:

а) Обстоятельством времени, например: at noon — B полдень at five o'clock — B пять часов at that moment — B тот (этот) момент at 5.50 p.m. yesterday — B чера B

5.50 вечера



б) Другим прошедшим действием, выраженным глаголом в Past Indefinite: When I came, my parents were having tea.

Форма Continuous употребляется в придаточном предложении, когда длительное действие служит лишь фоном для главного события. Обычно в таких случаях употребляются союзы: when когда, while пока, в то время как, аs пока, когда, just as как раз, когда: While we were driving from Rome to Milan, our bus broke down.

Другим длительным одновременным действием, протекавшим в прошлом в течение одинакового промежутка времени и выраженным также в Past Continuous: While he was speaking to the teacher I waswaiting for him.

Past Continuous употребляется для выражения длительного действия, протекавшего в определенный период времени в прошлом, но не обязательно непрерывно в течение всего этого периода. Время действия обычно поясняется обстоятельственными словами:

all day (long) весь день all summer все лето all the time все время the whole evening весь вечер I was reading from 7 till 9 o'clock.

from five till eight *с пяти до восьми* on Monday last week *в понедельник* на прошлой неделе during the war во время войны

Exercises

1. Раскройте скобки, употребляя глаголы в форме Past Continuous.

- 1. Around me people (to talk) German, Italian and English.
- 2. Robert (to talk) to some of the other guests on the terrace when Hardy came.
 - 3. Michael (to look) at his watch.
 - 4. All night long the stars (to glitter).
 - 5. Lizzie (to eat) and didn't raise her head.
- 6. He drank some of the wine and ate several chunks of bread while he (to wait) for his dinner to come up.
 - 7. The family (to prepare) for the party.
 - 8. She (to argue) that only Belinda knew how to treat men.
- 9. A few minutes later Dixon (to hurry) through the streets to his bus stop.
- 10. They moved across the room, which (to start) to fill up, to a vacant corner.



2. Поставьте глаголы из скобок в форму Past Continuous. Переведите предложения.

- 1. I ... (live) in Mexico in June, 2010.
- 2. When I entered the bathroom he ... (shave).
- 3. When she met him, they ... (work) for the same company.
- 4. What you ... (do) last night?
- 5. I showed him my new dress, but he ... (not look) at it.
- 6. When it started to rain, they ... (sit) on the grass.
- 7. Which hotel Anna ... (stay) when she lost her credit card?
- 8. We ... (sleep) when the phone rang.
- 9. Doctor Fleming discovered penicillin while he ... (study) influenza.
 - 10. Sam ... (stand) under the tree because it ... (rain).
- 11. When the teacher came into the classroom, the children \dots (run) and \dots (scream).
 - 12. While Bob ... (chop) the meat, his wife ... (peel) potatoes.
 - 13. When I arrived at the party, all the guests ... (dance).
- 14. The waiter cut his finger while he ... (pick up) the broken glasses.
 - 15. What you ... (wear) when he met you?

3. Раскройте скобки, употребляя глаголы в Past Simple или Past Continuous.

1. I (to go) to the cinema yesterday. 2. I (to go) to the cinema at four o'clock yesterday. 3. I (to go) to the cinema when you met me. 4. I (to do) my homework the whole evening yesterday. 5. I (to do) my homework when mother came home. 6. I (to do) my homework yesterday. 7. I (to do) my homework from five till eight yesterday. 8. I (to do) my homework at six o'clock yesterday. 9. I (not to play) the piano yesterday. I (to write) a letter to my friend. 10. I (not to play) the piano at four o'clock yesterday. I (to read) a book. 11. He (not to sleep) when father came home. He (to do) his homework. 12. When we were in the country last summer, I (to go) to the wood one day. In the wood I (to find) a little fox cub. I (to bring) it home. I (to decide) to tame the cub. Every day I (to feed) it and (to take) care of it. I (to tame) it the whole summer. Now the fox cub is guite tame. It lives in my house. 13. When I (to go) to school the day before yesterday, I met Mike and Pete. They (to talk) and (to laugh). They told me a funny story. Soon I (to laugh), too. I still (to laugh) when we came to school. After school I (to tell) this story at home. My father and mother (to like) it very much.



Review

1. Раскройте скобки, употребляя глаголы в форме Past Continuous.

- 1. They (to write) the test at this time yesterday.
- 2. He (to work) in the garden from two till five o'clock.
- 3. We (to watch) television the whole evening.
- 4. You (to play) football at six o'clock?
- 5. You (to drink) tea at seven o'clock?
- 6. He (to draw) from three till four o'clock?
- 7. Who (to listen) to the radio at this time?
- 8. It (to rain) the whole day yesterday?
- 9. They (to skate) at three o'clock?
- 10. She (not to help) mother about the house from two till six.

2. Раскройте скобки, употребляя глаголы в форме Past Continuous. Переведите предложения на русский язык.

- 1. The letter (look for) everywhere.
- 2. She (wash) the floor in our flat the whole morning.
- 3. He (not/play) football from 6 till 7 last week.
- 4. Tom (take) a photograph of me wnen I (not/look).
- 5. When I (go) out into the garden, the sun (shine) and the birds (sing).
- 6. You (see) my friends yesterday, when they (cross) the street?
- 7. We (cook) the whole morning, so we weren't ready for the party.
- 8. Please, don't make some much noise. Father (work) in the study.
 - 9. We (ski) the whole day yesterday.
 - 10. What you (do) at 7 o'cock tomorrow?
 - 11. I (read) a text the whole day yesterday.
- 12. We couldn't sleep last night because our neighbours (have) a party.
- 13. I tried to explain everything to the teacher, but he just (not/understand) what I (talk) about.
 - 14. You (take) a bath, when I (phone) you?
- 15. The text (translate) by the students the whole lesson yesterday.
- 16. Just as I (get) to a creepy part of the detective, somebody (ring).
 - 17. I (not/drive) very fast when the accident (happen).



- 18. When they (walk) in the park the day before yesterday, they (meet) Pete.
- - 20. I (wonder) wheather you could lend some money.
- 21. The children (look after) by a granny the whole holidays last summer.
 - 22. Fleming (study) influenza when he (discover) peniciline.
 - 23. As I (drive) to London I (listen) to music.
- 24. The problem (discuss) at the meeting at 6 oclock yesterday.

3. Раскройте скобки, употребляя глаголы в Past Simple или Past Continuous.

1. When I (to come) home, my little sister (to sleep). 2. When Nick (to come) home, his brother (to play) with his toys. 3. When mother (to come) home, I (to do) my homework. 4. When father (to come) home, Pete (to sleep). 5. When mother (to come) home, the children (to play) on the carpet. 6. When I (to get) up, my mother and father (to drink) tea. 7. When I (to come) to my friend's place, he (to watch) TV. 8. When I (to see) my friends, they (to play) football. 9. When I (to open) the door, the cat (to sit) on the table. 10. When Kate (to open) the door, the children (to dance) round the fir-tree. 11. When Tom (to cross) the street, he (to fall). 12. When I (to go) to school, I (to meet) my friend. 43. When we (to go) to the cinema, we (to meet) grandmother. 14. When grandmother (to go) home, she (to see) many children in the yard. 15. When Henry (to walk) about in the forest, he (to find) a bear cub. 16. When we (to walk) about in the forest, we (to see) a hare. 17. When I (to wash) the floor, I (to find) my old toy under the sofa. 18. When granny (to read) a book on the sofa, she (to fall) asleep. 19. When I (to play) in the yard, I suddenly (to see) my old friend. 20. When Nick (to run) about in the yard, he (to fall).

6.The Future Continuous Tense

Будущее продолженное время обозначает будущее действие в процессе его совершения, т.е. незаконченное длительное действие.

Future Continuous образуется при помощи вспомогательного глагола to be в будущем времени (shall be / will be) и причастия настоящего времени смыслового глагола- Present Participle (IV-я форма или ing-форма).



+ I	shall/will be + IV shall/will be playing. =(I'll be playing)	_		be + IV ? be playing? Буду ли я	s	shall/will not be + IV shall/will not be playing =(shan't
_	Я буду (Мы будем) играть. (в то время, когда)	-	we	буду ли я (Будем ли мы) играть?	We	be playing) Я не буду (Мы не будем) играть.
He She It You	will be playing =('ll be playing)	Will	he she it you	be playing?	He She It You	will not be playing =(won't be playing)

Для выражения будущего действия, которое начнется до определенного момента в будущем и все еще будет продолжаться в этот момент, который может быть обозначен обстоятельством времени, например:

мент

at five o'clock — *в пять часов* at 3 o'clock tomorrow — *завтра в 3 часа*

In an hour I'll be flying over the sea.

Для выражения длительного действия, которое будет протекать в определенный период времени в будущем, не обязательно непрерывно в течение всего этого периода. Время действия обычно поясняется обстоятельственными словами:

all day (long) — весь день all day tomorrow — завтра весь день all summer — все лето the whole evening – весь ве-

from five till eight – с пяти до

восьми

in June – в июне

I'll be studying all day tomorrow.

Если говорящий лишь констатирует факт – Future Indefinite. Если он хочет отобразить действие как процесс – Future Continuous:

He will read the whole evening. He will be reading the whole evening.



Он будет читать весь вечер. Он будет читать весь вечер. **Exercises**

1. Раскройте скобки, употребляя глаголы в Future Continuous.

1. He (not to wait) for us at 6 o'clock tomorrow. 2. I (to translate) this article, when my mother come. 3. The conference (to take place) from 2 till 6 o'clock on Monday. 4. How long you (to stay) at your parents? 5. At this time tomorrow I (to take) my examination. 6. I (not to work) at the library from 3 till 4 o'clock tomorrow.

2. Выберите правильный вариант.

- 1. I *shall go/shall be going* to the party when my brother arrives.
- 2. *Will you pass / will you be passing* me the books from him tomorrow?
 - 3. I'm sure Tom will give up/is giving up the job.
- 4. Jack isn't free on Monday. He will write/ will be writing at home.
- 5. Jim is going to study from 7 till 10 this evening. So at 8.30 this evening he *will learn/will be learning* new words.
- 6. While I *shall read/ shall be reading* this poem she *will play/ will be playing* the piano.
 - 7. When you call him he will sleep/ will be sleeping.
- 8. I hope the next mail *will bring/ will be bringing* news from home.
- 9. Her homework is not finished. She *will work/ will be work-ing* at it.
 - 10. At what time will you be/ will you being at home?

3. Раскройте скобки, употребив глагол в форме Present Continuous, Past Continuous или Future Continuous.

- 1. I ... (study) Japanese online from 5 till 6 tomorrow evening.
 - 2. Listen! Why the dogs ... (bark)?
 - 3. She ... (wear) a yellow coat when I saw her.
 - 4. They ... (take) their driving test next Monday.
 - 5. I dropped my wallet when I ... (get) on the bus.
 - 6. What you ... (do) in my office yesterday?
 - 7. Bob ... (feel) much better today.
 - 8. The kids ... (watch) cartoons in their room now.
 - 9. I'm afraid she ... (sleep) in ten minutes.



10. We ... (have) tea soon?

Review

1. Раскройте скобки, употребляя глаголы в Future Indefinite и Future Continuous.

1. Don't ring him up at 11 o'clock tomorrow. He (to work) at that moment. 2. At this time tomorrow my brothers (to play) football. 3. Maybe we (to play) football tomorrow. 4. They (to come) soon. 5.1 am afraid it (to rain) all day tomorrow. 6. When the train (to come) my parents (to wait) for me at the station. 7. I (to finish) this book very soon; I (to read) it all day tomorrow. 8. I must tell John that Nick (to wait) for him at ten o'clock tomorrow. 9. He (to be) busy tomorrow. He (to put) electric light in our country-house. 10. What you (to do) all day tomorrow? 11.1 (to listen) to the radio till you come back. 12. Don't come tomorrow, I (to write) my report. 13. This time tomorrow, I (to leave) Moscow for Tula.

2.Переведите на английский язык, употребляя Future Continuous.

1. Завтра я буду работать весь вечер. 2. Мы встретим их, когда они будут идти в институт. 3. Когда я приду сюда, мои дети будут играть. 4. Завтра мы будем проводить опыты с 2 до 5 часов. 5. Когда мы приедем в лабораторию, они будут показывать свои опыты. 6. Я буду гулять в парке с 7 до 8 часов. 7. Она будет делать уроки в 8 часов? 8. Мы не будем играть в шахматы весь вечер.

7.The Present Perfect Tense

Present Perfect образуется при помощи вспомогательного глагола to have в настоящем времени (have, has) и причастия прошедшего времени смыслового глагола - Past Participle (III-я форма или ed-форма).

Утвердительная форма	Вопросительная форма	Отрицательная форма
+ have/has + III	Have/has + III ?	have/has not + III
I have (=I've) played. Я сыграл (уже или ранее)	Have I played? Я сыграл?	I have not (=I haven't) played. Я не сыграл.



He She It	has played =('s played)	Has	he she it	played?	He She It	has not played =(hasn't played)
We You They	have played =('ve played)	Have	we you they	played?	We You They	have not played =(haven't played)

Форма Present Perfect имеет временной акцент "до настоящего момента" и употребляется тогда, когда необходимо подчеркнуть, что результат некоего действия, случившегося в прошлом (не важно, непосредственно перед моментом речи или в более отдаленное время), присутствует в настоящий момент, например: I have lost the key.

Present Perfect чаще всего употребляется в начале разговора или сообщения, когда возникает необходимость сообщить о каком-то новом событии. Если после этого разговор продолжается о том же событии с целью выяснения различных обстоятельств и подробностей его осуществления, то действие выражается далее в Past Indefinite: I have seen the film. I saw it in London.

Present Perfect употребляется для выражения действия или состояния, начавшегося в прошлом и уже завершившегося к моменту речи, если необходимо подчеркнуть, что результат свершившегося имеет значение в настоящий момент. В беседе назвать впервые, ввести в разговор. Время действия и обстоятельства или совсем не указываются, или время обозначается неопределенно — с помощью неопределенных наречий или слов, обозначающих незаконченные периоды времени. На русский язык переводится прошедшим временем. *I have broken my pencil.*

Present Perfect может употребляться с обстоятельственными словами, обозначающими период времени, который еще не закончился:

today – сегодня this week – на этой неделе this month – в этом месяце this year — в этом году this morning — сегодня утром

He has missed a lot of classes this week.

Часто употребляется с наречиями неопределенного времени и частотности если в контексте нет никаких указаний на то, что данное действие относится к прошедшему времени. Их место в предложении: наречия never, ever, often, seldom, already, just – обычно перед смысл. глаголом; наречия lately, recently, by now, up to now, yet – в конце предложения:



печет — никогда by поw — уже, к настоящему ечег — когда-либо времени оften — часто ир to поw — до настоящего seldom — редко момента already — уже уеt — еще (в вопросах и от- just — только что рицаниях) lately — в последнее время, недавно

I'm sure we have never met before. Have you ever been to the Hermitage.

Exercises

1. Раскройте скобки, употребляя глаголы в Present Perfect.

- 1. I (be) to Paris.
- 2. I think the director (leave) the town.
- 3. We (know) her since she arrived to our city.
- 4. I (forget) your name.
- 5. He (close) the door?
- 6. He (do) it since we left him.
- 7. They (leave) Moscow this month?
- 8. He (not bring) a lot of French papers.
- 9. I (get) a long letter from father this week.
- 10. She just (come); she will speak to you in a minute.
- 11. This order (lead) to many misunderstandings.
- 12. He (write) his name on my book.

2. Раскройте скобки, употребляя глаголы в Present Indefinite или в Present Perfect.

- 1. They (lose) their way.
- 2. The old woman (fall) as she was crossing the street.
- 3. I (speak) to him about it over and over again.
- 4. I (speak) to him about it yesterday.
- 5. He (be) in Vienna several times.
- 6. We (have) a bad storm the day before yesterday.
- 7. The Browns are not a home. I believe they just (leave).
- 8. Up to the present time I never (visit) this museum.
- 9. You never (be) to Paris? No, I never (be) there.
- 10. (Be) you in Paris last spring? Yes, I (be) there in April.
- 11. The other day I (meet) our mutual friend Henry, and he (tell) me about your marriage.
 - 12. She is very ill, she (not be) here for two weeks.
 - 13. They (live) here for the last seven years.



- 14. The doctor (come). He is waiting for you in the next room.
- 15. He (lead) the partisans to battle.
- 16. They (go) home after the concert last night.
- 17. I (not meet) him for three months.

Review

1. Раскройте скобки, употребляя глаголы в Present Perfect или Past Indefinite.

1. I (meet) two of my friends today. I (meet) them on my way to school. 2. A month agomy uncle (build) a new house in the country. We (visit) it recently and (enjoy) ourselves very much. 3. He (forget) to close the window when he (leave) the house. 4. He (write) several letters this week. 5. Where Helen (go)? I don't see her here. — She (go) home an hour ago. 6. When the concert (to begin)? 7. I don't think I ever (to see) such a beautiful garden as this one. 8. Jack London (to be born) in San Fransisco in an extremely poor family. 9. You (to read) many books by Jack London? 10. How careless you are! You (to break) your mother's favourite cup.

2. Переведите на английский язык, употребляя Present Perfect.

- 1. Ты показал друзьям свою работу? Нет, она еще не готова.
- 2. Я посмотрел этот фильм. А ты? Да, это интересный фильм.
- 3. Моя сестра закончила институт иностранных языков и преподает в школе.
- 4. Я прочитал эту книгу на английском языке и советую вам сделать это.
- 5. Анна получила новую квартиру. Ты видел ее? Да, я был там на той неделе.
 - 6. Посмотри, он написал новые слова на доске.
 - 7. Где журналы? Я взял их домой.
- 8. Ты видел этот фильм по телевизору? Нет, у меня мало времени. Я сейчас много работаю.
 - 9. Он повторил правила 5-го урока? Он знает их?
 - 10. Ты был в этом парке? Да.
 - 11. Она только что вернулась.
 - 12. Я уже перевела эти предложения на французский.
- 13. Вы были когда-нибудь в Болгарии? Да, это очень красивая страна.
 - 14. Он всегда хотел иметь хорошую библиотеку дома.



- 15. Я никогда раньше не видела этого человека.
- 16. Вы уже поговорили с друзьями об этом?
- 17. Мы еще не сделали упражнение на странице 13.
- 18. Ты можешь подождать? Мы еще не поужинали.
- 19. Что делает ваш сын? Он только что пришел и играет с отцом в шахматы.
 - 20. Где Николай? Он уже лег спать.
 - 21. Возьмите эти журналы. Я уже прочитала их.
 - 22. Ты уже сделал уроки? Нет еще.
- 23. За последнее время я выучил много новых французских слов.
- 24. Мы еще не видели центра вашего города. Мы только что приехали.
 - 25. Он написал две статьи за последнее время.

8.The Past Perfect Tense

Раѕt Perfect употребляется для выражения прошедшего действия, которое уже совершилось до определенного момента в прошлом. По смыслу эта форма представляет собой "предпрошедшее" время, так как она описывает уже совершенное прошедшее действие по отношению к моменту, также являющемуся прошедшим. В диалогах эта форма малоупотребительно, чаще встречается в повествованиях, особенно в сложных предложениях. Past Perfect образуется при помощи вспомогательного глагола to have в форме прошедшего времени (had) и причастия прошедшего времени смыслового глагола — Past Participle (III-я форма или еd-форма).

Утвердительная форма		Вопросительная форма		Отрицательная форма				
	+ had + III	Had + III ?				had not + III		
Я сь	I had (=I'd) played. <i>Я сыграл.</i> (уже, до того как)		Had I played? Я сыграл?			I had not (=I hadn't) played. Я не сыграл.		
He She It We You They	had played =('d played)	Had	he she it we you they	played?	He She It We You They	had not played =(hadn't played)		



Past Perfect употребляется для выражения действия, состоявшегося до определенного момента в прошлом, который определяется:

а) Обстоятельствами времени более или менее точно указывающими время, к которому действие закончилось:

by two o'clock – к двум часам by noon – к полудню by Saturday – к субботе by the 15th of September – к 15 сентября by then – к этому/тому вреby that time — к тому времени by the end of the week — к концу недели

by the end of the year – K

концу года

мени

By six o'clock on Sunday I had already learned all the words.

- 6) Другим прошедшим действием, выраженным глаголом в Past Indefinite, которое произошло после события, выраженного формой Past Perfect: When we came to the station the train had already gone.
- в) Главным указанием на то, что речь идет о прошлом, является событие, выраженное глаголом в Past Indefinite, которое по времени произошло после действия, выраженного формой Past Perfect. Само событие, выраженное в Past Indefinite, может быть и в контексте высказывания, а не обязательно в интересующем нас конкретном предложении. She thanked me for what I had done for her.

Exercises

1. Вставьте глаголы в Past Perfect.

- 1. I ... (to have) breakfast before I went to school.
- 2. He went to meet his friends after he ... (to do) his homework.
 - 3. By 8 o'clock the rain ... (to stop).
 - 4. Alice was late because she ... (to miss) the bus.
- 5. She went to the post-office after she ... (to write) the letter.
- 6. He ... (to work) at the factory before he entered the college.
- 7. He got a bad mark for his test because he ... (to make) a lot of mistakes in it.
 - 8. I went to bed after I ... (to finish) reading the book.
 - 9. The child ... (to fall) asleep before the parents came home.
 - 10. They ... (to marry) before they bought this house.



2. Используйте Past Perfect предложенных глаголов, чтобы дополнить предложения.

to leave, to go, to die, to see, to live, to fly

- 1. I didn't read the text in class because I \dots my book at home.
- 2. The children didn't want to go to the cinema because they ... already ... the film.
- 3. Kate wasn't at home last week because she ... to visit her uncle.
- 4. Linda never knew her father because he ... before she was born.
- 5. I was excited when the plane took off because I... never ... before.
- 6. My grandfather was always afraid of animals because he ... never ... in the country.

3. Дополните предложения, используя Past Perfect.

- 1. I watched a new film after...
- 2. I went for a walk after...
- 3. I fell asleep after...
- 4. I began to read a book after...
- 5. I helped my mother about the house after...

Review

1. Вставьте глаголы в Past Perfect.

1. Jill was afraid she (forget) her key at home, but she
found it in her handbag. 2. Dad wasn't at home when I came back.
He (go) out twenty minutes before. 3. I wasn't hungry be-
cause I (just/have) breakfast. 4. Peter saw an urgent message
on his table. Somebody (leave) it the day before. 5. I apolo-
gized I (not/phone) her. 6. He told me that he (come
back) a fortnight before. 7. I knew him at once though I
(meet) him many years before. 8. We spent the night in Klin, a
town we (often/hear of) but (never/see). 9. They
couldn't believe he (give up) his job in the bank. He
(make) a good living there. 10. Mr. Jackson said that he
(already/buy) everything for lunch. 11. Alice asked her brother
where he (arrange) to meet his friends. 12. We had no car at
that time because we (sell) our old one. 13. They
(finish) painting the ceiling by two o'clock.



2. Переведите предложения на английский.

- 1. Когда он приехал, мы уже пообедали.
- 2. Он предложил перекусить, перед тем как начнем готовиться к экзамену, так как он ничего не ел с утра.
 - 3. Она как раз вошла в дом, как только я ей позвонила.
 - 4. Алиса пожаловалась, что набрала вес.
 - 5. Впервые она была такой доброй с детьми.
- 6. Я надеялся, что они мне сообщат результат встречи. Но они не позвонили.
 - 7. Когда я проснулся, жена уже отвела дочку в школу.
 - 8. Он намеревался начать свое дело, но потратил деньги.
- 9. Я обнаружила, что забыла зонтик в автобусе, когда пошел дождь.
 - 10. Это был единственный раз, когда я опоздал на работу.

9.The Future Perfect Tense

Future Perfect Tense выражает действие, которое уже закончится ранее определенного момента будущего времени; переводится на русский язык будущим временем совершенного вида обычно в сочетании с такими наречиями, как already, before, after, предлогом by.

Future Perfect образуется при помощи вспомогательного глагола to have в будущем времени (shall have, will have) и причастия прошедшего времени смыслового глагола — Past Participle (III-я форма или еd-форма).

Утвердительная форма		Вопросительная форма			Отрицательная форма		
+ sh	+ shall/will have + III		Shall/Will have + III ?			shall/will not have + III	
I We	shall/will have played. =(I'll have played) Я сыграю (Мы сыграем) (к тому времени, как)	Shall/ Will	I we	have played? Я сыграю? (Мы сыграем?)	I We	shall/will not have played =(shan't have played) Я не сыграю. (Мы не сыграем.)	
He She It You They	will have played =('ll have played)	Will	he she it you they	have played?	He She It You They	will not have played =(won't have played)	



Future Perfect употребляется для выражения будущего действия, которое совершится до определенного момента в будущем, который определяется:

a) Обстоятельствами времени более или менее точно указывающими время, к которому действие закончилось:

by five o'clock – к пяти часам

by the end of the year – κ

by noon – к полудню

концу года

by Saturday – к субботе

by then – к тому времени

by that time – к тому времени

We shall have translated the article by five o'clock.

6) Другим будущим действием выраженным в Present Indefinite (в придаточном предложении), к началу которого действие, выраженное в форме Future Perfect (в главном предложении) должно уже закончится. Обычно с такими союзами, как before до того как, when когда: *I shall have finished this work before you return.*

Но непосредственно в самих придаточных предложениях времени и условия для выражения будущих действий вместо Future Perfect употребляется Present Perfect. *I'll ring you up when (или if) I have done my lessons.*

Если Future Perfect употребляется с наречием already уже и другими обстоятельственными словами, то эти слова ставятся после вспомогательных глаголов shall или will: *The train will already have left by the time we arrive at the station.*

в) То, что речь идет о будущем времени, может определяться и не прямыми указаниями, а ситуацией или контекстом. Half a year! Everyone will have forgotten me!

Exercises

1. Переведите предложения на русский язык.

1. Will you have come home by 5 o'clock? 2. We shall have erected this dam by 2002. 3. In three years time I shall have taken my degree. 4. John will not have signed the contract before we come. 5. Will you have repaired the watch by Friday? 6. John will have examined the car well before he buys it.

Ι_		_ a Lon	doner 1	for fiv	∕e and	l a hal	lf year	s by n	ext :	Sep-
tember.	be) By 7	Tuesday	/ Jill		the	ese no	vels by	/ O'He	nry.	(fin-
ish) Nex	year is	Fred	and Ka	ite's	10th ւ	weddir	ng anr	niversa	ry. 1	hey
	_ happi	ly marr	ried for	ten	years.	(be)	Molly	thinks	the	film



by the time she gets t	to Fred's. (to start) They
	ore his holiday Tom all his
money. (to spend) The train	by the time the couple get to
the station. (to leave) I	dinner by then. (cook) I
	before Jillian comes home. (finish)
Fernando his operat	ion by August and should be much
	I dinner. (finish) Johnny
this document by 7p	om o'clock this afternoon. (translate)
Helen this awesome doll	by her daughter's birthday. (make)
Steven his lesson by to	omorrow. (not/learn) This test is so
arduous, that I it in	a day's time. (not/complete) You
over half a thousand	I words when you finish this English
	to a definite decision in a ally on the 1st of August since I me. (go)

3. Составьте предложения во времени Future Perfect.

- 1. have / Jill / she / perfected / will / from / her / by the time / Japanese / comes / Tokyo.
- 2. promotion /Melody / have / By December / will / her / received.
- 3. gets home / Helen's / cleaned / By the time / relatives / she / will / the house / have.
- 4. to communicate / Steven / he / learned / Will / have / well / Chinese / before / enough / flies to Beijing?
- 5. finishes / have / By the time / twenty / taken / Jillian's father / that course / he / will / online tests.

Review

1. Раскройте скобки, употребляя Future Perfect.

1. By next winter he (to sold) all his things. 2. He (to leave) when you arrive. 3. By next month he (to write) his fourth play. 4. We (to solve) this difficult problem by the end of the week. 5. The wind (to drop) by then. 6. When the sun sets I (to read) this book. 7. If you come at nine they (to have) dinner. 8. If you ring me up after nine o'clock, I (to speak) to the doctor. 9. We (to travel) twenty miles more before we cross the frontier. 10. Next year we (to be) together for ten years.

2. Переведите предложения на английский язык во времени Future Perfect.

1. Майкл закончит этот отчет до завтра.



- 2. Студенты доделают работу к трем часам по полудню.
- 3. К июню мы сдадим сессию.
- 4. Строители построят школу к началу сентября.
- 5. Я напишу заявление к тому времени, как приедет секретарь.
 - 6. Поезд уйдет, пока мы доберемся до станции.
 - 7. Зоя переведет этот доклад к понедельнику.
 - 8. К ночи Меган переведет эту длинную статью.
- 9. Стивен уже уедет в Париж, когда Молли вернется из Конго.
 - 10. Зора не дочитает эту дурацкую книгу к концу года.

10. The Present Perfect Continuous Tense

Present Perfect Continuous образуется при помощи вспомогательного глагола to be в форме Present Perfect (have been, has been) и причастия настоящего времени смыслового глагола - Present Participle (IV-я форма или ing-форма). Типичные предлоги для Present Perfect Continuous: for, since. Present Perfect Continuous выражает действие, начавшееся в прошлом и продолжающееся в настоящем.

Present Perfect Continuous употребляют для выражения длительного действия, которое началось в прошлом и еще продолжается в настоящее время. При употреблении этой формы необходимо указать период времени, в течение которого совершается действие, например:

for an hour — в течение часа for a month — в течение месяца for a long time — в течение долгого времени, долго, давно since yesterday — со вчерашнего дня since five o'clock — с пяти часов since she returned — с тех пор, как она вернулась lately — недавно, в последнее время all my life — всю жизнь all this year- весь этот год all day long — весь день these three week — эти три недели since morning — с утра

I've been working for the same company for twelve years.



Утверд	дительная форма	Вопросительная форма			Отрицательная форма			
+ have/has been + IV		Hav	Have/Has been + IV ?			have/has not been + IV		
I have (=I've) been pla ying. Я играю. (уже с)		Have I been playing? Я играю?			I have not (=I haven't) been p laying. Я не играю.			
He She It	has been playing =('s been playing)	Has	he she it	been playing?	He She It	has not been playing =(hasn't been playing)		
We You They	have been playing =('ve been playing)	Have	we you they	been playing?	We You They	have not been playing =(haven't been playing)		

Эта форма также употребляется в вопросах, начинающихся с how long? как долго? сколько времени? и since when? с каких пор?, если речь идет о периоде, который непосредственно предшествует моменту речи: *How long has he been living in Moscow?*

Present Perfect Continuous употребляют для выражения длительного действия, которое началось в прошлом и закончилось непосредственно перед моментом речи. Употребляется тогда, когда хотят подчеркнуть или объяснить видимый результат действия в настоящий момент, при этом говорящий желает подчеркнуть длительность закончившегося действия, вместо констатации факта в Present Perfect или Past Indefinite. Период времени, в течение которого происходит действие, может быть указан или не указан. На русский язык переводится глаголами прошедшего времени несовершенного вида: *I've been trying to find the hotel all day*.

Exercises

1.	Раскройте скобки, используя Present Perfect Con-
tinuous.	•
1.	All these days he (talk) about his new plan.
2.	Here is Mrs. Brown who we (speak) about
for a long	g time.
3.	You (watch) TV too long.
4.	He (sit) here all the time.



2. Переведите на русский язык.

1. I have been waiting for you since 12 o'clock. 2. She has been working here for 2 hours. 3. For how long have they been sleeping? 4. What have you been doing? — I have been marking essays. 5. I have been pruning my roses. 6. I've been waiting here since three o'clock. 7. I've been drinking too much. 8. That noise has been going on since they came home. 9. The telephone has been ringing for five minutes, why don't you answer it. 10. Book at my hands I've been cleaning your shoes. 11. He has been coming here day after day for years. 12. I suppose you have been telling lies again.

3. Раскройте скобки, употребляя Present Perfect Continuous.

1. John is in his room, he (to sit) there since the morning. 2. For two hours now we (to talk) about it and we haven't come to any conclusion yet. 3. John, do you know where my bag is? 4.1 (to look) for it for half an hour and I can't find it. 5. Look, your brother (to dance) with that red-haired girl since she came into the room. 6. He (to try) to solve this problem for several months now but he hasn't found a solution yet. 7. She (to teach) at school for twenty years. 8. Mr. Brown (to work) in his room since early morning. 9. The children (to sleep) for six hours.

Review

т. Раскроите скооки, про	едварительно поставив гла-
голы в форму Present Perfect C	Continuous.
1. Olga: Rose! What are you	doing here? I (wait)
for you for hours!	
Rose: I'm sorry, Olga. I _	(try on) these clothes
for two hours. And I haven't decided	vet.
Greg: Molly! Call our waite	r again!
Molly : I (try)) to call him.
Greg: Molly! We	(sit) here for twenty-five
minutes and I'm not going to wait	any more!
Molly : I'm sorry, dear b	out he's again talking to that nice
girl.	
	(talk) to her since we came
in.	
Molly: Waiter!	
Waiter: Yes, ma'am Do	you want the bill?
Molly: The bill! We haven'	t even got the menu yet!



2. Раскройте скобки, употребляя глаголы в Present Perfect или Present Perfect Continuous.

1. I (write) the letter, so perhaps you would post it for me. 2. For the last two years, he (write) a history of the Civil War. 3. A: What you (do) for the last half hour? B: I (sit) here working at this problem. 4. We always (live) in a bungalow, so it will seem strange when we move into a house. 5. How you (keep)? Well, I hope. 6. You look very upset. What (happen)? 7. He shouldn't drive this evening. He (drink). 8. I'd better not drive. I already (drink) quite a lot. 9. The meat must be nearly ready. It (cook) for nearly an hour. 10. You (not finish) that book yet? You (read) it for more than a week. 11.I wonder if John (forget) my number. I (expect) him to call for the past two hours. 12. I'm sorry we're late. You (wait) long? 13. A: How long (know) you the truth? B: I only just (find out), but I (find out) a lot of other things just recently. 14. If he (ask) me that question once, he (ask) me a dozen times.

3. Переведите предложения на английский язык.

- 1. Вы опять дрались?
- 2. Как давно у вас болит но-га?
- 3. Я учу японский с августа.
- 4. Анна ищет работу шесть месяцев.
- 5. Они работают в Саратове
- с 1 января.
- 6. Какой глубокий снег!
- 7. Сколько времени шел снег?
- 8. Весь день идет дождь.

- 9. Я живу здесь около пяти лет.
- 10.Вы слишком долго смотрите телевизор.
- 11.Я жду Петра уже около часа.
- 12.Дети плавают уже полчаса.
- 13.Они работают в саду с 8 часов.
- 14. Наконец я нашел книгу, которую искал целый день.

11. The Past Perfect Continuous Tense

Раѕt Perfect Continuous употребляется для выражения длительного прошедшего действия, которое закончилось непосредственно перед определенным моментом или действием в прошлом. Конкретный момент в прошлом обычно определяется ситуацией, а сама форма Past Perfect Continuous подчеркивает продолжительность предыдущего действия и его последствия к описываемому моменту. Период времени, в течение которого совершалось действие, может быть как указан, так и не указан: Her eyes were red. I saw she had been crying.



Past Perfect Continuous образуется при помощи вспомогательного глагола to be в форме Past Perfect (had been) и причастия настоящего времени смыслового глагола - Present Participle (IV-я форма или ing-форма). Типичный предлог для Past Perfect Continuous — for. Past Perfect Continuous выражает действие, длившееся в определенный период времени в прошлом до указанного момента или включая этот момент.

	тельная форма ad been + IV	Вопросительная форма Had been + IV?			Отрицательная форма had not been + IV		
I had (=I'd) been playing. Я играл. (уже с , когда)		Had I been playing? Я играл?			I had not (=I hadn't) been playing. Я не играл.		
He She It We You They	had been playing =('d been playing)	Had	he she it we you they	been playing?	He She It We You They	had not been playing =(hadn't been playing)	

Past Perfect Continuous употребляется для выражения длительного прошедшего действия, которое началось ранее другого прошедшего действия, выраженного в Past Indefinite, и еще продолжалось в момент совершения последнего. При этом должен быть указан период времени, в течение которого действие уже совершалось, например с такими обозначениями времени, как:

for two hours — в течение since I came — с тех пор, как двух часов я пришел for a month — в течение ме- all his life — всю его жизнь сяца all day long — весь день for some time — в течение since five o'clock — с пяти чанекоторого времени сов

На русский язык переводится глаголами несовершенного вида прошедшего времени, например: *She had been sleeping for three hours when we returned.*

Если не указано, как долго совершалось действие, то вместо Past Perfect Continuous употребляется Past Continuous: I was working when my brother came.



Exercises

	Раскройте скобки, употребив глагол во Future Per-
fect Cont	inuous.
1.	By next week the group (shoot) their clip for
twenty day	ys.
2.	By Easter Sandy and Malory (work) together
for 7 years	5.
3.	In some minutes, Fred (wait) for 2 hours already.
	We'll be halfway through our swim in an hour so we
	(swim) non-stop for 48 hours.
5.	If Melissa is still on the phone at 5pm, Fred (to
talk) to he	r for over six hours.
6.	By the time Mike arrives, Megan (read) the funny
book for 4	hours.
7.	By July the Stevensons (build) their cottage
for a vear.	

2. Составьте предложения во Future Perfect Continuous.

If nobody stops Fred, he _____ (grumble) till night.

- 1. been / will / the New Year / a teacher / for / working / by / Andrew / have / as / 15 years.
- 2. for / Mark / before / will / been / at the conference / Moscow / leaves / working / he / have / for 2 days.
- 3. for / at Christmas / writing / will / she / have / her / new / been / novel / seven years?
- 4. go / the competition / for / their / before / training / have / they / to / coach / will / been / them / three months.

3. Переведите предложения на русский язык.

1. He had been sitting here for 40 minutes when the telephone rang. 2. I had been trying to get him on the phone all day. 3. At eight in the morning we had been driving for six hours. 4. It was clear that they had been gossiping again. 5. He'd probably been brooding over it day and night — he was that sort. 6. We had been walking in the rain for many hours when we saw a house. 7. She had been sitting there for half an hour before it started raining. 8. He had been looking for his glasses for an hour before he realized he had them in his pocket. 9. He had been waiting for her for long time before she came. 10. Tom had been doing his homework for an hour when his friend came to see him.



Review

1. Раскройте скобки, употребляя глаголы в Past Indefinite, Past Perfect, Past Perfect Continuous.

1. He (to work) there some time when that dreadful accident (to happen). 2. He told us they (to live) in this district since they had left Paris. 3. Obviously she was affronted because she (not to be taken) fully into her husband's confidence. 4. The poor woman complained she (to have) trouble with her eldest son for a long time. 5. The waiter assured me that he (to look) for the watch everywhere. 6. They (to walk) in the garden for an hour when the storm broke out. 7. The old lady (to be) sound asleep when the shell exploded. 8. When we (to come) home, we (to find) that someone (to break) into the garage and (to steal) the car. 9. The young girl who (to look) at me ever since I had come into the room, suddenly rose and left. 10. How your boss (to find) out that you (to come) to work so late? 11. By that time the twins already (to sleep) for two hours. 12. When he (to come) back to his native village he (to be told) that his old mother (to die) and his sister (to leave) England and (to go) to the States.

2. Переведитепредложения на английский язык, используя Future Perfect Continuous.

1. Когда наша дочь пойдет в школу, мы уже будем жить в этом городе 10 лет. 2. В конце месяца буде 5 лет, как я учу китайский. 3. К тому времени, как Майкл закончит колледж, его отец проработает в Боливии два года. 4. Я буду писать третий портрет к тому времени, как Молли вернется. 5. Они будут смотреть этот сериал, пока ты не скачаешь новый.

12. The Future Perfect Continuous Tense

Future Perfect Continuous образуется при помощи вспомогательного глагола to be в форме Future Perfect (shall have been, will have been) и причастия настоящего времени смыслового глагола - Present Participle (IV-я форма или ing-форма).



Утвер	дительная форма	Вопросительная форма			Отрицательная форма	
+ + IV	shall/will have been	Shall/\ IV?	Will .	have been +	1	shall/will not been + IV
I We	shall/will have been playing =(I'll have been playing) Я буду (Мы будем) играть. (уже с, когда)	Will	I we	have been playing? Буду ли я (Будем ли мы) играть?		shall/will not have been playing =(shan't have been playing) Я не буду (Мы не будем) играть.
He She It You They	will have been playing =('ll have been playing)	Will	he she it you they	have been playing?	He She It You They	will not have been playing =(won't have been playing)

Эта форма употребляется тогда, когда указан период времени, в течение которого действие будет совершаться. На русский язык переводится глаголами несовершенного вида будущего времени, например: *He will have been reading a book for two hourswhen I come.*

Exercises

1. Раскройте скобки, употребляя Future Perfect Continuous.

1. He (to study) in London for two years when I come here. 2. He (to teach) German for two years when I begin to teach English. 3. By next July she (to live) here for five years. 4. At six o'clock I (to work) for five hours. 5. I (to work) at the library for 3 hours when you come there.

Review

1. Переведите на русский язык.

1. They will have been sitting here for 20 minutes when I come. 2. In ten minutes' time I shall have been hanging around here for exactly four hours! 3. When they finish I will have been waiting for them for 30 minutes. 4. Tomorrow it will be a month as they have been working on this project. 5. When the boss will see me, I will have been waiting for him for 2 hours. 6. He will have been repairing his car for two weeks on Wednesday. 7. He will have been working on his book for a year soon.



CONSOLIDATION III

1. Раскройте скобки, употребляя глаголы в Present Continuous или Past Continuous.

1. Why you (to look) at me in that way? 2. He (to skate) yesterday from five till nine o'clock. 3. Why you (to smoke) in the room? 4. She (to read) the whole evening yesterday. 5. What you (to look) at? I (to look) at this monument. 6. He (to write) the article all the week. 7. Yesterday he (to tell) us for two hours about his trip to India. 8. I (to learn) to ride a bicycle now. 9. We (to work) at this problem during three months. 10. Be quiet, he (to write) a composition now.

2. Раскройте скобки, употребляя глаголы Present Indefinite, Present Continuous, Present Perfect, Future Indefinite, Future Continuous, Future Perfect, Future Perfect Continuous.

1. I ... (wait) for you at the hotel at midday tomorrow. 2. All the time you are toiling in the office next week, I... (enjoy) myself on the beach! 3. "Don't worry," said the doctor, "Your bones ... (mend) nicely in a few days." 4. I ... (finish) everything by the time you get back tomorrow. 5. I... (have) an operation then, so don't come until some weeks later. 6. I wonder what I... (do) at this time tomorrow. 7. I hope you ... (work) at this time tomorrow. 8. Please show me the painting when you ... (complete) it. 9. I... (live) here twenty years next September. 10. When you ... (do) your homework, pay particular attention to neatness. 11. When you ... (live) in London as long as I, you will know its geography fairly well. 12. ... (I, see) you next week? I'd like to know for certain. 13. When you ... (explain) the situation to him, come and tell me what he ... (say). 14. While you ... (have) your bath, I will prepare a meal. 15. I ... (hold) an important conference from six to eight: don't let anyone disturb us then. 16. When mankind ... (grow) up, everyone will be both kind and intelligent. 17. The clock is broken but I ... (have) it repaired next week. 18. While you ... (rest), I will read to you from a good book. 19. He will want to know what you ... (do) for these last three years. 20. The aspect of the city ... (change) considerably by A.D. 2000. 21.I shall be content when I... (achieve) my aim, but not before. 22.... (you, write) all your letters by six o'clock? 23. Do you think they ... (all, sleep) when we arrive? 24. I'll read the paper while I... (wait) for him. 25. In a minute I... (wait) here for three hours!



3. Раскройте скобки, употребляя глаголы в Future Indefinite, Future Perfect, Present Indefinite, Present Perfect.

1. Mother (to write) a letter to her tomorrow. 2. I (to read) the book by the end of the week; you may have it then. 3. By the end of the term we (to learn) about one hundred new words. 4. If you ring me up after five I (to speak) to the director. 5. I (to go) to the sports ground as soon as I (to finish) this exercise. 6. We (to go) to the theatre or a concert if we (to pass) our examinations successfully. 7. You (to do) a lot of your work by the end of this month. 8. In a year's time he (to take) to some more serious sort of job. 9. I (to go) away as soon as I (to speak) to him. 10. By the end of this month I (finish) reading "The Picture of Dorian Grey," and I (begin) to read "Jane Eyre." 11. If you do not make a note of it, you (forget) it by tomorrow. 12. By this time next year I (leave) school and (be) in Moscow. 13. I (get) through the greater part of the work when you come.

4. Переведите на английский язык, употребляя Past Indefinite и Past Perfect.

1. Мистер Браун ушел за 2 часа до того, как они прибыли. 2. Тот человек убежал перед тем как начался обыск. 3. Она болела 6 лет перед тем как умерла. 4. Он окончил работу гораздо раньше, чем мы ожидали, так как он рассчитывал получить дополнительные деньги. 5. Он написал письмо к 6 часам. 6. Они ушли из клуба до того, как мы пришли. 7. К тому времени дети ушли в школу. 8. Они ушли очень далеко, когда заметили тучи. 9. Она сделала половину работы к концу месяца. 10. Я сделал домашнюю работу до того, как ты позвонил. 11. Он повторил слова к тексту к 7 часам. 12. Джейн выучила французский до того как приехала в Париж.



XII. СТРАДАТЕЛЬНЫЙ ЗАЛОГ (THE PASSIVE VOICE)

Страдательный залог показывает, что подлежащее (предмет) подвергается действию со стороны другого предмета.

Страдательный залог (Passive Voice) образуется при помощи вспомогательного глагола to be в соответствующем времени, лице и числе и причастия прошедшего времени смыслового глагола – Participle II (III –я форма или еd-форма). Вопросительная форма образуется путём переноса первого вспомогательного глагола на место перед подлежащим, например: Has the house been built? Отрицательная форма образуется путем постановки отрицательной частицы not после первого вспомогательного глагола, например: He was not (wasn't) sent there.

В страдательном залоге не употребляют: 1) непереходные глаголы; 2) глаголы-связки: *be — быть, become — становить-ся/стать;* 3) модальные глаголы; 4) глаголы состояния: *to fit — годиться, быть впору, to have — иметь, to lack — не хватать, недоставать, to like — нравиться, to resemble — напоминать, быть похожим, to suit — годиться, подходить.*

Формы страдательного залога настоящего времени:

Pres	ent Indefinite	Prese	ent Continuous	Present Perfect		
+ a	nm/is/are + III	+ am/is/are being + III		+ have/has been + III		
I am (=I'm) asked. Меня спрашивают. (обычно, часто, всегда,)		I am (=I'm) being asked. Меня спрашивают. (сейчас)		I have been (=I've been) asked. Меня спросили. (теперь я уже спрошен)		
He She It	is asked =('s asked)	He She It	is being asked =('s being asked)	He She It	has been asked =('s been asked)	
We You They	are asked =('re asked)	We You They	are being asked =('re being asked)	We You They	have been asked =('ve been asked)	
ПРИМЕРЫ						
Ann is often asked questions.		The problem is being discussed now.		The work has been finished.		



Формы страдательного залога прошедшего времени:

Past Indefinite		Past C	ontinuous	Past Perfect		
+ was/were + III		+ was/were being + III		+ had been + III		
I was asked. Меня спрашивали. (обычно, часто, всегда,)		I was being asked. Меня спрашивали. (в то время, когда)		I had been (=I'd been) asked. Меня спросили. (уже, до того, как)		
He She It	was asked	He She It	was being asked	He She It	had been asked	
We You They	were asked	We You They	were being asked	We You They	=('d been asked)	
ПРИМЕРЫ						
The work was finished in silence.		A new school was being built in our town when I arrived.		The letter had been written by me before you came.		

Формы страдательного залога будущего времени:

Future Indefinite		Future		Future Perfect		
+ shall/will be + III		Continuous	+ shall/will have been + III			
I We	shall/will be asked. =(I'll be asked) Меня будут спрашивать.	I =(I'll have l We <i>Меня спрося</i> т		shall/will have been asked =(I'll have been asked) Меня спросят. (уже, к тому времени)		
He She It You They	will be asked =('ll be asked)		He She It You They	will have been asked =('Il have been asked)		
ПРИМЕРЫ						
She will be sent an invitation card.		The article will have been translated by 6 o'clock.				



Форма Future Continuous не употребляется в Passive, вместо нее употребляется Future Indefinite: *At ten o'clock this morning Nick will be writing the letter.*

Exercises

1. Раскройте скобки, употребляя глаголы в Present, Past или Future Simple Passive.

1. Bread (to eat) every day. 2. The letter (to receive) yesterday. 3. Nick (to send) to Moscow next week. 4. I (to ask) at the lesson yesterday. 5. I (to give) a very interesting book at the library last Friday. 6. Many houses (to build) in our town every year. 7. This work (to do) tomorrow. 8. This text (to translate) at the last lesson. 9. These trees (to plant) last autumn. 10. Many interesting games always (to play) at our PT lessons. 11. This bone (to give) to my dog tomorrow. 12. We (to invite) to a concert last Saturday. 13. My question (to answer) yesterday. 14. Hockey (to play) in winter. 15. Mushrooms (to gather) in autumn. 16. Many houses (to burn) during the Great Fire of London. 17. His new book (to finish) next year. 18. Flowers (to sell) in shops and in the streets. 19. St. Petersburg (to found) in 1703.

2. Употребите правильную форму глагола в пассивном залоге.

1. You (advise) to wear warm shoes in winter. 2. The time before bed (spend) very pleasantly. 3. Sniffer dogs (use) by police to detect drugs and explosives. 4. Huge pine trees (uproot) by the storm. 5. You (allow, not) to buy cigarettes if you are under sixteen. 6. Toyotas (manufacture) in Japan. 7. This road never (clean). 8. Gold (discover) in Eastern Canada. 9. When I saw him, he (chase) by a large dog. 10. Several towns (destroy) by the eruption of Vesuvius.

3. Замените действительный залог страдательным.

- 1. Many people attended this lecture.
- 2. He will leave the ticket on the table.
- 3. People speak English in many countries.
- 4. An actor killed President Abraham Lincoln.
- 5. They grow bananas in Africa.
- 6. Chemists purify water in different ways.
- 7. Computers process information.
- 8. The teacher gave the student much work.



- 9. They invented photography in the 1840s.
- 10. The French government gave the Statue of Liberty to the American people.
 - 11. They have sent for the doctor.
 - 12. They show films at the cinema.
 - 13. She will deliver a lecture tomorrow.
 - 14. Fleming discovered penicillin in 1928.
 - 15. The Chinese invented paper.
- 16. Irene's husband brought her some beautiful shells from the south.
- 17. The explorers gave the newspaper reporters a long interview.
 - 18. Mr. Wilson will teach you English.
 - 19. The doctor ordered me a month's rest from studying.
 - 20. Tom gave Nick a book for his birthday.

4. Переведите на английский язык.

1. Над ним смеялись, когда он сказал это. 2. На них смотрели с большим интересом. 3. За ними уже послали? 4. На эту статью часто ссылаются. 5. Об этой книге много говорят. 6. На него можно положиться. 7. Я уверен, что его будут слушать с большим вниманием. 8. Когда лодка пропала из вида, мы пошли домой. 9. Я думаю, их спору не будет конца. 10. Этот музей посещают очень часто.

Review

1. Раскройте скобки, употребляя глаголы в Active или Passive Voice.

1. Nobody (to see) him yesterday. 2. The telegram (to receive) tomorrow. 3. He (to give) me this book next week. 4. The answer to this question can (to find) in the encyclopedia. 5. We (to show) the historical monuments of the capital to the delegation. 6. You can (to find) interesting information about the life in the USA in this book. 7. Budapest (to divide) by the Danube into two parts: Buda and Pest. 8. Yuri Dolgoruki (to found) Moscow in 1147. 9. Moscow University (to found) by Lomonosov. 10. We (to call) Zhukovski the father of Russian aviation.

2. Переведите следующие предложения на английский язык.

1. Вся домашняя работа сделана: ошибки исправлены, новые слова выучены, предложения переведены, сочинение напи-



сано. 2. Тихо! Не шумите! Она сейчас дает интервью. 3. Радио «Европа-плюс» слушают во всей России. 4. Это вкусное блюдо было приготовлено итальянским поваром. 5. Многие современные лекарства делают из растений. 6. Музыка к опере «Женитьба Фигаро» была написана Моцартом. 7. Результаты экзаменов будут объявлены завтра утром. 8. Не прикасайся к забору. Его только что покрасили. 9. Все деревья и цветы в этом саду посажены мною. 10. Ошибка была сделана очень давно, а исправлена только сейчас.



XIII. CONDITIONALS (УСЛОВНЫЕ ПРЕДЛОЖЕНИЯ)

Условные предложения — это сложноподчиненные предложения, в которых в придаточном предложении называется условие, а в главном предложении — следствие, результат этого условия. И условие, и следствие могут относится к настоящему, прошедшему и будущему. Придаточные предложения условия чаще всего вводятся союзом if если. В отличие от русского языка, запятая в сложноподчиненном предложении ставится только в случае, если придаточное предложение находится перед главным, и то это правило не всегда соблюдается.

Обычно условные предложения делят на три типа в зависимости от того, насколько вероятно событие, о котором идет речь. Эти три типа — основные, а на самом деле их больше.

НУЛЕВОЙ ТИП (ZERO CONDITIONAL)

Речь в таких предложениях идет не об одной конкретной ситуации, а о чем-то, что верно всегда — такая «универсальная правда»: *If we heat water it boils.* В обеих частях предложения употребляется Present Simple.

Схема построения предложения:

CONDITIONAL CLAUSE
If + Present Simple + Present Simple

If you heat ice, it melts.

В условных предложениях нулевого типа союз **if** может заменяться союзом when: When I am late, my father takes me to school.

I ТИП (THE FIRST TYPE OF CONDITIONALS)

Первый тип условных предложений называется реальным, т.к. выполнение условий в этих предложениях вполне осуществимо.

Несмотря на русский перевод, условная часть предложения выражается только при помощи Настоящего времени (обычно **Present Simple**). А в основной части используется будущее время.

Схема построения предложения:

CONDITIONAL CLAUSE MAIN CLAUSE shall/will + Infinitive

If you finish your homework, we shall go to the cinema.

В русском переводе обе части предложения будут находиться в будущем времени. Помимо **if**, употребляются такие слова



и фразы, как: **when**, **as soon as** (как только), **before**, **until**: When she reads the letter, she will become nervous.

Также в условных предложениях используется союз **unless** (если только не/ разве только не), который можно заменить на **if** + **not** (отрицание). После союза **unless** глаголсказуемое ставится в утвердительной форме, поскольку союз **unless** уже заключает в себе отрицание: She will forget about it unless we remind her.

Придаточное предложение, которое обычно начинается со слова \mathbf{if} , может стоять как в начале условного предложения (перед главным предложением), так и в конце. Если оно стоит в начале, то после него ставится запятая. Если же оно стоит в конце, то перед ним запятая не ставится: If you leave now, you'll catch the train. - You'll catch the train if you leave now.

II TUП (THE SECOND TYPE OF CONDITIONALS)

Предложения данного типа описывают нереальные и невозможные события, которые могли бы быть в настоящем и будущем времени. На русский язык переводятся с частицей «бы»: If it rained, you would stay at home.

Схема построения предложения:

CONDITIONAL CLAUSE

MAIN CLAUSE

If + Simple Past +

would + Infinitive

If you were more serious about your work, you could finish it in time. If they were late again, I would not let them in.

III TUП (THE THIRD TYPE OF CONDITIONALS)

Предложения этого типа выражают нереальное условие, которое произошло или не произошло в прошлом. На русский язык переводится прошедшим временем с частицей «бы»: *If I had been free yesterday, I would have joined you.*

Схема построения предложения:

CONDITIONAL CLAUSE

MAIN CLAUSE

If + Past Perfect +

would

could + have + Participle II

should might

If you had known about this problem, you could have assisted in it solving.



СМЕШАННЫЙ ТИП (MIXED CONDITIOALS)

В предложениях смешанного типа встречается второй и третий тип вместе. В этих случаях одна часть предложения относится к будущему или настоящему времени, а вторая – к прошлому: *If you were more attentive, you would have passed the exam yesterday.*

Схема построения предложения:

CONDITIONAL CLAUSE

MAIN CLAUSE

If + Past Simple (II тип) + would+have+Participle II (III тип)

If + Past Perfect (III тип) + would+инфинитив (II тип)

If you were more attentive, you would have passed the exam yesterday. If you were more attentive, you would have passed the exam yesterday.

Exercises

1. Переведите предложения на русский язык.

- 1) If I am late for work, my chief is angry.
- 2) A person doesn't eat meat if he/she is a vegetarian.
- 3) If I get up early, my father drives me to school.
- 4) Everything is wet if it rains.

2. Переведите предложения на английский язык.

- 1. Если мне там что-нибудь понравится, я это куплю.
- 2. Как только ты мне позвонишь, я приеду.
- 3. Если деньги кончатся, нам придётся продать твою машину.
- 4. Если будут лишние деньги, то мы сможем купить новую машину.
 - 5. Я бы уехал сегодня же, если бы мог.
- 6. Если бы ты был в отпуске, мы могли бы поехать куданибудь.
 - 7. На твоём месте я бы уволился.
 - 8. Если бы его пригласили, то он всё равно бы не пришёл.
 - 9. Жаль, что у меня нет ружья.
 - 10. Хотелось бы, чтобы завтра потеплело.
 - 11. Жаль, я не знал, что она больна.
 - 12. Надеюсь, ты скоро вернёшься
- 13. Я бы, возможно, ответил Вам раньше, если бы я владел точной информацией по этому вопросу.



14. Мы бы не поехали на этот курорт, если бы дети не попросили.

Review

1. Переведите предложения на английский язык.

- 1. Если ты хочешь хорошую работу, ты должен хорошо учиться.
 - 2. Ты не должен много есть, если хочешь похудеть.
- 3. Если хранить кофе в морозильнике, то аромат сохраняется дольше.
 - 4. Собака радуется, когда видит хозяина
- 5. Если ты закончишь домашнюю работу вовремя, мы пойдем в кино.
 - 6. Матч отменят, если пойдет дождь.
 - 7. Ты опоздаешь, если не поторопишься.
 - 8. Я куплю машину, если мне повысят зарплату.
- 9. Если бы ты не забыл на работе ключ, ты бы открыл дверь.
- 10. Он бы не женился на ней, если бы она не готовила так замечательно.
- 11. Ты бы понял материал вчерашнего урока гораздо лучше, если бы читал медленнее.
- 12. Конференция бы провалилась, если бы Петерсон не сделал такой замечательный доклад.
 - 13. Если ты опоздаешь, позвони мне.



CONSOLIDATION IV

1. Раскройте скобки, употребляя глаголы в Present, Past или Future Simple Passive.

- 1. My question (to answer) yesterday.
- 2. Hockey (to play) in winter.
- 3. Mushrooms (to gather) in autumn.
- 4. Many houses (to burn) during the Great Fire of London.
- 5. His new book (to finish) next year.
- 6. Flowers (to sell) in shops and in the streets.
- 7. St. Petersburg (to found) in 1703.
- 8. Bread (to eat) every day.
- 9. The letter (to receive) yesterday.
- 10. Nick (to send) to Moscow next week.
- 11. I (to ask) at the lesson yesterday.
- 12. I (to give) a very interesting book at the library last Friday.
- 13. Many houses (to build) in our town every year.
- 14. This work (to do) tomorrow.
- 15. This text (to translate) at the last lesson.
- 16. These trees (to plant) last autumn.
- 17. Many interesting games always (to play) at our PT lessons.
- 18. This bone (to give) to my dog tomorrow.
- 19. We (to invite) to a concert last Saturday.
- 20. Lost time never (to find) again.
- 21. Rome (not to build) in a day.

2. Переведите на английский язык глаголы в скоб-ках:

- 1. A lot of houses (построено) in Moscow.
- 2. When (было написано) this letter?
- 3. Many places of interest (посещаются) by tourists.
- 4. When (была переведена) this article?
- 5. English (говорят) in many countries of the world.
- 6. The student (задают) many questions by the teacher now.
- 7. The film (показывали) when we entered the hall.
- 8. The device (был протестирован) by last month.

3. Поставьте выделенные глаголы в Passive Voice, внеся необходимые изменения в предложения.

1. She took a long time to write the composition, but at last she wrote it.



- 2. Don't put the cup there: somebody will break it.
- 3. Why weren't you at the birthday party? They didn't invite me.
- 4. We met many difficulties, but all the same we finished the work in time.
 - 5. We shall leave you behind if you are not quick.
 - 6. I spent all my money on books last month.
- 7. I don't think we shall do all this work today: there is too much of it.
- 8. It's a very funny thing that when I start doing this, somebody always stops me.
- 9. Don't leave these sweets on the table: somebody will eat them.
 - 10. The elephant broke the branch of the tree.
- 11. The bees attacked the bear when it tried to take their honey.

4. Поставьте глагол в правильной форме.

- 1. If you (to be) free, I (to come) to see you.
- 2. If I (to see) her, I (to be) glad.
- 3. If you (to be) busy, I (to leave) you alone.
- 4. If I **(to live)** in Moscow, I **(to visit)** the Tretyakov Gallery every year.
- 5. If she **(to know)** English, she **(to try)** to enter the university.
- 6. If mother **(to buy)** a cake, we **(to have)** a very nice tea part.

5. Раскройте скобки, употребляя глаголы в Passive Voice.

- 1. The rule explained by the teacher at the last lesson (to undertand) by all of us.
 - 2. The poem was so beautiful that it (to learn) by everybody.
 - 3. I hope the invitation (to accept) by everybody.
 - 4. The letter (to post) in half an hour.
 - 5. It seems to me that music (to hear) from the next room.
 - 6. At the last competition the first prize (to win) by our team.
 - 7. The question (to settle) as soon as they arrived.
 - 8. Your report must (to divide) into two chapters.
 - 9. Soon he (to send) to a sanatorium.
 - 10. The book (to discuss) at the next conference.



- 11. The composition must (to hand) in on Wednesday.
- 12. Yesterday he (to tell) to prepare a speech.
- 13. The article (to publish) last week, if I am not mistaken.
- 14. The lectures (to attend) by all of us.
- 15. A taxi (to call) fifteen minutes ago, so we are expecting it any moment.
- 16. The young man (to introduce) to me only a couple of hours ago, but it seems to me that I've known him for years.

6. Переведите предложения на английский язык.

- 1. Если я увижу её, я передам ей от тебя привет.
- 2. Если бы я не любила его, я бы не вышла за него замуж.
 - 3. Если бы меня пригласили, я бы пришел.
 - 4. Если бы я хорошо готовил, я бы пригласил их на обед.
 - 5. Если бы я знал английский, я бы нашел лучшую работу.
- 6. Если бы ты был более внимательным, то сдал бы вчера этот экзамен.
- 7. Если бы он закончил свой проект, он бы принял участие в конференции.
 - 8. На вашем месте я бы навестил пожилую даму.
 - 9. Что бы ты сделал, если бы ты выиграл приз?
- 10. Я бы согласилась, если бы меня пригласили путешествовать по миру.



XIV. МОДАЛЬНЫЕ ГЛАГОЛЫ (MODALS)

Модальные глаголы выражают отношение к действию (его необходимость, вероятность, возможность его совершения и др.).

Особенности модальных глаголов в английском языке

1. Не изменяются по лицам, не имеют окончания -s/-es в третьем лице, единственном числе (кроме эквивалентов модальных глаголов: to have (to), to be (to), to be obliged (to)).

She <u>can</u> swim; he <u>must</u> be tired; it <u>might</u> rain later.

She <u>has to</u> wake up early; we <u>are to</u> read "War and Peace"; I <u>am obliged to</u> you for your recent help.

2. К ним не добавляются вспомогательные глаголы при построении вопросительных и отрицательных предложений. В таких предложений модальный глагол сам выполняет роль вспомогательного: в вопросах он занимает место перед подлежащим, а в отрицаниях к нему добавляется частица not (исключения: to have (to) употребляется в вопросах и отрицаниях со вспомогательным глаголом; у to be (to) и to be obliged (to) be в вопросах употребляется перед подлежащим в соответствующем лице и числе (am/are/is) и добавляет частицу not в вопросах).

<u>Shall</u> we go for a walk? <u>Can</u> I help you? What <u>should</u> I do? He <u>can't</u> dance; you <u>mustn't</u> steal; you <u>shouldn't</u> lie.

Does he <u>have to</u> know I've never been kissed? <u>Are</u> we <u>to</u> meet inside? <u>Is</u> he <u>obliged to</u> attend the audition?

She <u>doesn't have to</u> drink coffee; I <u>am not to</u> work today; I <u>am not obliged</u> to pay for this.

3. Не все модальные глаголы имеют формы будущего и прошедшего времён, и при их выражении заменяются на эквиваленты. Видовременные формы модальных глаголов правильнее рассматривать как отдельные модальные глаголы, а не как формы одного в связи с их значительной разницей в употреблении; в некоторых случаях это также касается отрицательных форм. 4. Не имеют неопределённой формы глагола (инфинитива) а также -ing форм. В таких случаях используются эквиваленты:

I'd love $\underline{\text{to be able to}}$ ski; I hate $\underline{\text{having to}}$ get up on cold mornings.

5. После них не употребляется частица *to* смыслового глагола (кроме эквивалентов). Исключением является модальный глагол *ought to*.

You <u>must go</u>; <u>I'll help</u> you; you <u>have to visit</u> him; you <u>ought to see</u> a doctor.



6. Могут употребляться с совершённым инфинитивом для описания действий, произошедших в прошлом,:

You <u>should have told</u> me that you can't swim: you <u>might have</u> <u>drowned!</u>

- 7. Каждый модальный глагол имеет как минимум два значения, например:
 - а. Выражает вероятность или возможность.
 - б. Выражает мнение, суждение, отношение.

1. Выражение обязанности, долженствования

Модальный глагол *must*, эквиваленты to *have (to), to be (to)* выражают сильную форму долженствования. **Must** выражает:

• личное желание или даже требование говорящего. I must get my hair cut. Я должен подстричься. (я так хочу).

I know I must tell the truth.(я так считаю).

You must tidy your room, it's a real mess. (требование/приказ мамы).

• Настойчивый совет/рекомендацию You must read this book. It's such a gripping story. You must visit the Louvre when you're in Paris.

• правила поведения в общественных местах, в официальной и письменной речи *Books must be returned on or before the due date.* Книги должны быть возвращены не позднее указанного срока (правило библиотеки).

Passengers must wear their seat-belts during take-off. Пассажиры должны пристегнуть ремни безопасности во время взлета самолета.

You must bring a passport photo of yourself. Вы должны принести свою паспортную фотографию.

To have (to) выражает долженствование, основанное на каких-либо правилах или законах, на авторитете другого человека или на внешних обстоятельствах.

- I can't play tennis tomorrow. I have to go to the dentist. Я не смогу завтра играть в теннис. Мне нужно идти к дантисту. (у меня назначен приём внешние обстоятельства).
- Children have to go to school until they are sixteen. Дети, не достигшие шестнадцатилетнего возраста должны ходить в школу (закон).
- Mum says you have to tidy your room before you go out. Мама говорит, что ты должен прибраться в своей комнате перед уходом.



Данное предложение отражает мамин приказ, а не приказ говорящего; от лица мамы данное требование выглядит так: *You must tidy your room before you go out. Ты должен прибраться в своей комнате перед уходом*. (я так хочу, приказываю тебе это сделать).

Must — личный модальный глагол; когда чья-то личная речь передаётся в косвенной форме, он заменяется на to have (to)/to have got (to).

Несколько примеров для сравнения must и to have (to):

 $\it I$ must read this novel. Я должен прочитать этот роман (я хочу этого).

I have to read this novel before the end of the term. Я должен прочитать этот роман до конца семестра (это задание учителя).

Вопросы с *must* возможны, но очень редки. Намного чаще употребляется *to have (to):*

Must you buy these shabby jeans? Тебе так нужно купить эти потёртые джинсы? (Ты этого так хочешь?)

Do you have to wear a tie at work? Ты должен надевать галстук на работу? (У вас такое правило?)

Отрицательные формы must not и do not have (to) существенно отличаются. **Mustn't** употребляется для выражения запретов; **don't have (to)** обозначает отсутствие долженствования (какое-либо действие можно выполнить, если хочется, но это не является обязательным).

You must not leave bicycles in front of the portal. Запрещается оставлять велосипеды напротив главного входа.

You mustn't steal other people's things. It's wrong! Нельзя красть вещи других людей! Это противозаконно!

When you go into a shop, you don't have to buy something. You can just look. Когда приходишь в магазин, не обязательно чтото покупать. Можешь просто посмотреть.

Need (to) выражает необходимость действия.

You need to stop wasting so much time. Тебе нужно прекратить тратить столько времени попусту.

Отрицательная форма don't need (to)/needn't соответствует по значению don't have (to) (отсутствие должествования)

You don't have to/needn't take your shoes off inside, but you can if want to. Вам не нужно снимать обувь внутри, но Вы можете, если хотите.



Should и ought (to) выражают слабое долженствование

или совет. Оба модальных глагола выражают что по мнению го- ворящего является верным
You're always asking me for money. I think you should spend less. Ть
постоянно просишь у меня деньги. Я думаю, ты должен меньше
тратить.
You ought to be more careful with your money. Тебе нужно береж-
нее относиться к своим деньгам
You shouldn't sit so close to the TV! It's bad for your eyes. Ты не
должен сидеть так близко к телевизору! Это вредно для глаз.
Разницы в употреблении should и ought (to) практически нет, но
иногда последний выражает моральный долг
You ought to visit your grandmother. Ты должен навещать свою ба-
бушку.
или сожаление:
You ought to help me! Ты должен помогать мне! (Но не помога-
<i>roa oagne to help me:</i> Ты должен помогать мне: (по не помога: ешь.)
сшь. у
Exercises
1 32000UUTO DOODVOU D DOODDOVOUGY MCDODLOVO
 Заполните пропуски в предложениях, используя must или mustn't.
1. We buy some milk on the way home.
2. You forget to buy a birthday card for Dad.
3. They win this match to stay in League 1.
4. I ask Paul where he keeps the keys.
5. She know about the party we're preparing. It's
going to be a surprise party.
going to be a surprise party.
2. Заполните пропуски в предложениях, используя
have to/has to/had to.
1. Bill starts work at 5 a.m. <u>He has to get up</u> at four. (he/get
up)
2. 'I broke my arm last week.' <u>Did you have to go</u> to hospital?
(you/go)
3. There was a lot of noise from the street the
window. (we/close)
4. Karen can't stay for the whole meeting.
early. (she/leave)
5. How old to drive in your country?
(you/be)
6. I don't have much time (I/hurry)



7.	How is Paul enjoying his new job? a lot?
(he/travel)	
8.	'I'm afraid I can't stay long.' 'What time?
(you/go)	
	'The bus was late again.' 'How long ?
(you/wait)	
	There was nobody to help me. Ieverything
by myself.	(I/do)
	Заполните пропуски в следующих предложениях,
•	уя <i>have to</i> в нужной форме и глаголы в рамке.
ask	
	ke pay show
1.	I'm not working tomorrow, so I <u>don't have to get up</u> early.
2.	Steve didn't know how to use the computer, so I <u>had to</u>
<i>show</i> him.	
3. 	Excuse me a moment. I a phone call. I
won't be lo	5
4.	5 ,
	them now.
	I couldn't find the street I wanted. I some-
body for d	
	The car park is free. You to park your
car there.	A many uses indicated in the president but he
7.	A man was injured in the accident, but he to
8.	ecause it wasn't serious. Sue has a senior position in the company. She
	tant decisions.
	When Patrick starts his new job next month, he
	50 miles to work every day.
	50 filles to work every day.
4. 3	Заполните пропуски в следующих предложениях,
использу	уя mustn't или don't/doesn't have to.
1.	I don't want anyone to know about our plan. You <u>mustn't</u>
tell anyone	
2.	Richard <u>doesn't have to</u> wear a suit to work, but he usually
does.	·
3.	I can stay in bed tomorrow morning because I go to work.
4.	
It's very d	angerous.



5.		a _climb t			the	building,	SO	we
6.					forget	what I t	old vou	īt's
very impo					_ lorget	mac 1 c	.oia youi	100
	Sue					get up e	arly, but	she
usually do						- 5	,,	
		ake so	much	noise.	We		V	vake
the childre	en.							
9.	I				eat too	much. I'm	suppose	ed to
be on a di								
					_be a g	ood playe	r to enj	oy a
game of to	ennis.							
	_				_			
				1 B T	елефон	ном раз	говоре,	ис-
пользуя					,	must ma	at (walm	t\
						must me	<u>ег</u> (we/п	ieet)
soon. I ha						ee you or	a Caturd	av I
have to a								
<i>nave to u</i> lunch?	<u>o</u> (1/u0)	Some v	OIK IO	ııııy	new bos	S. Wilat a	ibout Sui	luay
IUΠCΠ: DΔ\	/F: Good	idea h	ı+ (1)			(I/speak)	to Mike	firct
He wants						(1/Speak)	to Plike	11136.
						(he/sell) h	nis house	he-
cause he's						(He/Sell) II	110030	DC
						nice, he	can get r	nore
money! B								
non. What						.5	, -	
							(I/me	et) a
colleague							_ (/	,
						xt week	end, so	(5)
					ner on Sa		·	` ,
SHA	ANNON: S	Sure. (6)		(I/go) to the de	entist's ir	າ the
morning, l	but I'm fr	ee for t	he rest	of th	e day.			
					-			
						защите		
щей сре		іользу	я <i>sho</i>	uld v	ли <i>sho</i>	<i>uldn't</i> и	глагол	Ы В
скобках.								
						ot to help		
ment and								
(use	e) our cai	s so m	uch be	cause	cars pro	duce polli	ution. We	e (2)
(\	walk) mo	re and	we (3))	(cycle	e) more. S	Some pe	:ople



say that we (4) (fly) so much because aeroplanes are very bad
for the environment.
We (5)(buy) products that are bad for the environ-
ment and we (6) (throw away) so many things. People
(7) (recycle) more and governments (8) (organize)
more ways of recycling things.
Companies (9) (produce) more products that aren't
harmful for the environment. And we (10) (destroy) the land
by cutting down trees and building on it. Also, we (11) (look
for) other ways of getting the fuelwe need, for example by using solar
energy. We (12)(use up) all the world's natural resources. We
(13) (wait) – we (14) (take care) of our planet now.

Review

1. Выберите правильный вариант.

- 1. We don't have to/shouldn't wear a uniform at work.
- 2. You *shouldn't/have to* stay up all night studying.
- 3. I think you *should/mustn't* talk to your boss.
- 4. You don't have to/mustn't drink and drive.
- 5. I think he *mustn't/should* start his own company.
- 6. Nurses have to/should work long hours.
- 7. You don't have to/mustn't cheat during the exam.
- 8. I must/don't have to leave at 4 o'clock.
- 9. You *should/don't have to* apologise for his behavior.
- 10. We *should /must* remember to book the tickets today.
- 11. I *must/have to* work Monday to Friday.
- 12. Sam usually *has to/must* take the rubbish out in the morning.
 - 13. My mum says I *must/have* to clean my room today.
 - 14. It's cold outside. I *must/have* to wear my warm coat.
- 15. I *have to/must* complete my project by Christmas or the teacher will be angry.

2. Исправьте ошибку в каждом из следующих предложений.

- 1. You must to tell him as soon as possible.
- 2. I've finished this exercise. What I should do now?
- 3. The clients don't has to come to the office. We can meet them at the restaurant.
- 4. I shouldn't to tell you this, but the boss is leaving on Monday.
 - 5. Do we have wear a uniform?



- 6. Everybody must leaving the building by 6 p.m.
- 7. She have to be at work by 7 a.m.
- 8. $\,$ I think you should to check what time the film starts.
- 9. You don't must use a mobile phone in the classroom.
- 10. We have to wait before the IT man came to fix the system.

3. Переведите предложения с русского языка на английский, используя модальные глаголы должествования.

- 1. Уже совсем поздно. Я должен идти.
- 2. Он должен работать с 8.00 до 17.00 каждый день.
- 3. Не нужно поливать цветы в саду каждый вечер, потому что все время идут дожди.
 - 4. Студенты должны приходить на занятия вовремя.
- 5. Мне пришлось выполнять всю работу одному, т.к. Макс уехал в командировку, а Сэм заболел.
- 6. Тебе следует пить больше воды и много двигаться, чтобы быть в хорошей форме.
 - 7. Я должен выгуливать собаку каждый вечер.
 - 8. Ты должен попробовать этот сыр. Он очень вкусный.
- 9. Нам придется приложить все усилия, чтобы победить в конкурсе.
 - 10. Здесь нельзя купаться из-за сильного течения.

2. Выражение разрешения, позволения

Can, could, may, might, to be allowed (to) используются для выражения разрешения и позволения.

'Can I ask you a question?' Можно задать вам вопрос?

'Yes, of course you can. Конечно можно.

 $\it I'm\ sorry,\ you\ can't\ come\ in\ here.\ K\ сожалению,\ вам\ нельзя сюда приходить.$

Модальный глагол *could* используется как более вежливая форма.

'Could you do me a favour?' Не могли бы вы сделать мне одолжение?

Модальный глагол разрешения *тау* более официален и употребляется намного реже, чем сап:

'May I come in, sir?' Разрешите войти, сэр?

Can и *could* (но не may) используются в разговорах о том, что обычно позволено.

'Can I invite some friends home, mum?' 'Yes, of course you can.' – 'Можно мне пригласить друзей к нам домой, мам?' 'Да, конечно, можно.'



Эквивалент **to be allowed (to)** заменяет **may** в прошедшем и будущем временах, используется как инфинитив и причастие и не имеет существенного различия в значении с модальным глаголом **may**.

You'll be allowed to go out. Вам позволят/разрешат выйти.

Прошедшая форма may - *might* используется в значении позволения /разрешения используется только в придаточной части предложения (в основном в косвенной речи), когда глагол главной части стоит в прошедшем времени, в остальных случаях используется эквивалент *to be allowed (to)*.

Austin said you might take his diary. Остин сказал, что ты можешь взять его дневник.

 $\it I$ was allowed to take the diary. Мне разрешили взять дневник.

Exercises

1. Перепишите следующие предложения, используя can, could или may.

- 1. I'd like to talk to you for a minute, Bill. (friendly) Can I talk to you for a minute?
 - 2. I would like to use your phone. (more polite)
 - 3. I would like to stop work early today. (formal)
 - 4. Take my bike if you want to.
 - 5. Are children allowed to go into pubs?
 - 6. I don't want you to come into my room.
 - 7. I would like to speak to Jane, if she is there. (polite)
 - 8. I would like to have a glass of wine. (friendly)
 - 9. Are students allowed to use this library?
 - 10. I would like to pay you tomorrow.

2. Заполните пропуски в следующем разговоре, используя (be) allowed to в нужной форме.

RITA I hear you've moved into a new flat with a couple of friends.

EMMA Yes, it's a nice flat, but the landlady is very strict. We aren't allowed to do anything. It was my birthday last month, and I (1) ... have a party.

RITA Oh, we (2) ... have parties at our place, luckily. We (3) ...do anything, more or less. We're hoping to have an all-night party soon, but I'm not absolutely sure if we (4) ... hold it.



3. Заполните пропуски в следующих предложениях, используя can, may, might, could или (be) allowed to в нужной форме.

⊥.	I go to Liz's party, Mum?
2.	You open your present yet.
3.	I'm sorry, sir, but you smoke inside this building.
4.	Everyone leave office at 16:30 today.
5.	You do everything you want.
6.	He borrow his father's car last Friday.
7.	He said you use his tablet computer any time you
need it.	
8.	I hope I go to the seaside on my own next summer.
9.	You read my text messages. It's personal.
10.	Shebring her dog into the café, so she just had to
take away	some coffee.
11.	You come back so late any more.
12.	I use your barbecue for my garden party,
Mrs.Robert	rs?
13.	I park my car in front of the restaurant. It's private.
14.	She said I come and see her whenever I like.
15	I sit here?

3. Выражение способности, возможности

Способность или возможность совершения какого-либо действия выражается при помощи модального глагола **can**, его эквивалента **to be able (to)** и выражения **managed (to)**.

1. То be able (to) означает то же, что и **can**, но **can** употребляется намного чаще. **To be able (to)** более официален.

Can you come to a meeting next week? Ты сможешь прийти на собрание на следующей неделе?

Please inform us if you are able to attend a meeting next week. Пожалуйста, сообщите нам, сможете ли Вы присутствовать на заседании на следующей неделе.

2. Was/were able (to) используется для выражения единоразового действия в определённой ситуации или повторяющихся действий в прошлом.

I was able to go on a trip round the city last week. Я смог (мне удалось) поехать на экскурсию по городу на прошлой неделе. (единоразовое действие)



Для выражения единоразового действия в прошлом также может использоваться выражение **managed to**. I managed to get up early today.

Could используется для выражения способности/возможности повторяющихся действий в прошлом и употребляется чаще, чем **was/were able (to).**

 $\it I$ could swim when $\it I$ was four. Я умел плавать, когда мне было четыре года.

Have /has been able to используется в **Present Perfect**: I have been able to swim since I was four. Я умею плавать с четырех лет.

Исключением данного правила являются глаголы чувства и восприятия. С такими глаголами употребляется модальный глагол *could*.

When we came into the building, I could smell something burning. Когда мы вошли в здание я почувствовал запах чего-то горящего.

We could remember where I lost my passport. Я смог вспомнить, где потерял свой паспорт.

Couldn't используется для выражения неспособности/невозможности совершения действия в прошлом.

My mother couldn't swim until she was 47. Моя мама не умела плавать до 47 лет.

 $\it I$ couldn't find my wallet anywhere. Я нигде не мог найти свой бумажник.

<u>Примечание:</u> Сап и сап't могут использоваться для выражения будущего действия, если говорящий решает в момент разговора (то есть наверняка знает) что сможет или не сможет совершить его.

I can see you tomorrow morning for half an hour. Я смогу встретиться с тобой завтра утром на полчаса.

Сравните: One day we will be able to live without wars. Когданибудь мы сможем жить без войн.

Exercises

1. Заполните пропуски в следующих предложениях, используя *can* или *(be) able to*.

1.	I haven	ı't <i>beer</i>	<u>able to</u>	sleep	very	well	recently.
----	---------	-----------------	----------------	-------	------	------	-----------

- 2. Gary has travelled a lot. He _____speak five languages.
- 3. Nicole drive, but she doesn't have a car.



	I used to stand on my head, but I can't do it
any more 5.	. I can't understand Mark. I've never understand
him.	
6.	I can't see you on Friday, but I meet you on Sat-
urday mo 7.	Ask Katherine about your problem. She might
help you.	
8.	I'd like travel abroad more.
9.	
10.	One day, everybody will travel where they want.
2.	Заполните пропуски в следующих предложениях,
	уя can/can't/could/couldn't+ глаголы в рамке:
Col	me eat speak give hear cross
run	•
	I'm afraid I <i>can't</i> come to your party next week.
2.	
3.	'Are you in a hurry?' 'No, I've got plenty of time. I
4.	I was feeling sick yesterday. Ianything.
5.	Can you speak a little louder? I you very well.
6.	'You look tired.' 'Yes, Ilast night.
7.	I speak French really well when I lived in Paris.
8.	I a lift home if you like.
9.	You the street when the light is red.
10.	
pay for it.	
	Заполните пропуски в следующих диалогах, ис-
	can / can't, could / couldn't, was / wasn't able to
	e been able to.
1.	The second of th
	B: I'm sorry but Mr Turner <u>can't</u> come to the phone right
now. He's	
2.	
2	B: Well, I didn't learn until I was twelve.
3.	
1	B: I know. He play the violin when he was seven.
4.	A: How was the test, Lily? B: It was difficult but I answer all the questions.
	יידר was anticale par t answer all the questions.



5. A: you swim, Sophie?
B: Of course. I swim since I was five.
A: Is Kim good at languages?
B: Yes, she already speak French, German and
Spanish.
4. Заполните пропуски, используя were able to, man-
aged to или couldn't и глаголы в скобках.
We had some bad problems on our trip. First of all, we <i>couldn't</i> (get) a taxi to the airport because they were all busy. We rang lots of numbers and eventually we 1) (get) one and we 2) (arrive) at the airport just in time. When we arrived at the other end, we 3) (find) a trolley for all our bags but we 4) (carry) them to the bus. We 5) (find) our hotel without any problems so that was good. The next day, we 6) (book) a tour of the city and we 7) (see) al the famous sights. Unfortunately, we 8) (take) any photos because the camera wasn't working. The next day, I 9) (get) any money because I 10) (use) my card in any of the cash machines. After several hours, we 11) (find) a bank which accepted my card, which was lucky. At the end of the trip, we 12) (come) home without any problems, I'm pleased to say!
5. Заполните пропуски в следующих предложениях,
используя could, couldn't или managed to.
1. My grandfather travelled a lot. He <i>could</i> speak five lan-
guages.
2. I looked everywhere for the book, but Ifind it.
3. They didn't want to come with us at first, but we
persuade them.
4. Laura had hurt her leg and walk very well.
5. I ran my first marathon recently. It was very hard, but I
finish.
6. I looked very carefully and I see somebody in the
distance.
7. I wanted to buy some tomatoes. The first shop I went to
didn't have any, but I
get some in the next shop.
8. My grandmother loved music. She play the piano
very well.



o +	9. A girl fell into the river, but fortunately we pull her
out.	10. I had forgotten to bring my camera, so I take
any p	ictures.
	6. Заполните пропуски в следующем разговоре, ис-
	зуя can/can't или will/won't be able to и слова в скоб-
ках.	James: <u>Can you go/will you be able to go</u> (you/go) to the
game	tomorrow?
	Paul: Yes, 1) (I/go) and I'm looking forward to it.
	James: 2) (we/discuss) our plans for going to the
game	now?
thina	Paul: Yes, of course. I'm sure 3)(we/arrange) everynow.
ci iii ig	James: OK. 4) (we/go) in your car tomorrow night?
5)	(We/use) my car because it isn't working.
	Paul: Oh. 6) (vou/borrow) vour father's car?
	James: No, 7) (he/lend) it to me he needs it then.
	Paul: 8) (we/get) there on public transport?
hut 1	James: Well, 9) (we/take) a train that goes all the way [0] (we/get) one that stops near the stadium. 11)
out 1	(I/look up) the train details on the internet now.
	Paul: Oh, 12) (you/do) that now? That's great.
	Review
	1. Заполните пропуски в следующих предложениях,
	льзуя can, be able to/ manage to в нужной форме. Ино-
гда в	возможны два варианта. 1. I go to Paul's house tomorrow.
	2. He pass the exam because he had studied hard.
	3. Tim finish his report yesterday. He had to deal with
some	urgent problems in his department.
	4. She go dancing with you tomorrow because of her
bad le	
	5. I ride a bike when I was four, but I now.
_:	6. He see the exhibition yesterday. He arrived in the
city Ju	ust on the last day.
	7. Andy played well, but Jack beat him. 8. I call them yet, but I call them tomorrow.
	5 can alon jou bac can alon tollow



1.

morning.

Английский язык

- 2. I can/am able to/do able to speak five languages.
- 3. Ugo *could/managed to/was able to* finish the report yesterday.

We didn't manage to/couldn't/didn't manage to John this

- 4. Twenty years ago, I was able to/can/could run ten kilometers.
- 5. Few of us *can/are managed to/are able to* work without technology these days.
- 6. Women *didn't* able to/weren't able to/couldn't vote in Switzerland until 1971.
- 7. I can't/m not able/m not manage to come to class tomorrow.
- 8. When we finished the work, we *were able to/could to/could* have a break.
 - 9. Are you able to/Do you can/Can you use a computer?
- 10. *Did you manage/Were you able/Could you* to do your homework?
- 3. Переведите следующие предложения с русского языка на английский, используя модальные глаголы разрешения, позволения и модальные глаголы возможности, способности.
- 1. Не мог бы ты мне помочь с переводом этих предложений?
 - 2. Она умеет водить машину и ей это очень нравится.
- 3. Мы не можем изменить ситуацию, но мы можем постараться найти из нее выход.
- 4. Можно мне поговорить с директором? Боюсь, что нет. Он очень занят.



- 5. Я умел кататься на горных лыжах, когда мне было пять лет. Но с тех пор, как я сломал ногу три года назад, я не могу больше стоять на лыжах.
 - 6. Ей удалось стать его лучшим другом.
- 7. Он обещает, что сможет поехать с нами за город в воскресенье.
 - 8. Она может узнать правду, а я этого не хочу.
 - 9. Не могли бы Вы закрыть дверь и открыть окно?
- 10. Я не смог открыть этот файл вчера. Видимо, что-то было не в порядке с компьютером.

4. Выражение уверенности, вероятности

Следующие модальные глаголы расположены в порядке "угасания" степени вероятности, которую они выражают: will, must, could, may, might, can't. Для большей наглядности вышеперечисленным модальным глаголам можно присвоить примерную процентную долю вероятности:

will (\approx 100 %) must (\approx 95%) | could(\approx 80%) | may(\approx 50%) | might (\approx 20%) | can't (\approx 1%)

Will используется для выводов или логически обоснованных утверждений.

The summer is comming — it will be hot. Скоро наступит лето — будет жарко.

Bill is in the city, he will visit us. Билл в городе, он нас навестит.

В обоих примерах говорящий выражает уверенность посредством модального глагола *will*, при этом его суждение обосновано логикой или личным опытом.

Must используются для выражения уверенности в том, что что-то случится или случилось.

Martin must have some problems - he is kind of sullen. Должно быть у Мартина проблемы: он какой-то угрюмый.

There's the doorbell. It must be Rodger. He always comes home at this time. Кто-то в дверь звонит. Должно быть это Роджер. Он всегда приходит домой в это время.

Could, may и might обычно акцентированы в речи.

Dave and Lucy aren't at home. They **could** be in the theatre, I suppose. Дэйв и Люси не дома. Я думаю они могут быть в театре ($\approx 80\%$ уверенности; Дэйв и Люси часто ходят в театр).



We **may** go to Greece for our holidays. We haven't decided yet. Возможно, мы проведём отпуск в Греции. Мы ещё не решили (\approx 50% уверенности).

She **may** be at home. Она может быть дома (\approx 50% уверенности).

Ann might be there too. Возможно Энн тоже там (\approx 20%; малая доля уверенности)

According to the radio, it **may** rain today (\approx 50%). It **might** even snow (\approx 20%). Согласно радио сегодня может быть дождь. А может даже и снег.

Can't обозначает практически невероятное событие.

Suzie can't have a ten-year-old daughter! She's only twenty-five herself! У Сьюзи не может быть десятилетней дочери! Ей самой только двадцать пять!

You can't be serious. I know you are joking. Ты ведь не серьёзно. Я знаю, ты шутишь.

Must, can't, may, might, could могут использоваться для прошедших, настоящих или будущих событий. Для этого после модального глагола нужно использовать различные формы инфинитива.

<u>Длительный инфинитив</u> употребляется после модального глагола вероятности для выражения возможной деятельности, происходящей в данный момент.

His light's on. He must be working late. Свет включён. Должно быть, он работает.

It's only 8:10. They can't be having a break yet. Сейчас только десять минут девятого. У них вряд ли сейчас перерыв.

Конструкция модальный глагол + совершённый инфинитив выражает степень вероятности в прошлом:

They could have moved house. Они могли переехать.

Robert must have gone out. Должно быть, Роберт ушёл (сейчас его нет дома).

She passed me in the street without speaking: she can't have seen me. Он прошла мимо меня даже не поздоровавшись: думаю, она меня не увидела.

I rang Helen but she didn't reply, so I suppose she may have been in the bath. Я звонил Хелен, но она не ответила, думаю, она была в ванной.



1. Заполните пропуски в следующем разговоре, ис-

Exercises

пользуя must или can't и один из глаголов в рамке.

	be be	cost	have	love	mean	think
	ANDY I ne	eed some	money. ⁻	There <u>mus</u>	st be a ba	nk round here
some	where.					
	MAX Yes,	round tha	t corner	, I think.	What do	you want the
mone	y for?					
	ANDY To b	buy one of	those mo	obile phon	es for Kate	e.
	MAX The	y a	fortune!	I've neve	r bought I	Maria anything
like th	nat.					, -
	ANDY Wel	l, you	he ver	y much th	en.	
	MAX You _	that	money o	an buy pe	ople.	
	ANDY Wel	l, it can!	•	, ,	•	
	MAX You _	that s	seriously.			
				s very att	ractive. Sh	ne plen-
ty of	admirers ar					•
•	MAX But	you told n	ne that :	she wante	ed to mari	ry you so she
	intereste					
	ANDY Tha	it's true. Pe	erhaps I	should bu	y her a rir	ng instead and
make	it definite.		·		•	
	2. Запол	ните про	пуски в	з следую	щих пре	дложениях,
испо	льзуя <i>ти</i>	<i>st</i> или <i>ca</i>	n′t.			
		e been tra				
	2. That	restaurant	:	be very g	good. It's	always full of
peopl						
	3. That	restaurant	be	e very goo	d. It's alw	ays empty.
	4. I'm s	ure I gave	you the	key. You	hav	e it. Have you
looke	d in your ba	ag?				
	5. You a	are going o	n holiday	next wee	k. You	be looking
forwa	rd to it.					
	6. It rai	ned every	day dui	ing their	holiday, s	o they
have	had a very	nice time.				
	7. Cong	ratulations	on passi	ng your e	xam. You	be very
pleas	ed.					
	8. You	got here v	ery quicl	kly. You _	have	e walked very
fast.						•
	9. Bill ar	nd Sue alw	ays trave	el business	class, so	they be
414 4 444	of money.					



10.	`Jim	is	а	hard-worker.'	`Jim?	You	 be	joking.	He
doesn't do	anytl	hing	g.'						

3. Перепишите части предложений, данные в скобках, используя *must*, *can't* или *may/might*.

FRIEND Just married and on their honeymoon. They <u>must be</u> (I'm sure they're) very happy. Where are they going to live after they come back?

come back:
MOTHER They <u>may stay</u> (Perhaps they'll stay) with us for a
while.
FRIEND What about work?
MOTHER They (Maybe they'll go) abroad for a year.
FRIEND So Holly (I assume that Holly isn't) very inter-
ested in the job she's got. I thought she enjoyed her work.
MOTHER She does. But they both have one of those temporary
contracts, and the company (perhaps the company won't
renew) them.
FRIEND Yes, that's always a possibility.
MOTHER Or they (maybe they'll take) a postgraduate
course.
FRIEND Would they get a grant?
MOTHER No, I don't think so but they've both worked for a
couple of years so they (I'm sure they have) some savings.
FRIEND But Adam's father has his own business, doesn't he?
He (maybe he'll find) work for them.
MOTHER I'm not sure. Holly quite likes Adam's father but she
(perhaps she won't want) to work for him.
FRIEND You see it's not easy to work for in-laws and it
(I'm sure it isn't) easy to live with them, either.

4. Перепишите предложения, используя *may* (possible), *may not* (unsure) или *might not* (very unsure).

MOTHER All right. I see your point.

- 1. I am unsure if my brother will arrive in time for the party. *My brother may not arrive in time for the party.*
- 2. It is possible that I will go to the club dinner tonight.
- 3. I am very unsure if Susan will visit the Edinburgh Festival.
- 4. I am unsure if Nadal will win Wimbledon next year.
- 5. It is possible that my father will have a retirement party.
- 6. I am very unsure if I will pass my maths exam.
- 7. It is possible that my Dad will give me the money I need.



- 8. I am very unsure if she will marry Nick after all.
- 9. I am unsure if they will find the way to the lighthouse.
- 10. It is possible that they will finish the firework display before it rains.

5. Употребите слова в скобках, используя *must have* и *can't have*.

- 1. The phone rang, but I didn't hear it. (I/asleep)
- I must have been asleep.
- 2. The jacket you bought is very good quality. (it/very expensive)
 - 3. I haven't seen our neighbours for ages. (they/go away)
- 4. I can't find my umbrella. (I/leave/it/in the restaurant last night)
- 5. Dave, who is usually very friendly, walked past me without speaking. (He/ see/me)
- 6. There was a man standing outside the café. (he/wait/for somebody)
- 7. Liz did the opposite of what I asked her to do. (she/understand/what I said)
- 8. When I got to my car, the door was unlocked. (I/forget/ to lock it)
- 9. The light was red, but the car didn't stop. (The driver/see/the red light)
 - 10. Sue hasn't contacted me. (she /get/my message)

Review

1. Выберите нужный модальный глагол, выделенный курсивом.

- 1. It's dangerous to drive when you are very tired. You could/will have an accident.
- 2. People might travel to Mars one day. But it *couldn't/won't* be tomorrow.
- 3. We *may not/couldn't* have enough time to finish the work today.
- 4. If you are looking for a smart dress, go to Marcey's. You *might/will* find what you want.
- 5. I'm sorry I won't/may not be able to meet you in Paris tomorrow. I'll be in London.
 - 6. The traffic is quite bad. We *might/won't* miss our train.



- 7. I'm certain that the sales results *may/will* improve next quarter.
- 8. Janice is in a long meeting. She *might not/could* be able to attend the presentation this afternoon.
- 9. Mr.Henry wants to know if we *could/may* send him some brochures.
- 10. We have a huge budget for this project, so money won't/might not be a problem.
- 2. Переведите предложения с русского языка на английский, используя модальные глаголы уверенности, вероятности действия.
- 1. Должно быть, он охранник, т.к. она очень внимательно за всеми следит.
 - 2. Должно быть, ты голоден, ты не ел с самого утра.
- 3. Должно быть, она была очень молодой, когда выиграла золото на олимпиаде.
- 4. Возможно, они смогут купить эту машину, если возьмут кредит в банке.
- 5. Вряд ли он сможет поехать с вами. У него много работы.
 - 6. Вероятно, этот мальчик его сын. Они очень похожи.
- 7. Это кольцо выглядит очень дорогим. Должно быть, оно стоит тысячу долларов.
 - 8. Возможно, он позвонит ей после вечеринки.
- 9. Вероятно, он потерял ключи. Он что-то ищет у себя в портфеле.
 - 10. Детей нет дома. Должно быть, они играют во дворе.



ла.

Английский язык

CONSOLIDATION V

1. Выберите правильный вариант модального глаго-

- 1. You *must/should* tidy your room. It's a real mess.
- 2. He can't/couldn't open the window as it was stuck.
- 3. Interpreters *may/must* translate without dictionaries.
- 4. Can/May I use me your bike for today?
- 5. May/Could you give me the recipe for this cake?
- 6. I hardly ever see Jane, she *may/might* have moved to Africa.
 - 7. Take an umbrella. It *may/can* rain.
- 8. You *could/should* stop smoking. You know you *cannot/must not* buy health.
 - 9. You may/must finish the article as soon as possible.
 - 10. Liz *mustn't/ doesn't* have to keep to a diet anymore.
 - 11. Lara can/might get a playstation for her birthday.
 - 12. You *must not/needn't* read in the dark.
- 13. My grandfather is retired, so he *shouldn't/doesn't have to* go to work.
 - 14. The fridge is full, so we *must not/needn't* go shopping.
 - 15. Our employees *can/must* sign this agreement.
- 16. We *may/ought to* reserve a table in advance if we want to have dinner there.
 - 17. I can't/needn't believe it! You ... (have to/must) be joking.
 - 18. Ann *must/is to* finish school next year.
 - 19. Sorry, I'm late. I *needed to/had to* wait for the plumber.
 - 20. What time do we should/have to be at the railway station?
 - 21. Don't wait for me tonight. I might/must be late.
 - 22. I may not/can't watch this film. It's too boring.
 - 23. We've got a dishwasher, so you *couldn't/needn't* wash-up.
 - 24. You look very pale, I think you *need/should* stay at home.
 - 25. Could/Might you, please, pass me the mustard?

2. Переведите следующие английские пословицы на русский язык, уделяя внимание модальным глаголам.

- 1. A man can do no more than he can.
- 2. Anyone who has to ask the price cannot afford it.
- 3. People who live in glass houses should not throw stones at their neighbours.
 - 4. You must learn to walk before you can run.
 - 5. He who falls today may rise tomorrow.



- 6. A bird may be known by its song.
- 7. He who laughs at crooked men should need to walk very straight.
 - 8. Talk of the devil and he is to appear.
 - 9. A tree must be bent while young.
 - 10. The wind can't be caught in a net.
- 3. Переведите предложения с русского языка на английский, используя модальные глаголы.
- 1. У тебя такой огромный дом. Твой дедушка должно быть был очень богат.
- 2. Нельзя пользоваться телефонами и планшетами во время экзамена.
- 3. Очень душно. Вероятно, пойдет дождь, а может даже будет гроза.
 - 4. Я не могла предупредить тебя, т.к. у меня сел телефон.
- 5. К сожалению, мне не разрешили взять домой бездомного щенка, поэтому мы отвезли его в приют для животных.
 - 6. Она совсем не умела готовить, когда вышла замуж.
- 7. Я должен закончить курсовую до конца семестра, иначе меня не допустят к экзамену.
- 8. К сожалению, я завтра занят, но я смогу встретиться с Вами в среду.
- 9. В будущем мы сможем производить энергию из океанских волн.
 - 10. Нам пришлось взять ипотеку, чтобы купить квартиру.
- 11. Она не должна знать о вечеринке, которую мы готовим. Это будет для неё сюрприз.
 - 12. Ты очень поправился. Тебе следует больше двигаться.
 - 13. Принесите нам счет, пожалуйста.
- 14. Он всегда с трудом идет на любые изменения. Вряд ли ему понравится наша идея.
- 15. Ты сможешь научиться правильно использовать модальные глаголы, когда сделаешь все эти упражнения несколькораз.



XV. КОСВЕННАЯ РЕЧЬ

Содержание ранее высказанного сообщения можно передать прямой речью (от лица говорящего) или косвенной речью (от лица передающего). Например: She said: "I can speak two foreign languages." (прямая речь). She said that she could speak two foreign languages. (косвенная речь).

В косвенной речи также соблюдается правило согласования времен, т.е. если глагол-сказуемое главного предложения стоит в форме прошедшего времени, то и глагол-сказуемое придаточного предложения также используется в форме прошедшего времени.

1. Утвердительные предложения

При переводе утвердительных предложений из прямой речи в косвенную производятся следующие изменения:

- 1) просьбы, приказы, распоряжения, запреты, обещания, предложения в косвенной речи выражаются инфинитивом: 'Stay in bed for a couple of days', the doctor said to Jim. → The doctor told Jim **to stay** in bed for a couple of days.
- 2) косвенная речь вводится союзом **that**, который часто может опускаться:

Paul **said that** he was feeling ill. *or* Paul **said** he was feeling ill.

- 3) личные и притяжательные местоимения заменяются по смыслу;
- 4) указательные местоимения и наречия времени и места заменяются другими словами:

this	that
these	those
here	there
now	then
today	that day
tonight	that night
yesterday	the day before
ago	before
the day before yesterday	two days before
tomorrow	the next day/the following day
the day after tomorrow	two days later
next year	the next year/the following year



5) времена глаголов в придаточном предложении изменяются согласно правилам согласования времен:

Изменение грамматического времени		
Νō	исходное время в прямой речи	в косвенной речи меняется на
1.	Present Simple 'I always buy organic food.'	Past Simple He said (that) he always bought organic food.
2.	Present Continuous 'I'm going to see my mother tomorrow.'	Past Continuous She said she was going to see her mother the next day.
3.	Present Perfect 'I've passed my exams.'	Past Perfect He said he had passed his exams.
4.	Present Perfect Continuous 'I've been typing since morning.'	Past Perfect Continuous She said she had been typing since morning.
5.	Past Simple 'We saw her at the station.'	Past Perfect They said they had seen her at the station.
6.	Past Continuous 'I was reading while my parents were watching TV.'	не меняется She said she was reading while her parents were watching TV.
7.	Past Perfect 'I had read that book before I entered college.'	не меняется He said he had read that book before I entered college.
8.	Future Simple 'I'll meet you here.'	Future-in-the Past He said he would meet me there.

- 6) согласование времен не соблюдается в следующих случаях:
- В придаточном предложении говорится о всемирно известной истине или факте: The teacher said that the Earth **moves** around the Sun.
- Говорящий ссылается на слова, которые недавно были сказаны, и ситуация не изменилась:

Dave called this morning. He said $\mbox{he's having}$ a great time in Ibiza.



• В придаточном предложении есть модальный глагол **must, should, ought to**: Tom said that monument **must** be 200 years old.

Exercises

1. Измените следующие предложения по образцу. Используйте слова, данные в скобках.

'Don't go out in the cold, John. (Mother told) - *Mother told John not to go out in the cold.*

- 1. I won't tell anybody. (He promised)
- 2. I'll cook supper. (She offered)
- 3. Leave early. (He advised me)
- 4. Please close the door. (She asked)
- 5. I'll stop smoking (She promised)
- 6. You ought to tell the police. (She advised me)
- 7. Ok, I'll pay half. (He agreed)
- 8. Park round the corner. (She told me)
- 9. Wait outside. (I told her)
- 10. How do you find the house? (I asked him)
- 11. Phone me before nine. (She told me when)
- 12. Why don't I do the shopping? (He offered)
- 13. We'll pay for the tickets. (We offered)
- 14. You should think twice. (She advised me)

2. Завершите вторую часть следующих предложений, используя подходящее личное местоимение. 1. Diane: 'I'll go there tomorrow.'

Diane said that <i>she</i> would go there the next day.
2. Teacher: 'You will be on holiday tomorrow, children.'
The teacher told the children that would be on holiday the
next day.
3. Roger: 'Paul and I can't come to the party.'
Roger said that Paul and couldn't come to the party.
4. Andy: 'Teacher, we haven't finished yet.'
Andy told the teacher that hadn't finished yet.
5. Bill: 'Thanks, Rob. You are a great help!'
Bill thanked me and told me that was a great help.
6. Ruth: 'John, you aren't trying hard enough.'
Ruth told John that wasn't trying hard enough.
7. Alison: 'I'm going to give him this book.'

Alison said that ___ was going to give him that book.



		ny said that would see the next day.
	9.	Peter: 'I told her the truth.'
		er said that had told her the truth.
		Larry: 'I watched a great film last night.'
		y said that had watched a great film the previous night.
	Lan	y said that had watched a great him the previous hight.
	3. 3	Завершите следующие предложения, используя
подх		щее выражение времени или относительное ме-
стои	мень	ne.
	1.	'I'll see you tomorrow.' She said she'd see me the next
day.		
	2.	'I'll phone you this evening.' He said he'd phone
	3.	'Do you like it here?' She asked if I liked it
	4.	'My brother bought a new car last week.' She told me her
broth		d bought a new car
	5.	'This meat tastes funny.' She said meat tasted fun-
ny.	_	
	6.	'I'm leaving now.' He told us he was leaving
	7.	${}^{\backprime}\text{I}$ overslept this morning.' She told him she'd overslept
	- · 8.	'The train leaves at 11.00 tonight. I was told the train left
at 11.	-	The train leaves at 11.00 tonight. I was told the train left
at II.	9.	`Pete phoned me yesterday.' He said Pete had phoned him
	٦.	rete phoned me yesterday. The said rete had phoned min
	10.	'My brother is arriving here tonight.' She said her brother
was a		ng
		3 <u>——</u>
	4. 3	Ваполните пропуски в следующих предложениях,
испо	льзу	уя глагол в нужном времени.
	1.	'I'm tired.' She said she tired.
	2.	'You play very well.' He told me I very well.
	3.	'We're leaving.' They told us they
	4.	'I haven't had so much fun in my life.' She said she
so mu		un in her life.
		'Sally has taken up scuba diving.' Paul told me that Sally
		ba diving.
C) /		'I worked for Microsoft in the period of 2010-20013.' His
CV sa		e for Microsoft in the period of 2010-20013.
	7.	'She won't say anything.' He knew she anything.
	8.	'Nobody will know.' I thought nobody



9.	'This letter has been opened.' I could see the letter
10.	'I left my wallet at home.' He said he his wallet at
home.	

5. Измените следующие предложения согласно образцу.

- 1. Mike said: 'I like sky diving. It isn't dangerous.'

 Mike said that he liked sky diving and that it wasn't dangerous.
- 2. Suzie said: 'I'm going out on my scooter now.'
- 3. Bill said: 'I fell of my bike eight times yesterday.'
- 4. Christine said: 'I really enjoyed water skiing last summer.'
- 5. Dave said: 'I hadn't heard this CD before you played it.'
- 6. Mark said: 'We're going to go paragliding tomorrow.'
- 7. Johnny said: 'I'll go and help them.'
- 8. Louisa said: 'I would like to fly in a micro-light.'
- 9. Michal said: 'It has just started raining.'
- 10. Sally said: 'I was getting bored of lying on the beach.'

Review

1. Вчера Вы встретили друга Макса, которого Вы не видели очень давно. Макс рассказал Вам следующее:

- 1. I'm living in London.
- 2. My father isn't very well.
- 3. Rachel and Mark are getting married next month.
- 4. My sister has had a baby.
- 5. I don't know what Joe is doing.
- 6. I saw Helen at the party last June and seemed fine.
- 7. I haven't seen Amy recently.
- 8. I'm not enjoying my job very well.
- 9. You can come and stay at my place if you're ever in London.
 - 10. My car was stolen a few days ago.
 - 11. I want to go on holiday, but I can't afford it.
 - 12. I'll tell Chris I saw you.

Позже Вы рассказали другому своему другу о том, что рассказал Вам Макс. Используйте косвенную речь.

- 1. Steve said that he was living in London.
- 2. He said that ...

2. Измените следующие предложения, используя косвенную речь.

1. "New Year's Eve is always on December 31st," she said.



- 2. "The children are riding their bikes," Jennifer said to me.
- 3. "The Earth revolves around the Sun," the teacher said to the students. $\,$
- 4. "Jack and Karen have bought a house in the countryside," Nick said to us.
- 5. "Burglars broke into the museum last night," the news reporter said.
- 6. "Dad was mowing the lawn while I was cleaning the car," Ryan said.
- 7. "We will have a housewarming party next week," said Mike and Helen.
- 8. "Julia and Jose might move to Australia next year," Rory said to us.
 - 9. "We're staying at Hilton now," Rosy said to us.
 - 10. "I can't finish my essay," Tom said.

3. Переведите следующие предложения с русского языка на английский.

- 1. Она сказала ему, что сильно разозлится, если он опять опоздает.
- 2. Врач сказал, что направляет ее к специалисту в другую больницу.
- 3. Преподаватель сказал, что я сделал много ошибок в упражнении.
- 4. Мэри напомнила Максу купить подарок на день рожденья его мамы.
 - 5. Полицейский сказал ему выйти из машины.
- 6. Он сказал мне, что не сможет прийти ко мне на вечеринку.
- 7. Она сказала, что любит путешествовать больше всего на свете.
 - 8. Она говорит, что путешествия расширяют сознание.
- 9. Он сказал ей, что она тратит слишком много денег на украшения.
 - 10. Няня сказала, что дети вели себя хорошо.

2. Вопросительные предложения

В вопросительных предложениях действуют те же правила согласования времен, что и в утвердительных. Существует два типа образования косвенных вопросов, в зависимости от типа вопроса в прямой речи.

Общие вопросы



В этом случае косвенные вопросы образуются с помощью **if** или **whether**, которые в данном случае переводятся как **«ли»**.

Порядок слов в косвенных вопросах — как в утвердительных предложениях.

Глаголы **do, does, did** при образовании косвенных вопросов не используются.

Прямая речь. He asked me, "Do you speak English?" Косвенная речь. He asked if I spoke English.

Прямая речь Present Simple

He asked, "Do you want to dance?"

Present Continuous

He asked, "Are you going to the shop?"

Past Simple

He asked, "Did you watch the latest film?"

Present Perfect

He asked, "Has John arrived?"

Past Continuous

He asked, "Were you going to the gym?"

Present Perfect Continuous

He asked, "Have you been going to the gym?"

Future Simple

He said, "I will go to school."

Can

He asked, "Can I help you?"

Will

He asked, "Will you have lunch with me?"

Must

He asked, "Must I do the shopping?"

Косвенная речь Past Simple

He asked if I wanted to dance.

Past Continuous

He asked if I was going to the shop.

Past Perfect

He asked if I had watched the latest film.

Past Perfect

He asked if John had arrived.

Past Perfect Continuous

He asked if I had been going to the gym.

Past Perfect Continuous

He asked if I had been going to the gym.

Future in the Past

He said (that) he **would go** to school."

Could

He asked if he could help me.

Would

He asked if I would have lunch with me.

Had to

He asked if he had to do the shopping.



Специальные вопросы

Это вопросы, в которых используются вопросительные слова: **who** (кто), **when** (когда), **where** (где), **why** (почему), **which** (который) и т.д.

В этом случае косвенные вопросы образуются с помощью соответствующих вопросительных слов.

Прямая речь. He asked me, "Where do you work?" — Он спросил меня: «Где вы работаете?» Косвенная речь. He asked me **where** I worked. — Он спросил меня, где я работаю.

Прямая речь

Present Simple

He asked, "How are you?"

Present Continuous

He asked, "Where are you going?"

Past Simple

He asked, "Whom did you call?"

Present Perfect

He asked, "Where have you been?"

Past Continuous

He asked, "What were you doing?"

Present Perfect Continuous

He asked, "What have you been doing?"

Future Simple

He asked, "When will you be back?"

Косвенная речь

Past Simple

He asked how I was.

Past Continuous

He asked where I was going.

Past Perfect

He asked whom I had called.

Past Perfect

He asked where I had been.

Past Perfect Continuous

He asked what I had been doing.

Past Perfect Continuous

He asked what I had been doing.

Future in the Past

He asked when I would be back.

Exercises

1. Измените следующие предложения по образцу.

"Are you all right?" Tom asked her. – *Tom asked her if she was all right.*

- 1. "Will you be ready in time?" Max asked her.
- 2. "Is there any food in the house?" Pete asked her.
- 3. "Can I pay by credit card?" he asked the manager.
- 4. "Are you enjoying yourselves, children?" asked Jo.
- 5. "Does my hair look funny?" Helen asked her husband.



- 6. "Has the postman been?" asked Mum.
- 7. "Have you ever been to Siena, Mick?" asked Rob.
- 8. "Is Donald happy in his new job?" asked George.
- 9. "Did you enjoy the concert, John?" she asked.
- 10. "Are you doing the right thing, Rob?" asked Liz.

2. Измените следующие предложения по образцу.

"What time are you leaving?" asked Sandy. – Sandy asked me what time I was leaving.

- 1. "What's Peter's address?" he asked.
- 2. "When's the new manager coming?" asked the secretary.
- 3. "Why have you taken a scuba-diving course?" asked Liz.
- 4. "When did she visit the art gallery?" asked Alan.
- 5. "Do you like sausages for breakfast?" asked the landlady.
- 6. "Why are all the windows open?" asked the teacher.
- 7. "Where did you put the money?" she asked him.
- 8. "How many countries have you travelled to?" asked Ben.
- 9. "When are you two coming home?" asked the mother.
- 10. "What did you do yesterday evening?" he asked her.

3. Преобразуйте следующие вопросы в косвенную речь.

- 1. Jane said: "What are you doing"?
- 2. She said: "Did you invite him to the party?"
- 3. "Have you finished your exams?" he asked me.
- 4. My friend said: "Does your sister live in Paris?"
- 5. Mother asked her daughter: "Have you hurt your leg?"
- 6. He said to the shop assistant: "How much does it cost?"
- 7. "Have you ever been to the USA?" they said to me.
- 8. Steve said: "Where did you stay in Moscow?"
- 9. My father said to me: "Can you pass me the magazine?"
- 10. They asked: "What time will the train arrive?"
- 11. My mother said to me: "Why didn't you buy bread?"
- 12. His friend asked: "How do you get to university?"
- 13. Barry said to me: "How long have you been waiting for your friend?"
 - 14. She asked: "Who is singing in the next room?"
 - 15. I asked my friend: "When did you telephone me?"



Review

1. Восстановите прямую речь в следующих предложениях.

- 1. She asked me if I liked Coke.
- 2. My friend asked me if he could borrow my car.
- 3. John wanted to know if that had not caused any problem.
- 4. She asked me if I would not mind about it.
- 5. They wanted to know where I was going.
- 6. Kate asked Mike whether he preferred eating at home.
- 7. We wanted to know when he would tell us the truth.
- 8. I asked her where her father was.
- 9. They wanted to know if the results of that experiment were exciting.
- 10. Susan asked Ann when she would give her new telephone number.

2. Выразите следующие вопросы косвенной речью. Начинайте каждое предложение со слов, данных в скобках.

- 1. Are there any people in the house? (The policeman asked...)
 - 2. Why will not she come to the party? (He asked...).
 - 3. Has he already returned? (He asked me...)
- 4. Can you think about the future and not about the past? (He asked...)
 - 5. Have they ever been to New Zealand? (We asked...)
 - 6. Did you sister refuse to go to the cinema? (She asked...)
 - 7. Is he a good-looking man? (She wanted to know...)
 - 8. When will the next train leave? (We asked...).
 - 9. Are you coming back today? (They asked us...)
 - 10. Who gave him money? (She didn't know...)
- 11. How many times have they seen this film? (He wondered...).
 - 12. Is she cooking dinner in the kitchen? (He didn't know...)
- 13. Does she know anything about his problem? (They asked...)
- 14. Can you translate this text without a dictionary? (She asked him...)
 - 15. When did Jack phone me? (He wanted to know...)
- 3. Переведите следующие предложения с русского языка на английский.
 - 1. Она спросила меня, почему я постоянно опаздываю.



- 2. Он спросил, сколько стоят билеты.
- 3. Они спросили меня, знаю ли я этого человека.
- 4. Преподаватель поинтересовался, закончил ли я проект.
- 5. Врач хотел знать, принял ли я лекарство.
- 6. Турист спросил меня, где ему купить карту города.
- 7. Ветврач спросил нас, как долго болеет наш кот.
- 8. Мама спросила, как я добрался до дома вчера.
- 9. Полицейский спросил, видел ли кто-нибудь, как про-изошла авария.
- 10. Лектор поинтересовался, чем заняты студенты на заднем ряду.



CONSOLIDATION VI

1. Раскройте скобки, выбирая нужную форму глагола.

- 1. She realized that nobody (will come/would come).
- 2. We understood that she (sees/saw) nothing.
- 3. He said he (will arrive/would arrive) in some days.
- 4. My mother was sure I already (have come/had come).
- 5. I didn't know they (are/were) in the room.
- 6. We supposed the rain (will stop/would stop) in some hours.
- 7. He said he never (has been/had been) to London.
- 8. We wanted to know who (is singing/was singing) in the next room.
 - 9. I always thought he (is/was) a brave man.
 - 10. When I saw him, he (is working/was working).
 - 11. We know she always (comes/came) in time.
- 12. They thought he (will have finished/would have finished) his work by the evening.
 - 13. She said she (has/had) a terrible headache.
- 14. We supposed they (will send/would send) us the documents.
 - 15. He said he (has not seen/had not seen) us for ages.

2. Преобразуйте следующие предложения в косвенную речь.

- 1. He asked me: "When can I talk to you?"
- 2. Eric said to me: "Come and have a look at my new bike".
- 3. "I'll get the ticket to the concert. I promise!" David said.
- 4. Delia said: "Tom has invited me to go sailing at the weekend".
 - 5. The man said: "Don't park your car in front of the gate".
- 6. The manager said: "We have received a complaint about the prices".
 - 7. "Do you know the cause of the fire?" asked the policeman.
 - 8. "When I get a job, I'll buy a new car", said Mike.
- 9. "You will get a sunstroke if you spend more time in the sun", he said.
- 10. She asked me: "Have you ever made a speech in front of one thousand people?"
- 11. "If time allows, discuss this question with me", my brother said.



- 12. "Will you refuse to see your best friend for a million pounds?" he asked me.
 - 13. Paul said to us: "Someone has stolen my case".
- 14. The tourist said: "I don't speak French and can't order a cup of coffee".
 - 15. My sister said: "I've got a headache".
 - 16. She said: "I don't know where I have lost my hotel key".
- 17. The firefighter said: "The main cause of fires is carelessness".
- 18. "We will have finished building by the end of the year", they said to me.
 - 19. My mother said to me: "Go to bed".
 - 20. "When did you receive a telegram?" asked the boy.
- 21. My friend asked me: "Have you ever used electric tooth-brush?"
- 22. "Sit down at the table and have a cup of tea", said Alice to me.
 - 23. She said to Mike: "Have you got a lot of relatives?"
 - 24. "I'm afraid I will be late for dinner", said Helen.
 - 25. Julia asked us: "Are you going away in the summer?"
 - 26. "This time next week we'll be doing our exams", said they.
 - 27. "How much do you earn?" he asked his brother.
 - 28. "Don't hope we'll get there in time!" said Mike.
- 29. Ann said to her little sister: "I've told you several times not to take my pen".
- 30. He told me: "They have invited to go to an archaeological dig".

3. Переведите предложения с русского языка на английский.

- 1. Когда мой друг пришел ко мне, он спросил, почему меня не было в университете.
- 2. Том спросил своего брата, занят ли он и сможет ли он поговорить с ним.
- 3. Учитель спросил Анну, почему она не выучила стихотворение.
 - 4. Отец спросил у своих детей, кто разбил голубую вазу.
- 5. Дедушка попросил внука закрыть окно, потому что в комнате холодно.
- 6. Он сказал мне, что хочет пить и попросил принести сок.



- 7. Макс сказал, что он думает купить новую машину.
- 8. Он спросил меня, как долго я знаю ее.
- 9. Она спросила, согласимся ли мы ей помочь.
- 10. Он сказал, что уже купил продукты и едет домой.
- 11. Она спросила Тома, где он оставил свой зонт.
- 12. Джон сказал, что он не хочет простудиться, поэтому останется дома.
 - 13. Хелен спросила папу, когда он отведет ее в зоопарк.
 - 14. Тим спросил ее, где она купила этот планшет.
 - 15. Она сказала ему не звонить ей больше.



ТАБЛИЦА НЕПРАВИЛЬНЫХ ГЛАГОЛОВ

Infinitive		Past Tense		Past Participle		Перевод
arise	[əˈraiz]	arose	[əˈrəuz]	arisen	[əˈriz(ə)n]	возникать, появляться
awake	[ə'weik]	awoke	[əˈwəuk]	awoken	[ə'wəukən]	будить, просыпаться
be	[bi:]	was,were	[waz], [wa:]	been	[bi:n]	быть
bear	[bɛə]	bore	[bo:]	born	[bo:n]	рождать, приносить
beat	[bi:t]	beat	[bi:t]	beaten	['bi:tn]	бить
become	[bɪ ˈkʌm]	became	[bɪˈkeɪm]	become	[b1 'k/m]	становиться
begin	[bɪˈɡɪn]	began	[bɪˈɡæn]	begun	[b₁ 'gʌn]	начинать(ся)
bend	[bend]	bent	[bent]	bent	[bent]	гнуть, сгибать
bind	[baɪnd]	bound	[baʊnd]	bound	[baʊnd]	связывать
bite	[baɪt]	bit	[bɪt]	bitten	[ˈbɪtn]	кусать(ся)
bleed	[bli:d]	bled	[bled]	bled	[bled]	кровоточить
blow	[blou]	blew	[blu:]	blown	[bloun]	дуть
break	[breɪk]	broke	[brouk]	broken	['broukən]	ломать(ся)
breed	[bri:d]	bred	[bred]	bred	[bred]	воспитывать
bring	[brɪŋ]	brought	[bro:t]	brought	[bro:t]	приносить
build	[bɪld]	built	[bɪlt]	built	[bɪlt]	строить
burn	[b3:rn]	burnt	[bɜ:nt]	burnt	[bs:nt]	гореть, жечь
burst	[bɜ:st]	burst	[bɜ:st]	burst	[bɜ:st]	разразиться, взрывать(ся)
buy	[baɪ]	bought	[bo:t]	bought	[bo:t]	покупать
cast	[ka:st]	cast	[ka:st]	cast	[ka:st]	кинуть, лить (металл)
catch	[kæt∫]	caught	[kɔ:t]	caught	[ko:t]	ловить, схватывать
choose	[t∫u:z]	chose	[t∫ouz]	chosen	['t∫ouzən]	выбирать, подбирать
come	[k _{\lambda} m]	came	[keɪm]	come	[k \(\dagger)\)	приходить
cost	[kpst]	cost	[kpst]	cost	[kpst]	СТОИТЬ
cut	[kʌt]	cut	[kʌt]	cut	[kʌt]	резать
dig	[dīg]	dug	[d\d]	dug	[d _{\lambda} g]	рыть, копать
do	[du:]	did	[d1d]	done	[dʌn]	делать
draw	[dr ₀ :]	drew	[dru:]	drawn	[dro:n]	рисовать, тащить
dream	[dri:m]	dreamt	[dremt]	dreamt	[dremt]	мечтать, сниться
drink	[drɪŋk]	drank	[dræŋk]	drunk	[drʌŋk]	пить



Infinitive		Past Tense		Past Participle		Перевод
drive	[draɪv]	drove	[drouv]	driven	[ˈdrɪvən]	водить
eat	[i:t]	ate	[eɪt, et]	eaten	[ˈiːtn]	есть
fall	[fɔ:l]	fell	[fel]	fallen	[ˈfɔ:lən]	падать
feed	[fi:d]	fed	[fed]	fed	[fed]	кормить
feel	[fi:l]	felt	[felt]	felt	[felt]	чувствовать
fight	[fait]	fought	[fo:t]	fought	[fo:t]	бороться
find	[faind]	found	[fa <i>ʊ</i> nd]	found	[fa <i>⊍</i> nd]	находить
fit	[fit]	fit	[fit]	fit	[fit]	подходить по размеру
fly	[flaɪ]	flew	[flu:]	flown	[floun]	летать
forget	[fər 'get]	forgot	[fər 'g $ extit{st}$]	forgotten	[fər ˈg <i>ɒ</i> tn]	забывать
forgive	[fər ˈgɪv]	forgave	[fər ˈgeːv]	forgiven	[fər 'gɪvən]	прощать
freeze	[fri:z]	froze	[frouz]	frozen	[ˈfrouzən]	замерзать
get	[get]	got	[g <i>p</i> t]	got	[g <i>p</i> t]	получать
give	[g1v]	gave	[geɪv]	given	[ˈgːvən]	давать
go	[gou]	went	[went]	gone	[g <i>ɒ</i> n]	идти, ходить
grow	[grou]	grew	[gru:]	grown	[groun]	расти
hang	[hæŋ]	hung	[h⊿ŋ]	hung	[h ₄ ŋ]	висеть, развешивать
have	[hæv]	had	[hæd]	had	[hæd]	иметь
hear	[hɪər]	heard	[hɜ:rd]	heard	[hɜ:rd]	слышать
hide	[haːd]	hid	[hɪd]	hidden	[ˈhːdn]	прятать
hit	[hɪt]	hit	[hɪt]	hit	[hɪt]	попадать в цель
hold	[hould]	held	[held]	held	[held]	держать
hurt	[hɜ:rt]	hurt	[h <i>ɜ</i> :rt]	hurt	[h <i>3</i> :rt]	ранить, ушибить
keep	[ki:p]	kept	[kept]	kept	[kept]	держать, сохранять
kneel	[ni:l]	knelt	[nelt]	knelt	[nelt]	становиться на колени
knit	[nɪt]	knit	[nɪt]	knit	[nɪt]	вязать (спицами)
know	[nou]	knew	[nu:]	known	[noun]	знать
lay	[leː]	laid	[leɪd]	laid	[leɪd]	класть, положить
lead	[li:d]	led	[led]	led	[led]	вести, возглавлять
lean	[li:n]	leant	[lent]	leant	[lent]	наклоняться
learn	[l <i>ɜ</i> :rn]	learnt	[l₃:rnt]	learnt	[lɜ:rnt]	учить



Infinitive		Past Tense		Past Participle		Перевод
leave	[li:v]	left	[left]	left	[left]	оставлять, покидать
lend	[lend]	lent	[lent]	lent	[lent]	занимать, одалживать
let	[let]	let	[let]	let	[let]	позволять
lie	[la1]	lay	[leɪ]	lain	[leɪn]	лежать
light	[lait]	lit	[lit]	lit	[lit]	освещать, зажигать
lose	[lu:z]	lost	[løst]	lost	[løst]	терять
make	[meːk]	made	[meɪd]	made	[meɪd]	делать
mean	[mi:n]	meant	[ment]	meant	[ment]	значить
meet	[mi:t]	met	[met]	met	[met]	встречать
mistake	[mis'teik]	mistook	[mis'tuk]	mistaken	[mis'teik(e)n]	ошибаться
pay	[pe <i>I</i>]	paid	[peɪd]	paid	[peɪd]	платить
put	[p <i>:</i> t]	put	[p <i>o</i> t]	put	[p <i>o</i> t]	класть, ставить
read	[ri:d]	read	[red]	read	[red]	читать
ride	[raɪd]	rode	[roud]	ridden	[ˈrɪdn]	ехать верхом
ring	[rɪŋ]	rang	[ræŋ]	rung	[rʌŋ]	звонить, звенеть
rise	[raɪz]	rose	[rouz]	risen	[ˈrɪzən]	подниматься
run	[r⊿n]	ran	[ræn]	run	[r⊿n]	бежать
say	[se _I]	said	[sed]	said	[sed]	говорить
see	[si:]	saw	[sɔ:]	seen	[si:n]	видеть
seek	[si:k]	sought	[sɔ:t]	sought	[sɔ:t]	искать
sell	[sel]	sold	[sould]	sold	[sould]	продавать
send	[send]	sent	[sent]	sent	[sent]	посылать
set	[set]	set	[set]	set	[set]	класть, ставить
shake	[/e /k]	shook	[<i>ʃċ</i> k]	shaken	['√e ≀kən]	трясти
shine	[<i>ʃ</i> à ːn]	shone	[ʃoun, ʃɒn]	shone	[ʃoun, ʃɒn]	светить, сиять, блестеть
shoot	[ʃu:t]	shot	[/nt]	shot	[/zt]	стрелять
show	[/ou]	showed	[/oud]	shown	[/oun]	показывать
shrink	[/riŋk]	shrank	[√ræŋk]	shrunk	[/fʌŋk]	садиться (о материале), уменьшать(ся), сокращать(ся)
shut	[ʃʌt]	shut	[ʃʌt]	shut	[ʃʌt]	закрывать
sing	[s <i>i</i> ŋ]	sang	[sæŋ]	sung	[s ₄ ŋ]	петь
sink	[sɪŋk]	sank	[sæŋk]	sunk	[sʌŋk]	тонуть
sit	[s /t]	sat	[sæt]	sat	[sæt]	сидеть



Infinitive		Past Tense		Past Participle		Перевод
sleep	[sli:p]	slept	[slept]	slept	[slept]	спать
smell	[smel]	smelt	[smelt]	smelt	[smelt]	нюхать, пахнуть
slide	[slaid]	slid	[slid]	slid	[slid]	скользить
sow	[sou]	sowed	[soud]	sown	[soun]	сеять, засевать
smell	[smel]	smelled	[smeld]	smelled	[smeld]	нюхать, пахнуть
speak	[spi:k]	spoke	[spouk]	spoken	['spoukən]	говорить
spell	[spel]	spelt	[spelt]	spelt	[spelt]	произносить по буквам
spend	[spend]	spent	[spent]	spent	[spent]	тратить
spill	[sp <i>I</i> l]	spilt	[sp /lt]	spilt	[sp /lt]	проливать
spit	[spɪt]	spat	[spæt]	spat	[spæt]	плевать
split	[spl /t]	split	[spl /t]	split	[spl /t]	расщеплять
spoil	[spoːl]	spoilt	[spoːlt]	spoilt	[spo ːlt]	портить
spread	[spred]	spread	[spred]	spread	[spred]	распространять (ся)
stand	[stænd]	stood	[st <i>o</i> d]	stood	[stod]	стоять
steal	[sti:l]	stole	[stoul]	stolen	['stoulən]	воровать
stick	[stik]	stuck	[st⊿k]	stuck	[st⊿k]	приклеивать(ся), застревать, упорствовать
sting	[stiŋ]	stung	[st⊿ŋ]	stung	[stʌŋ]	жалить
strike	[stra /k]	struck	[str ₄ k]	struck	[str⊿k]	ударять, бастовать
strive	[stra /v]	strove	[strəuv]	striven	[ˈstrːvn]	стараться, стремиться
swear	[sweə]	swore	[sw 2:]	sworn	[sw∂:n]	давать клятву
sweep	[swi:p]	swept	[swept]	swept	[swept]	мести, подметать
swim	[sw ɪm]	swam	[swæm]	swum	[sw ₄ m]	плавать
take	[te /k]	took	[t <i>o</i> k]	taken	['teːkən]	брать, взять
teach	[ti:t/]	taught	[tɔ:t]	taught	[t <i>ɔ</i> :t]	учить
tear	[teər]	tore	[tɔr]	torn	[tərn]	рвать
tell	[tel]	told	[tould]	told	[tould]	рассказывать
think	[θ <i>ɪ</i> ŋk]	thought	[θο:t]	thought	[θ ₂ :t]	думать
throw	[θrou]	threw	[θru:]	thrown	[θroun]	бросать
understand	[/ndər 'stænd]	understood	[ʌndər ˈstʊd]	understood	[⊿ndər 'st⊘d]	понимать
upset	[/p'set]	upset	[/p'set]	upset	[ʌpˈset]	опрокидывать, расстраивать (планы), огорчать



Infinitive		Past Tense		Past Participle		Перевод
wake	[we /k]	woke	[wouk]	woken	['woukən]	просыпаться
wear	[weər]	wore	[wər]	worn	[w∂rn]	носить
weep	[wi:p]	wept	[wept]	wept	[wept]	плакать
wet	[wet]	wet	[wet]	wet	[wet]	мочить, увлажнять
win	[wɪn]	won	[w⊿n]	won	[w⊿n]	выигрывать, побеждать
wind	[waind]	wound	[waund]	wound	[waund]	извиваться, обматывать, заводить (часы)
write	[ra ɪt]	wrote	[rout]	written	['r /tn]	писать



ЛИТЕРАТУРА

- 1. Top Grammar, Rachel Finnie, Carol Frain, David A. Hill, Karen Thomas. Helbling Languages, 2010
- 2. How English Works/ A grammar practice book. Michael Swan and Catherine Walter. OUP, 2002
- 3. Oxford Living Grammar. Elementary. Ken Paterson. OUP, 2008
- 4. Oxford Living Grammar. Pre-Intermediate. Mark Harrison. OUP, 2008
- 5. Oxford Living Grammar. Intermediate. Norman Coe. OUP, 2008
- 6. English Grammar in Use. Raymond Murphy. Cambridge University Press, 2009
 - 7. http://study-english.info/